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KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED

SINCE THE VERY BEGINNING, KINGSLEY EDUGROUP HAS CHARTED A
STEADY COURSE STEERED BY A SET OF ESTABLISHED CORE VALUES
WHICH SUSTAIN A CLEAR MISSION. THESE ENDURING MOTIVATIONS
CONTINUE TO ALIGN THE ENTIRE EDUGROUP UNDER A UNIFYING
VISION THAT EMBODIES THE EDUGROUP’S OUTLOOK.
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At A Glance..

Kingsley lists on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’'s GEM
Kingsley EduGroup Limited (“Kingsley”) was listed on the GEM of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Stock Exchange”) on 16 May 2018,
the first Malaysian-based education service provider to do so. With
an issue price of HK$0.40 per share and a market capitalisation of
HKD320,000,000 during the initial public offering (“IP0O”), Kingsley saw
its share price increase by 21.25% on its first trading day, achieving a
market capitalisation of HKD338,000,000.

EENEBBIRPIGEM L

SLEBEAETEEEFRAT ([ 2FER | ) 112018F5816 HE S B
22f ([ Efz2Pr | ) GEMET, RERIKERFIGEM EHRIBRAEHERS
s . 2LERNRERESERSZ BRERARES ( [ BRAMHEE | )
HRREE T EERR0.408 T L3R21.25%, miEIFHET320,000,000 LFH=
338,000,000/87T

by G i8xgmn
__"‘j-—e—l omes the List;
i

HKEXW
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gsley Edugroup Limited

LEMERE L R RmARAS

———— (Stock Code: :

RMIT Foundation Studies begins at KIS

Kingsley International Sdn Bhd entered into an agreement with
Australia’s RMIT Training Pty Ltd to conduct the prestigious RMIT
Foundation Studies Programme at the KIS campus in June 2018,
making KIS the first international school in Malaysia to have RMIT
Foundation Studies within the same campus.

KISBEiRMIT K 5E(E:852
Kingsley International Sdn Bhd A8 2018 £ 6 BEZEAFIZE RMIT Training

CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) Kingsley EduGroup Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries, (the “Group”] collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

Pty Ltd &T5zifs%, LA KIS Szhaii= 28R RMIT RSEEERE, KIS
BBl A RS 2R PR B S B —IRERIRMI T RS2 E R B SR .
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Established in 2010, Kingsley EduGroup (“Kingsley EduGroup” or the “Group”) is a
private education service provider based in Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia. The
Group operates Kingsley International School (KIS), with courses ranging from Nursery
to A-levels Courses primarily based on the curriculum developed by University of
Cambridge International Examinations and England National Curriculum. KIS has
also been accredited to deliver the Duke of Edinburgh’s International Award in 2016.
Meanwhile, Kingsley Tertiary, which consist of Kingsley Skills College, Kingsley
Professional Centre and Kingsley College, offer tertiary education programmes.

Since its listing on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Stock Exchange”) on
16 May 2018, the Group is on track to deliver on its goals. The KIS Annex Building,
which is located within the KIS Campus will be completed by the fourth quarter of 2018
and operational by the first quarter of 2019. With dormitory rooms for more than 883
students and classroom, this will enable the Kingsley EduGroup to increase its student
enrolment, attracting Malaysian as well as international students from the Asian region.
Firm in the belief of the importance of raising a new generation of entrepreneurial
achievers, the Group is well on its way in strengthening its position as an established
private education service provider in Asia.
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN Wz5RB4/
Year ended 30 June #Z=6830H1LEE

o015 | A
F 21,201,271 8,805,970
ALY 21,850,083 7,944,909
F
2016 13,497,678 5,325,100
&
RM
=
5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 30,000,000 35,000,000

Tuition fees & Il Ancillary services FRERRH

Revenue Breakdown Year Ended 30 June #=6830HLEE
iR 2016 £ 2017 £ 2018
RM &% RM & RM &%
Tuition Fees 2 13,497,678 21,850,083 21,201,271
Ancillary Services EZERH 5,325,100 7,944,909 8,805,970

18,822,778 29,794,992 30,007,241
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Financial Highlights

PEHE
REVENUE BY SEGMENT #&¥73EIo00zs
Year ended 30 June #Z=68308 1LEE
2018 142,450
F
2017 2,992,604
& 29,794,992
2016 776,075
&F 18,822,778
RM
B
5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 30,000,000 35,000,000

[ School EREE#: Il Tertiary %55

Revenue by Segment Year Ended 30 June #Z=6R30H1LEE
BARBRAES 2016 & 2017 & 2018 &
RM &% RM &% RM &%
School EEER 18,046,703 26,802,388 29,864,791
Tertiary 5&#%& 776,075 2,992,604 142,450

18,822,778 29,794,992 30,007,241
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Financial Summary

BHBME

www.kingsley.edu.my @Q}

A SUMMARY OF THE RESULTS AND OF THE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP FOR THE LAST THREE
FINANCIAL YEARS, AS EXTRACTED FROM PUBLISHED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, IS SET OUT BELOW:
FEERBAE-AMRFENFEREEESERE (HZECTIRCERMBERE) SIUT:

RESULTS #4&

l|—~

17 — 29,794,992

16— 18,822,778

17 - 11,361,953

~— 16- 3,180,605

(o

17 — 17,458,652

16 — 9,556,430

17 - 11,291,569

~— 16— 3,196,756
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Financial Summary

HHME
Year ended 30 June At 30 June
HBZE=6H30BLLEE ®6A308
0
1% 4 LN 18
|
0 0 )
. rin
Gross profit Current Ge? (Nog 3)
margin®et 1) ratio®te2 ratio
FEF FmE1) B Ly R0 2) &EXaE

Ep (i 3)

At 30 June 126H30H

2016 &£

RM&=

2017 &£
RM ¢&

2018 &£
RM &%

Non-current assets ERENIERE 121,315,954 119,807,276 136,417,771
Current assets i#&&E 3,482,359 13,941,080 41,360,714
Current liabilities xgi&afE 20,141,067 8,295,241 30,118,200
Net Current (liabilities)/ assets & (&f#) /E&E%E (16,658,708) 5,645,839 11,242,514
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERHEAE 104,657,246 125,453,115 147,660,285
Total equity tE54a%E 20,583,199 31,889,813 68,519,088
Non-current liabilities IExREIE®E 84,074,047 93,563,302 79,141,197
Total equity and non-current liabilities #Ex@ERIERESE 104,657,246 125,453,115 147,660,285

Note 1: The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and multiplied by 100%

Note 2: The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities

Note 3: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on interest-bearing liabilities divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%
Bzt 1: ERZIZENRLM S ETRLN00%ETE

Bz 2: MEEIRRE B ERLAREN B ERTE

BfaE 3: BREBIERE B A ER R EREERIN00%:1TE
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Corporate Information

NSEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORSZE=

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS#\1T
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon
(“Tan Sri Barry Goh”) (Chairman)
FHIERIEE (EfF)

Dato’ Danny Goh Meng Keong
(“Dato” Danny Goh”) =2 2BE#HE

Associate Professor Dr. Chua Ping Yong
(“Dr. Chua Ping Yong") Zyk&EtE+

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORSHE3ziE#tT

Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed
Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin (“Tan Sri
Salleh”) &2 HrESE Mohamed
Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin &+

( “PHEREE Sallenh” )

Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh
Munisar (“Tan Sri Karim”)

FHE=EH] Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
( “FHHrEKarim” )

Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz (“Prof. Dr.

Rozainun”)
##ERozainun Binti Abdul AziziE+ ( “#uE
Rozainunf&t" )

AUDIT COMMITTEE
EBZZEE

Prof. Dr. Rozainun (Chairlady)
#H¥ERozainuntE =+ (EfE)

Tan Sri Salleh FHErESallen

Tan Sri Karim fHrEKarim

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FMEEE

Tan Sri Salleh (Chairman)
FHEFESalleh (E£fE)

Tan Sri Karim fHrEKarim

Prof. Dr. Rozainun #i&Rozainunf&=+
Tan Sri Barry Goh B 255

Dr. Chua Ping Yong Z=)kEtE+

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEE

Tan Sri Karim (Chairman)
FErEKarim (E£fE )

Tan Sri Salleh AHfESalleh

Prof. Dr. Rozainun #i4%Rozainunf&+
Tan Sri Barry Goh B RiFE

Dr. Chua Ping Yong Zk&E &+

) Headquarter and Principal Place of

Business in Malaysia
AR SR AR E RS it R

LG5, Kingsley International School
Persiaran Kingsley, Kingsley Hills
Putra Heights, 47650 Subang Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

) Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong
EEEEERINE

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

=B I):ji@$1 83%5%
BHtO541E

> Registered Office sMHEEE
P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

> Stock Code BR{B{EsE
8105

> Company’s Website Address
AT @At

www.kingsley.edu.my

) Company Secretary
LATHE

Lee Mei Yi 2245
(fellow member, The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators; fellow member, The

Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries)

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

( SRR E RITEA
SBETHNE ARERE
SHBEEKEH1835R
BRF05418

/,

‘ﬂ]][l il

3)

> Authorised Representatives
=

Dr. Chua Ping Yong £k&tE+

LG5, Kingsley International School
Persiaran Kingsley, Kingsley Hills
Putra Heights, 47650 Subang Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Lee Mei Yi 2%

Level b4, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

=it z):i@%w&f
BRFO5418

) Cayman Islands Principal Share
Registrar and Transfer Office
HERBRMBFREITEE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
P.0. Box 1350, Clifton House
75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

R
INEEAEE.

www.kingsley.edu.my @é

) Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office
FERNBFRERDE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kon

BEBSFECERAT
EHBEEKER1835F GFIF02218

) Auditor
45

BDO Limited

25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kon
/%41D?E%‘;E+Eﬂi$§§ﬁﬁﬁ PRAE]

BB TEEFIIE k251

) Compliance Officer
aREE

Dr. Chua Ping Yong Z5kE &+

LG5, Kingsley International School
Persiaran Kingsley, Kingsley Hills
Putra Heights, 47650 Subang Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

) Compliance Adviser
EREEM

China Everbright Capital Limited
24th Floor, Lee Garden One
33 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

FRELE AR IBIRAE)

vy FIEE335R ME—HR241E
) Bankers

BT

CIMB Bank Berhad
Level 13, Menara CIMB
Jalan Stesen Sentral 2
Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur

DBS Bank (Hong Kong] Limited
16/F The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong
ERRT (&§8) BRAT

BB 2EKEFI9E Fir/I161E

UOB Hong Kong Limited
23/F, 3 Garden Road, Central
Hong Kon

&t IR SRR 2312

) Malaysian Legal Adviser
| JudHbe e ]

Mah-Kamariyah & Philip Koh
3A07, Block B, Phileo Damansara
II, 15, Jalan 16/11, Off Jalan
Damansara, 46350, Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia
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Corporate Structure
NS

Kingsley Edugroup Limited
EEEEY S EEEBRAE
(Cayman Islands) ( BIE2EE )

<& 100%

Kingsley Malaysia Limited
(BVI) (EBREZHE)

100%

Kingsley Edugroup Berhad
(Malaysia) ( B3krEn )

Kingsley Digital
Solutions Sdn Bhd

(Now known as

Ki ( i i
Ingstey Kingsley Graduate Kingsley Kingsley Skills

Kingsley Advisory &
Strategic Initiatives Sdn Bhd
(18f8Kingsley Advisory &

International
Sdn Bhd
WEIESE)

School Malaysia
Sdn Bhd [Note) tms)
WEIEVSE)

( FE2RAREE )

Professional Centre
Sdn Bhd
WEIEVSE)

( F5%kraas )

Sdn Bhd
WEIESE)
( FE2RFREE )

Strategic Initiatives Sdn Bhd ) ( F52kgEs )

WEIESE)
( FSZRAGEE )

Kingsley
Language House
Sdn Bhd [Notel(z)

WEIEISE)

( F52kPEE: )

Kignsley Catering
Sdn Bhd [Note) (f&2%)
[Ma[aySia]

( FE2RPEER )

Note: The remaining 30% of the issued share capital is owned by Concept Cabling, an Independent Third Party.
5T BR T 30% B TIRARE 5 =7 Concept CablingiFa .
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Chairman’s Statement

FHEHRESE

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD,
IT IS MY DISTINCT PLEASURE
TO PRESENT THE INAUGURAL
ANNUAL REPORT FOR KINGSLEY
EDUGROUP LIMITED ("KINGSLEY")
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2018 ("FY2018").

AANERREFTMARIEZELEIRH
BLEXEEBRAE ( [EX] ) &=
20186H30HLLEFE ( [ 2018E4H
FE | ) NEHER.

TAN SRI BARRY GOH
RETERAE

Chairman %fE

-l L TE o .

FY2018 was a landmark year for Kingsley. We emerged as the first Malaysian-based
education service provider to be listed on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
("Stock Exchange”) on 16 May 2018.

Throughout FY2018, we worked hard to realise our strategic priorities, leveraging
on our proven track record. Despite market volatility, we remained resilient and
capitalised on the growth experienced in the private education service segment
throughout Asia. In Asia, with the rapidly rising population and income levels, we
witnessed a rise in demand for high-quality international education, especially
amongst parents who want their children to have access to a more well-rounded
education with English as the medium of instruction, which in turn sets the path
towards some of the best universities and careers.

Against this backdrop, we made progress on our strategic priorities as the
construction of the Kingsley International School ("KIS”) Annex Building will
be completed by the fourth quarter of 2018 and operational by the first quarter
of 2019. The completion of the KIS Annex Building will mark the beginning of
a new chapter for Kingsley as this will enable us to increase student capacity,
diversify our international student base and deliver improved learning outcomes.
The availability of dormitories with accommodation and new facilities will also
help generate new revenue streams. The KIS Annex Building is targeted to be
operational in the first quarter of 2019.
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ERARAT
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2018 EEHELEABREER. HMR2018FEB16RAEBHMAXZMEIRAT
( THi32Pr | ) GEMET, AR BE RN PIGEM LR B AR A IS ER o

R2018EAEE, HfEFERER, NRERNEECHE, BRENERK. EHHIZKE, B
ARESIERIER, RETDMNERREBIRFTENERES, T, BEEADRKNKFRE -
T, BMRETHSHESEGFABENFRER, FREMs LS FETEA2mERE
RYEFESHEEAE, BRBFRNBIERKRENIRE S MM iHEL

FEESET, HMTERELHKE S @mEEER, Kingsley  International  School
(TKIS| ) MBXRIENZERTIEBRR2018ERE—FEBT, WR2019EFE—FEHEIRA
fFM. KISHEBXIEN® TIZRHEES 2R T MBS, FRMAEOISNKE, BAREKRSE
R, BUSEIEZNHEMRE . WERKIEBRENE S RIREIEE MR EERNIAIR
B, KISHIEAIEEIR2019E5—FERIREE.

During the year in review, we made headway with our overseas partners
and agents in the Middle East, China and Southeast Asia where we
marketed our new boarding facilities and activities. We also established
the Kingsley Leadership Academy Development Programme, a robust,
immersive extra-curriculum programme for boarders at the new KIS Annex
Building which will help motivate them to become successful learners.
The establishment of this programme, together with the introduction of
new learning approaches and use of facilities will also become a source of
new revenue stream.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEERSE

Our success thus far has been rooted in our ability
to equip our students with the right knowledge,
mindset and values by laying a strong academic
foundation, one that is amplified by experiential
learning models that nurtures an enterprising
mindset. Focused on realising Kingsley's strategic
priorities, we forged a successful partnership with
RMIT Training Pty Ltd ("RMIT") to commence RMIT
University’'s Foundation Studies programme at the
KIS campus, making us the first-ever international
school in Malaysia to do so. We were also
relentless in our efforts to bolster and upskill our
teachers to ensure they were equipped with the
right knowledge, tools and innovative techniques
to guide our students at KIS with activities that
enhanced their learning curve.

With regard to Kingsley Tertiary, we obtained
the essential accreditations as required by the
relevant authorities. Nevertheless, given the
highly competitive higher education space in
Malaysia, the Group is currently rationalising
our position and strategic direction as it remains
a critical factor to the success of the Group as a
holistic education services provider.

REBEFE, BMEPR. PERREEEERMANFRS
RiEE), WEBIISIEBERRENGI TRSER.. &M
TAEFKISKH B RIENSEEMREIRENESEEHEE
EERE (Kingsley Leadership Academy Development
Programme ) , EBIMEMEEMARINNES , FIRZEE
BRSBTS ik R R TS A A F HIMN IR

F AP B BIALINARIRTE R B FIREL0 M 2L (IR TERERVANRE . 45
HREE, BREEERENSNER, 2RSS E,
EEENAERHN, SIERESSNHKMER, MR
RMIT Training Pty Ltd ( [RMIT | ) pRIDERETE, LR
KISBIMIRMIT KERIKELE:ETE, BMRBRAmEExRE
RMITEREERNEIRER,, HlfITNBRFTaENse RIZFHH
AT, MRESEMBERNI®. TERAFSE, FIRE
ESEKISHEE, BASENEEER.,

giKingsleyeS#BM=, HMEBSHEBRERENVER
. BENL, ERERATSEXBITERTMI, FEE
RIEMIBRAIREM N TS, ENEAEEMAMINNE
BB BRBHESIRREZE.
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Chairman’s Statement
TREHRESE

IN SHORT, WE HAVE BEEN BUSY IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS, LAYING A STRONG FOUNDATION FOR FUTURE
GROWTH. DESPITE THE CHALLENGING ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, WE ARE DETERMINED TO REALISE OUR

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES.

Ams<z, AREN2ERE, RFFMESR, ARRVBREETRENER . REQERERBES, RMAFGROERK

{PIRYEERAELRS o

Our efforts to transform teaching
and learning practices was further
acknowledged by the industry. During
the year in review, one of our teachers
received the “National Outstanding
Educator” Award by the Private Education
Cooperative of Malaysia ("Educoop”).

BMEEESHE RS EEREE S ENSHESHE
RNE—LBA . REBEEE, BMN—SHHE
BERAE R EGEES (Private  Education
Cooperative of Malaysia) ( [ Educoop | ) /&8
B [ ExRGEEHEE | K.

GOVERNANCE

At Kingsley, we place strong emphasis
on a culture of good governance as
this strengthens confidence as well as
promotes integrity and trust. As a newly-
listed entity, we remain committed
towards operating in accordance with
best practices to uphold the highest
level of ethical conduct, accountability,
transparency and sound risk management
systems as recommended by the Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Code [the
“Code”).

As a result of our efforts, we achieved
1S09001:2015 certification on 6 July 2017
for our ability to consistently provide
quality services that fulfil all stakeholder
requirements.
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SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability has always been part of the Kingsley DNA. We
believe in delivering positive change to those around us, no
matter how small it may be. Since our establishment, we
have focused our sustainability efforts on environmental and
social issues, ranging from world hunger to providing aid to
the less-fortunate communities and even, wildlife activism.

Across all our activities, we focused our actions to ensure
it impacted positively on the development of quality human
capital. Here, it was not just about the act of reaching out
to help but also, ensuring our stakeholders understood its
importance and the rationale behind our actions as this
helped in inculcating positive values such as empathy,
respect and compassion throughout Kingsley. In this regard,
we worked to ensure that all our students, faculty, employees
and even the larger community including parents took part
in our outreach activities.

ASEERE

IEER—EANAESSNEERRE . RMEREFESRREDNES, 1
THEE2@EMN . BRIILIR, HAETITFEERERBARRELS
fRE, $EESHRNEIOREHEREEY, EETEHRELE.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEERSE

EREREES, HMBORERKMANTHHEBANDEANEREEIED
FE. HANTHTEERMLENCTF, TRPERERMEOETHRES
EMREMTHEENERE, SEMREESXIEERBL. BERNESED
BE. plitt, HMSHBEAESEE. HED. EERBEXSAERNERARE
SEHFIREREE.

LOOKING AHEAD

In an increasingly competitive global environment, we
recognise that quality education has become an important
tool to help nations realise their transformative efforts,
as it can help generate higher incomes, create better jobs
and foster entrepreneurship - factors that can strengthen
economic growth.

Backed by supportive policies introduced by the Malaysian
government which encouraged the establishment of
international schools in Malaysia, we believe that student
enrolment in international schools in Malaysia is expected
to grow at a CAGR of 15.2% between 2017 and 2021, while
in the state of Selangor where Kingsley is located, it could
reach 44,808 in 2021, from only 10,615 in 2012. This is mainly
attributed by the fact that Malaysia has become a popular
destination for international students who want to pursue
secondary education given the use of English as the medium
of instruction, the wide variety of curriculum available, a
well-established international school system, lower tuition
fee and cost of living.
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Chairman’s Statement
TREHRESE

WE WILL CONTINUE TO FOCUS ON
INCREASING OUR INTERNATIONAL
STUDENT ENROLMENT BY ENGAGING
WITH PARTNERS ACROSS ASIA,
NAMELY CHINA, HONG KONG,
INDIA, VIETNAM AND CAMBODIA,
EMPHASIZING STRONGLY ON
OUR NEW BOARDING OPTIONS
AND FACILITIES AT THE NEW KIS
ANNEX BUILDING.

TR E RN B E E PRI TR
ASEIEIN, 2ZAIRFHLEMNLE. &
Bhez EFE85E, @iEeaTnM (BIFRE.
BE. DE. BERRHEE) BH#S
£, EEEAHMKISHBEXRIZHHRS
RegiE, HPSEESEIFRNBNESEH
BRELE,

With the demand for quality international schools expected to increase across
the region, this bodes well for Kingsley. Building on this upward momentum,
we will continue to focus on increasing our international student enrolment by
engaging with partners across Asia, namely China, Hong Kong, India, Vietnam
and Cambodia, emphasising strongly on our new boarding options and facilities
at the new KIS Annex Building. In fact, our listing in Hong Kong has already
given us a firm footing to expand into Asia given the rising demand for quality
international schools that use English as its medium of instruction.

Cognisant of the volatile economic outlook, we strongly believe that education
will be the new game changer in driving economic growth and human capital
development, both in Malaysia and across Asia. Guided by our experienced
management team at Kingsley, we remain centred on achieving our strategic
priorities, improve efficiencies and build on our competitive advantage.

In this regard, | am proud of what we have achieved thus far. We have put in
place strong foundations that will drive sustainable performance in the long
run. We have raised the bar to accelerate efforts to deliver on plans which
have already been put into motion. Henceforth, | am confident of our ability to
cement our position as a provider of higher quality education in Asia.
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We believe

that student
enrolment in
international
schools in
Malaysia is
expected to grow
at a CAGR of
15.2% between
2017 and 2021.

HoPIRIE AR
ERINSEANE T
HEHL2017EZE=20214F
VIEGFIBRE15.2%
ER.

R

EHHRFHESRINEIRRE, RPIEEEIEBENHEEH
AEPEREBREENEETH, BENABRAENES
ESHA, AEEFNITEREERERG, Mzt
SIRECRERMEE.

E RS AR PR B 43 e BN 7 S 2R P o s B R AR HEE L AT ER
FEROZEFT, HMEEERATZEESRINZAH
TR 2017 FEZ2021F LIS FIBRFI5.2%IER, M
EELPAAEMSREMN, NBEABGEGE201254091£10,615
MNIBZE202154944,808 N, AARNHE . REAATER
2. TENEFSREE. BIRNSEREERES, BES
R AT B R PR EHEREERHPIR M .

FERE(E RSN HEEEEERIIBRGSIEM, 220K
REINVERE . FEENFZ LA SR, BIBEREEN ( BDhE.
. ME. MRNRIESE) BHESIE, ZERFHKISH
BARIERFIRE NRIE, RISEEEINBRESERS
%. FELE, ERHERREFAHEESNESEESER
HIFmRAE L, HFIESE LHERBRETNEE TR
EROER,

EHEBAEERISR, RMBEHESHIRITN, EEHER
PR EEEMNAEERERRADERERE . H252ERE
ENEEEFRFET, HASNREREREEE, BN

ERATIER MR FES

FULMS, AAHEMAERNAMERES. HMATSRER
RFASERREE T RENER . HMAESER, INEs
FREMNETEINAE. 5%, FATRED, HMERER
FRENEEHNERBHERRIML.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, our
experienced management team as well as our
dedicated team of teachers and employees for
your unwavering support and commitment.
We would also like to extend our heartfelt
gratitude to our valued stakeholders - our
shareholders, students, parents, suppliers,
financiers and government authorities - for
your continued trust in us.

Chairman’s Statement
FTEERSE

For us at Kingsley, we are transforming the
education sector for the future generations.
As part of the broader strategy in driving
quality education services, we remain
committed to deliver a holistic, real-world
education experience to our learners as this
will not only empower them but also create a
new generation of entrepreneurial achievers.

Looking forward, we are very clear on our
strategic priorities. We are well-positioned
to capitalise on new growth opportunities,
drive performance and ultimately, deliver on
long-term shareholder value.

RABRIRERERESE, BHSNUEEEC. £Re
ENEEEKRLUR SRR ESEE, BaiRFIERE
TN ERER .. BMTORMEE0F S0 - K
MRS . B4 KR, HER. YBERRBUFEER
TRRORIRRS, RS RPIEIPI—ELRIIEE.

FES, HMRTEMANEAT—BEESRkAEEE. F
REDESUERBEZRIRI—ED, BMREEUIRN
OELRMEEY. BYSRESNHEERER, STER
OIS EER, TR E—RESR.

R, WPEBEEHMIBREE . RMEHMTFR
DEE, LRBHERESIESXEIER, WREEIR
REARSEEE.

TAN SRI BARRY GOH
Chairman

PHEFR RSP =5



16 KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED EXEISHEEX£EETRAR

www.kingsley.edu.my @é

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBTRNE DN

ESTABLISHED IN 2010 AND LISTED ON THE GEM OF THE HONG
KONG STOCK EXCHANGE ("STOCK EXCHANGE") ON 16 MAY 2018,
KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED’S (“KINGSLEY” OR “THE GROUP”)
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES ARE FOCUSED IN TWO KEY AREAS,
NAMELY NURSERY TO A-LEVEL PROGRAMMES AT KINGSLEY
INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL ("KIS”) AND TERTIARY EDUCATION
PROGRAMMES THROUGH KINGSLEY TERTIARY.

ELEEHELEEEFRLAH ( [ Kingsley | 2 [ &&E | ) 122010
R, WHR2018FE5B16HMR BB ( [ B k| ) GEML
h, EEEEHBEDIMmERRRER, Bt Kingsley International
School ( KIS ] ) 2tiERAEA-levelRiEREIBKingsleyE &
BRRHESEHERE

DR. CHUA PING YONG
ZkEEL

President & Executive Director #3s#{7ES

Over the last few years, we made good
progress in delivering quality education
services in Malaysia. Our efforts saw strong
growth despite the challenging economic
environment, in Malaysia and across the
region.

RIBEHEF, RIEBRATRUEERBIUBERES
ENERIFER. EEBKATREEBERNKERRE
FempkEL, BRSNS ESIER.

BUSINESS MODEL

Given the steady growth experienced in
the private education services industry
in Malaysia and the region, Kingsley has
emerged asan established private education
service provider in Malaysia with a proven
track record and strong growth potential.
At Kingsley, we believe that holistic
education is important in cultivating a new
generation of entrepreneurial achievers
equipped with the right knowledge, skills,
leadership qualities and strong values that
will help them realise their potential in an
increasingly connected environment.

Guided by our long-term goal of becoming
an established private education service
provider in Asia, our efforts were anchored
on delivering on our strategic priorities,
which are essentially built on two key pillars
- Kingsley Schools and Kingsley Tertiary.

EBR
ERERACTRENRHLABERBOCEELRBEE
K, KingsleyBriatEciERIFAERYIERE NN
BARARE R ABRBMHER .. iKKingsley, M
BEEEHNEHEERMBERNH. K. BENER
BABESNFT—AEEREEEE, SHEMREERN
A= MRS TERE CAE

EHMRBIENNERHEEREHEFNREEZE
51T, BANTEUBSHEEBKREHAER, T2ERT
{ERFESZH — KingsleyZ2iE Kk KingsleyaE#H B -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Core Business Component What We Do

B EFS B RER S HFRTE

Kingsley Schools Kingsley International School (“KIS”] is a well-established school known for scholastic
Kingsley2#: excellence, effective learner-led education coupled with a strong culture of character

building. Located in Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia, we offer education from Early
Years up to International General Certificate of Secondary Education (ICGSE) O and
A levels. Our school is Cambridge-certified, consisting of a progressive teaching and
learning community. We are focused on strengthening our brand and emerge as one
of the leaders in the private education sector in Asia, given our passion and dedication
in revolutionising this sector for the future generations.

Kingsley International School ( [KIS | ) R—REIE2, DEHEik. BNBEFEHEEREZIN
SRR NAEE . BOURERARSHHMNRBEE, RERAEHEEEHELHEE(ICGSE)ORA
level B .. RMSREREZE, SEMELHSEE . HARHREERMOEE, WAREMEIEEH
BEET—, ARBMUEINMERARERE .

Kingsley Tertiary Focused on providing cradle to career education, Kingsley Tertiary consist of Kingsley

Kingsley=&#& Skills College, Kingsley Professional Centre and Kingsley College. Armed with the
relevant accreditations, Kingsley Tertiary offers Technical Education with Skills
Training (“TEST"), Technical and Vocational Education and Training ("TVET"); and also,
professional development courses, all of which are focused on developing enterprising
mindsets and new skills that will allow students to remain relevant in the working
world.
KingsleyeS# B8R HZEHERIEE, BEKingsley Skills College. Kingsley Professional Centre
KKingsley College. HHLASIENERZRE, KingsleySSHaRMIRMHERIEES ( [ TEST | ) | RATHZER
Bl ( [TVET ] ) ; URBHERESRRE, ERENEERREAEEHINI, BREETFREHIEE
B,

Capitalising on the growth themes experienced in the private education services sector in Asia,
amplified further by Malaysia’s rising popularity as an education hub for pre-university education, we
intensified our efforts to fortify our position in the last 12 months.

As the first Malaysian-based education service provider to be listed on the Stock Exchange, we

strengthened our key business segments by ensuring the construction of the KIS Annex Building will O Giers Sawy

be completed by the fourth quarter of 2018 and operational by the first quarter of 2019, introduced strong growth
new partnerships, established a new learning approach and also strengthened our teaching faculty despite the
during the period under review. Despite the highly competitive environment, we took actions to challenging
strengthen our competitive advantage for future growth. economic
environment,
; I R S AR 7 AR 2 x= o ¢ ERTER S Es N TR - in Malaysia and
RTCEINEIAERFEECNIZRES, NEERADMAHEMENASERAERO, HAERX12ER8 IR TIFRE .
) N across the region.
HAIRIHEAL .
. \ ; PR R 2Bt

VERERITERN P LB S B IR HER , RIPIEIRKISH B A IEERA2018FE NS TUWR2019FE—=E/AE T
A, B, SINFHEERE. BumSEnE, WRANSEASRESMINEEERE ., BERTHZ, BRAMNARIIERERN B (BIFIRIEHE

TENIMEGRFES . SEMER.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BAFSIRIR
Revenue g

Revenue of the Group for FY2018 was approximately RM30.0 REER2018H BFENKEZRLA30.0884E, ERREE20175468308
million, representing a slight increase of approximately 0.7% LWEEE ( [ 20179 BEE | ) 81814929 8E B ST IENNLI0.7% . FfIAIK
from approximately RM29.8 million recorded for year ended R B @MSEWEVREE R [)(1) KingsleySR K& (il) Kingsley S8 B #IBE LR
30 June 2017 ("FY2017"). Our revenue generated from tuition MECER, KISARERKGENEERE.

fees collected from our students and ancillary services

provided to our students at (i) Kingsley Schools and (ii)

Kingsley Tertiary, with KIS as the main contributor to Group

revenue.
2018 £ 2017 &
RM &% RM &%
Kingsley Schools KingsleyZ#: 29,864,791 26,802,388
Kingsley Tertiary Kingsley=S#& 142,450 2,992,604
Total 485t 30,007,241 29,794,992

Year ended 30 June #Z=6830HILEE

2018 &£ 2017 £
% of % of
Revenue Revenue
6= pa)nd U6 =Palnd
Tuition Fees &% 21,201,271 70.7% 21,850,083 73.3%
Ancillary Services BER# 8,805,970 29.3% 7,944,909 26.7%
Total 4zt 30,007,241 100.0% 29,794,992 100.0%

The Group’s revenue from tuition fees represented approximately 70.7% of its total revenue for FY2018 as compared to that
of approximately 73.3% for FY2017. The slight decrease in revenue from tuition fee was mainly attributable to the decrease in
tuition fee from the tertiary education component.

The Group’s revenue from ancillary services represented approximately 29.3% of its total revenue for FY2018 as compared to
approximately 26.7% for FY2017. The increase in revenue from ancillary services was mainly attributable to the increase in
student enrolment at KIS which led to revenue growth from ancillary services such as extra-curricular activities, meal plans
and resources fee.

REER B2 AN (E2018B B EHUEE4070.7% , HBEL2017 BB FEIRIS4373.3% . Wa/ MBS DEERRARSSHE ML EREE .

REERBRERBIM G201 88 BIF E4IEE4929.3% , 1BEL2017 M BIFEIRIS4926.7% . BCERBAIMESIEINTHEZHERKISBEANSIEN, HERER
7 (WERINEE). BREREHE ) POKESER.
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Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

The majority of the Group's cost of revenue primarily consists of teaching staff
cost, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and other operational
expenses. The cost of revenue increased by approximately 17.9% from
approximately RM12.3 million for FY2017 to approximately RM14.5 million for
FY2018, mainly due to the increase in teaching staff costs which is in line with
increase in student enrollment in international school.

The Group's gross profit decreased from approximately RM17.5 million for
FY2017 to approximately RM15.5 million for FY2018. The Group’s gross profit
margin decreased from approximately 58.6% for FY2017 to approximately
51.7% for FY2018 mainly attributable to lower revenue generated from tertiary
due to decrease in number of students sign up for training conducted.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBTRE DN

WEs A R BFIZR
REBARBO WA EEORBHIIARAAE . Y.
RS R R T E TN EIERS . WeaSRA 201784
BEFEL2. 3EBSEIBMEI7.9%E2018 B BIEFE
#14.5B8CH, TEANHE T MARERRERIE
EABIBII—EL.

REBRERBH2017 FBFEERL7 5FESH /LD
E2018BEFENL15.6BE8CH . AEERIEF=
2017 EEA058.6 % 8 iR > =201 8B B FF EAY
51.7%, TEHERRISIEIOASROHE S
SYEEMARD BRI TR .

Other Revenue and Gains

The Group’s other income increased from approximately RM6.0 million in
FY2017 to approximately RMé6.3 million in FY2018, representing an increase of
approximately RM0.3 million or 5.0%. The increase was mainly due to one-off
other revenue generated from Learning Management System ("LMS").

ELfthN\ e iz
AEEEMWNBE2017HBEENE.0EBSE
BME2018HMEFELI6.3EESE, N0.35S
SENR5.0%. WNMDEERRRBBEERR
( [LMS | ) EER—RIEE bias .

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased from approximately
RMO0.3 million for FY2017 to approximately RMO0.4 million for FY2018. The
increase was attributable to additional advertising during FY2018.

HERDHFN

REBEHER DIEFHXH2017HBFELN0.35ESH
EINE2018 MFEEL0.4BECH . IBINTEmER
20188 I & TRRINE S

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of our Group increased from approximately RM7.2
million for FY2017 to approximately RM16.8 million for FY2018. The increase
was mainly due to non-recurring listing expenses recognised during FY2018
and increase in staff costs during the year.

1TIFEsZ

AEB TR 2017 BEEL7 CE SO SN
2018 B EA16. 8BS H . LFHBERMI2018
BB R R A R M ETRBISZ AR B TR -

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased from approximately RM4.6 million in FY2017 to
approximately RM3.4 million in FY2018. The decrease in the finance costs was
mainly due to the interest capitalisation of loan as a result of the resumption
on the construction of the KIS Annex Building.

FERAS

BRERAR2017 B FEL4. 685 H ML E2018
HMHFENSARESE . BMEMRNRD DEZEHR
KISHf AR Ik {EE T EUE &R S E AR MUTE

Income Tax

Effective income tax for FY2018 was approximately 8.4% compared with
0.6% for FY2017. Effective income tax rate for the year ended 30 June 2018
was lower as compared to statutory tax rate mainly due to the depreciation
allowance and business losses brought forward used to set-off the taxable
profit for the year.

PS5

2018 FEERFTSiRR498.4%, BLL#ZE2017
B E#R{5490.6% . #ZE201856830H IEFER
BIEFESRRERIGEERE, DEEMIBREN
FRERRT AT E R AN B RIRTE .

Profit attributable to the Owners of the Company

Profitattributable to the owners of the Company decreased from approximately
RM11.0 million for FY2017 to approximately RM1.5 million for FY2018. The
decrease was mainly contributed by (i) increase in teaching staff cost, and (ii)
non-recurring listing expenses recognised during FY2018.

RARES NE(GEFR
ARNEEENEEENH2017TYBEEL1.05ES
FRLE2018HFELN . OEESH . FEIDEER
ERIBS (i) 28088k Tk A B AN (i) i 201 8 BA U [ RERR I FAS
B LRI
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Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for FY2018.

www.kingsley.edu.my @é

iRE
EESNEHIRE2018M B E R TRIBRE

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group funded liquidity for FY2018 and capital requirements primarily
through internally generated funds from operating activities and proceeds
from the Listing.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total cash and bank balances of
approximately RM35.2 million compared to approximately RMé.7 million as
at 30 June 2017. The increase was mainly due to the net proceeds received
from the Listing. The borrowings of our Group as at 30 June 2018 was
approximately RM87.5 million as compared to RM69.6 million as at 30 June
2017, representing an increase of approximately RM17.9 million. This increase
was due to an additional new banking facility secured by the Group.

The gearing ratio of the Group for FY2018 was approximately 128.3% as
compared to approximately 219.9% for FY2017. As a result of the increased
equity following the Listing, our Group’s gearing ratio had decreased.

nRBEE . UBERRERGHE
REEEEEERPEEEFHEETNES RN LTS
MIER2018MMEEREEST N EATRRMES

1R201856B30H, AEMRE RIRTHEKRBIRNS
35.2HB<E, HR2017468308MM6.7E88S
Ho BINBEEERRE LHAERIEFE. REER
201856 H30HRIEAIR87.6B8B<E, 1BH2017
F6H30HM69.6E8CE, HEREINMT7.088S
o HBRINTIRARAERBES—EMHIRTRIE

REEG2018HKFENELABELELIR128.3%,
HEECRS 2017 BB F ERYA0219.9% » BN EF{EHERRIR
m, AEBERERSEHERTRE,

Treasury Policies

The Group employed a prudent treasury policies and generally financed its
operations and businesses with internally generated funds, equity and debt
financing denominated in RM and arranged on a floating-rate basis. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into any derivative transactions for speculative
purposes.

EEFSHER

AEERAEENERER, T—RUNBEESS.
RIERIAS SHELRFBF XA SHNEBMERESE
EREBREES . FEBRBERIARSIREBRET
HATERS -

Capital Commitments

Our capital commitments primarily relate to the construction of KIS Annex
Building. The following table sets out a summary of our capital commitments
as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
WEBHIZE . RS IR IBHYRIE

EXRIE

HFNEARIEE R AR EKISHEAIEER . TR
P52 20184263308 K 2017465 30 A TG AR
Z,

2018 & 2017 &
RM &% RM &%
10,649,557 26,025,887

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

ARG
REER20185F6 B30 HMMBBAT AR EE (20174 +
).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currencies of our operations, assets and liabilities are mostly
denominated in Ringgit Malaysia (RM). Therefore, we were not exposed to
any significant foreign exchange risk, except for our Hong Kong Dollar (HKD)
denominated bank balances. The Group did not engage in any derivatives
agreements and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure throughout FY2018.

4 EEE [ B

HMEE. EENSBEINEERAR D UIBRAES
&5 (LF) &HE. FEit, RIMIBT (BT) sHER
TR, MU EEEREUERIMNERIR, NEEL
E2EEETET AR, BlEimEgsmIaLL
AR EE201 8B L F RIS NERS -
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a work force of 173 employees as compared
with 147 employees as at 30 June 2017. Total staff costs for FY2017 and
FY2018 were approximately RM8.3 million and RM11.0 million respectively.
Remuneration was determined with reference to market terms, performance,
qualification and experience of each individual employees.

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENHRS I

{ & MBI ER

K20185F6H30H, AEEHER173&EE, MH2017
FOR30BEA147ERE . 2017 HBFER 2018811
FEMNETHAEEDHNBE IFBLERI.0AES
. FMSEDHRGER. SERIRESHER. BERE

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries and Associated Companies, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held as at 30 June 2018 nor
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during FY2018. There was
no plan for material investment or capital assets as at 30 June 2018.

FSERRE. EXNBRUEEHBATREKE
ARAREXRE SN EREERIRRETE
R20185F6 B30 AMEMITERIRE, R2018HHEFE
B AWEER HEMBAE. 1KR20185F6H30H M
FUERENELAEE S,

Events After the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2018
The Board is not aware of any significant event subsequent to 30 June 2018
and up to the date of this report.

#ZE2018F6H30H LM FEEEIR
120186 B30 AEREZEAREA, EFFW AR
FHAEEFE.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Listing

The issued ordinary shares of the Company were successfully listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018 (“Listing Date”) at HK$0.40 per share.
The proceeds (net of listing expenses] were approximately RM31.4 million.
As stated in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 April 2018, the Company intends to continue
to apply the net proceeds in accordance with the proposed allocations set out
below.

RSB FEERE
ARENEEHTEBRMAING2018F58168 ([ £
BH | ) ZRER0.40BTTEMSIFIGEM L, FT{SHK
15 (B LM ) RN AEESE . HUARS
HEAD20185F4 B30RAVEREEN [ RGNS
IR | —8pTd, AN EIEER T X ATEEE
S ECRERMSIR TR

Since the Listing Date to FY2018 was relatively short, the net proceeds had yet to be utilised as follows:
EHRE2018MMEEREIRIBEEIE, FLtEREIBREMRIEFE:

Amount of
Net Proceeds Amount
allocated utilised up to Balance as at
upon listing 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
(RM million)] (RM million)] (RM million)]
E S ERAY BZE2018%68 72018568
Use of Net Proceeds FRSRIRREE 30REEHAEE 308/
PRSI RS (BESE) (BESE) (BESE)
Settlement of fees for constructing the KIS Annex Building 12.0 - 12.0
EEKISH BAIERIERER
Renovation of The KIS Annex Building 15.0 - 15.0
EKISHIEAIE
Purchase of facilities for KIS Annex Building 4.4 - 4.4
BEKISHBAIEZRIE
Total &t 31.4 - 31.4
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STRONG SUPPORT FROM THE
MALAYSIAN GOVERNMENT IN RECENT
YEARS, INCLUDING PROVISION OF
INVESTMENT TAX ALLOWANCES
FOR INTERNATIONAL SCHOOLS
BY THE MALAYSIAN INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ("MIDA")
AND REMOVAL OF 40% ENROLMENT
CAP FOR MALAYSIAN STUDENTS
IN INTERNATIONAL SCHOOLS
SINCE 2012 WHICH RESULTED
IN  SIGNIFICANT INCREASE IN
STUDENT  ENROLMENT AT
INTERNATIONAL SCHOOLS.

BB AR SR R PR R SR S R 2R P R
BREAN, SEBRATREERRE
B ( [MIDA ] ) BERERIRHEHRE
RERBLIKRB2012F2EEEMRERE
RA0%MBRATEREREAH L
R, SHERERNBEREABKIE
t&nn.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Across the Asian region, the private education services continued to experience
strong growth as the fast-growing middle-class segment were increasingly
aware on the importance of a well-rounded education. Given Malaysia’s
strategic position, backed by a strong economy, political stability and the
wide-use of English as a medium of instruction, the government focused on
positioning Malaysia as an education hub in Southeast Asia for parents seeking
foreign education for their children, setting a student enrolment target of
75,000 by 2020.

To this effect, international schools in Malaysia received strong support from
the Malaysian government in recent years, including provision of Investment
Tax Allowances for international schools by the Malaysian Investment
Development Authority ("MIDA”) and removal of 40% enrolment cap for
Malaysian students in international schools since 2012 which resulted in
significant increase in student enrolment at international schools.

EF3EIRE

AREEME, EEREERNTEREFMEHIISEAENERYE, RIMBERBESRS
SEENER . SEICBARMEAYEMI, RN, BUATRENEZ B F AR IS
T, WNEERAFLSFINELENRE, TEBRAENARERIMETY, FE2020581K
75, 000A .

RBlt, BRADNERSRICFESERADE AN, BEBRARRERERES ( [MIDA] )
B ERSERIR R B BIRERLUN B 20125 REUERE2R40% A BRI ESERE A LR,
B EREARAYESAEIRAE ABUKIRIENN .
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KINGSLEY INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL (KIS)

Strengthening our Position as a High-Quality Education Service Provider,
backed by Strong Student Performance

At KIS, we understand that education today is not just about textbooks and
deriving knowledge from teachers, but instead, allowing children to attain
their full potential through 21st century experiential learning facilities and
technologies. We know that parents are looking for a progressive education
curriculum that encourages critical thinking and problem-solving skills
through a combination of co-curricular programmes that complement their
children’s learning experience.

Given these developments, it has indeed been an exciting period for KIS. Since
2013 where we had only 429 students, we continued to experience strong
student enrolment, growing to more than 900 students for FY2018. In terms
of international student base, as at 30 April 2018, South Korea and Japan
ranked as our top two sources of overseas students. Hence, based on overall
current student enrolment, KIS ranked 29th out of 116 international schools
in Malaysia, and 13th out of the 37 international schools in Selangor where we
are based during the year in review.

KINGSLEY INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL (KIS)

LEEARSERER, ZERMMFSEEHNSRIBEMEROI

RKIS, HMPARSHETBRERLRSRLAMHERIE, MEEREER2HCHIEREE
RIBFIRHREE . HFIHNE, REIEASHTEMEXHEHRE, BRESHRSESRIAME
EFRARRERIRED, HERERREEERIEN .

BLERHKISTESRER—EHE A O, 2013FHMRE429884%, HMEERITRDA
&, F2018M I FEIRINERBO00RRE . EREKEEENTHE, R20185F4830H, EERAX
REPMABINRERIR. AL, DEEREASRE, ROEFE, KISHERII89MBIMER
PHERE29, WHREIPTESRFRMNAIS7BRIRERTHE 13,

The growth experienced was mainly due to the strength of our academic
programmes and quality teaching across our core subjects, namely math,
science and English at both primary and secondary schools. Our ability to
enhance students’ academic experience has benefitted our students as a
number of them achieved a higher distinction rate (attaining A or A*] than
the cumulative world percentage as released by Cambridge International
Examinations, which were 14 subjects out of 18 in 2015, 11 subjects out of
17 in 2016 and 12 out of 17 subjects in 2017.

In fact, a number of our graduates who have achieved 8A* and 9A* in their
Cambridge ICGSE have been accepted to some of the prestigious universities
worldwide such as London School of Economics and Political Science,
University College London, University of Hong Kong, Royal College of Surgeons
in Ireland, University of Otago (New Zealand), York University and University of
Queensland in Australia.

Apart from academic pursuits, our students have also demonstrated strong
achievements in other activities where they emerged as Overall winners in the
national championship for Smart Kids Asia Talent Quest 2017 as well finalists

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DT

in various activities such as Skate Malaysia
2018, Ice Skating Malaysia 2018, Latin
Dance Open Competition 2018, Century
Cup Chinese Diablo Open Competition
2018, Serdang Open Invitation Taekwondo
Championship 2017 and National Robotic
Open Competition, to name a few.

KISHIIE REZ R B HFIBATRRABEANE AR FAFI
ZORE (B NEMEa. REKREE) NEER
8. KfIRASLESHERBIRE D ERMINBESZE,
MO PERUSEEME (ASIAR ) FES SRS
BAREEEEHESEMBEMHIRASEKEDLL (2015
FHISHFE4R, 2016FH17RIPBENERL, 2017F
HA7TRFE12RL)

FEL, RAETEEEEIBICCSERIS8A* KR IA*
PRAE, FHEMEZABEER, AIINBABAKESR. @
HAREL. HEAR. EMMEFRIMISESM. BiE
FARB (AE ) A AEREMNEBLEASE,

BREMBRI, HMBEEEMFTERPISHEDL K
#, GIANE2017FEIMIREREAFELLE ( Smart
Kids Asia Talent Quest 2017 ) £EEERIETE,

DRRESETESIRE, N2018FHERAERRIK
E (Skate Malaysia 2018) . 2018FE &8
7kE (Ilce Skating Malaysia 2018) . 20185 T £
,\BFE (Latin Dance Open Competition 2018 ) .

2018 F LM ERE 2R ARME (Century
Cup Chinese Diablo Open Competition 2018 ) .

2017 E LRSI EEIRIZE ( Serdang Open
Invitation Taekwondo Championship 2017 ) K 2 E#
M A2 BIE (National Robotic Open Competition )
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PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS

Since 2013 where we had only 429 students,
we continued to experience strong student
enrolment, growing to more than 900
students for FY2018.

2013FHMRBL202 2%, KFHEERITED
BE, F2018MEFEIZINEBIBI00EEE .
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Delivering Added Value with the
Completion of the KIS Annex Building
As part of its expansion plans,
KIS moved into its new campus in
September 2015 which comprises
of one 10-storey block with a total
of 104 classrooms and facilities that
aid in the holistic development of our
students. With a maximum capacity of
2,600 students, we had more than 900
students enrolled at KIS during the
year under review.

To add value to student life at KIS,
the KIS Annex Building will be
completed by the fourth quarter of
2018 and operational by the first
quarter of 2019. With a total gross
floor area of approximately 533,007
square feet, the KIS Annex Building
comprises of dormitory rooms with
accommodation for approximately 883
students, classrooms with capacity
for approximately 667 students, an
Olympic-sized pool, a gymnasium
and other facilities. The KIS Annex
Building is located next to a 27-acre
linear park that will facilitate outdoor
activities such as basketball and
futsal, to name a few.

KISPEEA12i2 TREITNE
TEREIEZEET I —B, KISIR2015F9R8EAN
WIRE, ETeE—S10EBIXE, £E104/
HELREHELELEERNRE. IENSE
EIR%2,600%, HMIREIEFEBBI00ZSEE
NEKIS,

RIBINCKISHRELTFERE, KISKHEXER
BH2018FRE—FERT, WH2019F5—=E
FEBIRAER . KISKBXERNEEREmENR
533,007F 3R, BIEDTEMNLI8E3ZRERTE
. JRNN66TZRENHE . —ERKTR
R, —(EEEEEREMRIE. KISHBAE
BRI 2 7 AR AR, PIE(TEEERFNITA
EREFINEE.

The establishment of student dormitory
at the KIS Annex Building is expected
to facilitate the learning process at

KIS, enrich campus life for students with the availability of additional extra-curricular
activities while at the same time, offer added convenience and security for parents
and students. New activities such as Aikido, Robotics, Yoga, Scale/ Clay Modelling and
others have also been included for the benefit of students. The KIS Annex Building
will also be fully equipped with a new facilities management system, to ensure more
efficient and effective usage.

We believe that the new KIS Annex Building will strengthen our position and is key to
unlocking Kingsley's future growth in the international school market in Malaysia and
the region. As the KIS Annex Building is expected to come into use in the first quarter
of 2019, it is set to attract both Malaysian and non-Malaysian students which in turn
will broaden our revenue base. In fact, boarding fees is expected to be a new source
of revenue for the Group.

KISHBRBREEE(RESERE, RUEIMIBINESNESESENRELTE, BNAREREERM
EZENIRE. 8TEERNZE, SIAGRE. #HA. Bl 25/ BEEmEE . KISKBXEISE
HEIHRIEEERR, HREFEENENIEE .

HMREMIOKISH BRI ZE R M, WEEKKIngsley it BRARRENBFERHBARTIER.
FRKISHIEAIETERIS2019F B —FERNER, SRSIBRAREAIMNIRE, EMEARMOKEE
. AR, EBEEENRTEBAIH SRR,

To facilitate interest and increase student enrolment, especially international
students, we worked closely with our partners and recruitment agents across the
Middle East, China and also other countries in South East Asia where we extensively
marketed our new dormitory and facilities during the year under review. Capitalising
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on our listing on the Stock Exchange, not only did we emerge as the first Malaysia-based education
service provider to do so, but it has also enabled us to gain higher recognition amongst prospective
international students and attract prospective business partners in Asia.

As Malaysia has carved a name for itself as a destination of choice for international students in East Asia
and other countries in Southeast Asia to pursue ICGSE and A-levels programmes, we believe that there
will be sufficient demand for boarding facilities, both for the short-and-long-term development of KIS.

REFSLEEWIIZINBEAY (XEERSEE ) , HfEPR, PEUNRBEEMEARNSERARBERERESE, MK
PR ERFEEEZSEREZEERFINEENRIE. KPIREEECEMEBIS T LS RARABIRFMER, B
SERESE SR IR EEMNEIEER S .

FARS R 2R EE B AR R o AR ae AR MBI B2 I CGSERA-leve RN BIZ BRI, HMIBEERENEFRIEEK
BHKISKRIGHAZERE .

Forging Ahead with New Partnerships and Collaborations
During the year in review, we forged new partnerships and collaborations with global education
institutions.

To further complement our efforts in providing our students with additional pathways to enhance their
education, Kingsley International Sdn Bhd entered into an agreement with Australia’s RMIT Training
Pty Ltd to conduct the RMIT Foundation Studies Programme at the KIS campus in June 2018. This
makes KIS the first international school in Malaysia to have RMIT Foundation Studies within the same
campus.

Open to both international and local students, the programme will now give students a head start right
after finishing their secondary school as they now have the opportunity to gain Foundation Studies
qualification from Australia’s prestigious RMIT University, all within the same campus. Expected to
begin in September 2018, we believe this will increase our student enrolment in the next two to three
years.

During the year in review, we also entered into a collaboration with Hailiang Education Group Inc
(“Hailiang”) from China for an educational and cultural tour programme. The five-day intensive
programme, which will begin in October 2018 will provide students from both KIS and Hailiang
insights into a wide array of different cultural and community perspectives, multi-faceted learning
approaches, increase their self-confidence and more. This programme will initially be carried out over
the next three years.

BRI HESERE
REREFE, BfIESkaHER I IRnER SRR,

AE—ERERMAEERMBEINTERELINGRMBERIZE I, Kingsley International Sdn BhdEEEMAIRMIT Training Pty Ltd
sTaztag, LUR201856 BEKISKREMERMITERRRE . KISEIbAA B EEIRE—RERMERRMI TERRIZA0EPRER .

ez O EISAI A SEAR, BAERETMPEFRETANE, RERERERNINZHRMITAEERREEE, WER—K
EPET. TERIR2018FOBRR, REM=FREIBINEENE .

REBEEE, RATETFENESEEERBRAT ( [8= ] ) &fF, HERR—EHERXUIKERE. RPRRNEERE
FH2018F108 5%, HRKISKESMNSERESBARNUAITEER. SHENEESZ, WENRENERE0E. HhE
RIS ERR =2
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Establishment of Kingsley Leadership
Academy Development Programme
Cognisant that students need to
learn about life and issues beyond
the classroom, we introduced the
Kingsley Leadership Academy (“KLA")
programme to encourage learners to
face and solve real-world problems in
their own way. Through KLA, we hope
to develop leadership values in every
individual and empower learners to
become Kingsley leaders who live
and practice positive values.

KLA will be taught via systematic
daily experiences that develop
character, life and business wisdom
amongst the students. Catered
mainly for full boarders at KIS, it has
been designed for learners from Year
7to 9, IGCSE Cambridge & IGCSE O
& A Levels. Only certain parts of this
programme will be made to non-
boarders who commute daily to KIS.

#37Kingsley Leadership AcademyiZ &8z
Kingsley Leadership Academy (KLA)STE#i—(EESEESERE NIMIREAAELRE, RIEEE
FLUAE NS REHIRARERE ., KAGEZEEZBELEEES 42, RRNABBEE, BEEEm
MIEBEE, FRERSIIREN S TSI EARRRIE,

KLABRRRNABEERESR, USESENEN. DEREEEE . FELTZECOKISHEFEEL, B
FIRTEOFAR(EMBAICCSERERIZ, IGCSE O I A KERIZNIBERE . ZAtEUERDSIERER
KISHYAFZ BRI -

Strong in the belief that education should be integrated with more skills and
knowledge of real-life experiences, we have put together a holistic KLA programme
that is catered towards student activities beyond the classroom where learners
will be guided by their Coaches via project-based learnings, flipped classrooms
via Google classroom, blended learning methods, enterprise learnings and more.
In terms of teaching faculty, we have established a pool of 11 new teachers,
comprising both local and foreign teachers who have been well-trained to deliver
this new approach in teaching during the year in review.

HMEE, HUERRMARSHEIREERERMNE, FHMRLT —EERIOKLARE, LInESERE
HNES, HEMSBRIRASE . ERNETRENDERE . RaPEEANEXPEFREERE. £HES
H, FFEZT —ERMSMEEERIHEE, HpEARMINEZHE, HEREER, TR
FEBRIHETE.

Strong Team of Qualified Teachers
In creating a dynamic and holistic education curriculum that is relevant to the
needs as well as aspirations of the future generations, our goal is to develop
students that have strong leadership qualities, infused by strong values and ethics,
and inspired to achieve their goals.

To achieve this, we are backed by a team of 116 passionate, experienced and
forward-thinking teachers who have completely embraced their role as mentors
to our students. Their enduring commitment towards helping our students obtain
a passion for learning and turning their ideas into solutions has been a key factor
strengthening our reputation in the industry.

We also ensured our teachers participated in various training programmes
provided by the University of Cambridge International Examinations (“CIE") as well
as other quality training programmes to help nurture our students. At KIS, newly-
hired teachers are required to undergo mandatory training programmes such as
the CIE Teaching Programmes on Pedagogy and Classroom Management Skills.
Teachers are also kept abreast on the changes of student demands, new teaching
theories and/ or methodologies via various training programmes. We also have in
place an ongoing monitoring and evaluation procedure to ensure the delivery of
our educational programmes are conducted in the right manner.

SRAHYE TS HRRMIE Rk
ERBZ BRI CHFRIREERONERERS, RMNEEREEEAEFEENEBNELE, /A
SARYBERIEERE, LISBSEERER.
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RERERE, AMEEIHENMCZME. KRSSWEAIETENKRERNERCES, ZT2EZFREEEMNAE., RERFNMREEOKENSLERES
EEMBEWREBUABAS R, ERIBERMERERTEENERES.

BN EFRSET2INBERIBEAREEERZES ([ CIE | ) 2HNSER EREUREME N EE2ENEERERE. RKIS, HIEMEMESIIZEEE
WHIREIEEERRE (PIANCIEZERIE (HEEREEET ) ( CIE Teaching Programmes on Pedagogy and Classroom Management Skills ) ) . #EHTRSE
BEERE R T REETROEM . FIBEIERR / ik, BfIMHEREETEHET, BERMANSEZREURESNEE.

KINGSLEY TERTIARY
In line with our cradle-to-career education framework, we have also developed the Kingsley Tertiary which consists of Kingsley
Skills College, Kingsley College and Kingsley Professional Centre — all in the early stages of development.

During the year in review, we acquired various accreditations for Kingsley Tertiary, as follows:
KINGSLEYES#HE
B RPINRE R BISHBEIELS, HFIURFIEKingsleySFHE, BiEKingsley Skills College. Kingsley CollegekKingsley Professional Centre, BRI

FISXHDHAREER -

REREFE, HFIFHKingsleySEHESSIEREIT

¢ Kingsley Skills College was accredited by the Ministry of Human Resource Malaysia to offer certificate programmes by
the Department of Skills Development Malaysia;

¢ Kingsley Professional Centre was accredited as a training provider under the Human Resource Development Limited Act
2003; and

¢ Kingsley College was accredited by Malaysia Qualifications Agency and Pearson Business and Technology Education
Council in the United Kingdom to provide various diploma programmes. We also entered into a cooperation agreement
with Sejong University in Korea for relevant degree programmes.

* Kingsley Skills Collegel&8 B2k A DERERZRZE, AliRM BRI RERINEEFE;
» Kingsley Professional Centref&:255%&2003F ANERERBIRATES (Human Resource Development Limited Act 2003 ) B9 I1448; &
* Kingsley CollegelE BRI ST EISIETE R R @ PearsonE 2B B ERE G5, IRHSECRRE . BT ERAR B URAET S

Fif

Nevertheless, while our efforts have been focused on developing KIS
throughout FY2018, we are of the view that Kingsley Tertiary would
not be a major revenue contributor in the medium term. Given the
highly competitive area for private higher education sector, the Group
is re-evaluating the strategy for the development of Kingsley Tertiary.
In essence, we are finding alternative ways to build our competitive
advantage, as this will provide meaningful upside to our overall

Our goal is to develop
students that have strong
leadership qualities,
infused by strong values

and ethics, and inspired to
performance. achieve their goals.

BEML, BARPREE01SHRELEINERKIS, KR AKIngsleySEH HANBRRERASESESNENSE, BABRK
BROPFRAATENAIE, ERRISSHEELEFNG, AEEEERTE MEERIEERE, WHADSIERREE
KingsleyBE S BEERE. (AAEMHES, RAESREWS FRETRBHEEE
3, AR TR EINTE
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How Kingsley Manages Risks
Given the nature of its business, Kingsley has put in place rigorous risk management procedures to ensure it achieves its
strategic objectives and drive performance.

Kingsley i@ &2 = %
Kingsley EFIEEISNERSIERERF, NHRSREEEBEIESEE.

Risk @& How Kingsley Manages Risks Kingsleyfa&iBm s

Inability to enrol and retain a Taking note of market changes, Kingsley will be enhancing as well as developing new
sufficient number of students programmes and curriculum that will appeal to both students and parents, locally and abroad.
SRR PR With the KIS Annex Building operational in the first quarter of 2019, we will also be offering

new facilities and activities which will be a main attraction for students.
EREITHSEN, KingsleySMsaltBEsiila AR gIN2ERREIFETEIRERE. BEEKISHEAER2019
FE—FERMREE, HMISRERIRIEINEE, RABRENEZRSI.

Inability to recruit and retain To keep pace with the growth of student programmes and maintain teaching quality of KIS,
quality and committed we will ensure our teachers and other personnel gain access to more training as well as
teachers and other personnel Continuous Professional Development programmes. We have also improved our human
HEEE ARG BEER S SHINETR capital development initiatives to create a more balanced work-life environment at Kingsley
Hitigs with the introduction of well-rounded benefits for our employees.

REBESTBERIMETKISHHBER, RISHEERAEIREMESESESIHIILINREEEREE. HIT
MEADEREREERE, RESRMEEEF, LEKIngsleyEEEINIFENTFEERE.

Highly competitive private We have established plans to increase brand awareness across Asia, given given our highly-
education market capable teachers and workforce who have delivered quality programmes. Backed by our team
Rl E iRz of passionate individuals, new and unique facilities as well as enhanced programme delivery,

we believe we are well-placed to compete effectively in the private education market space.
BMNEFLHSERMURIFNAE, BEit, HAEHEABRSREMNNRENEZE. BExRARNEE
B FERESRIRIEN BERRRIEER, KfIMEEEREHERRMEDETERUL—F L.

Exposed to concentration risks The listing of Kingsley on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has enabled us to widen

as our institutions are located our footprint and gain higher recognition across Asia. We are also making strong inroads into
in Subang Jaya, Selangor, other parts of Asia as well as the Middle East.
Malaysia KingsleyiS&BHZZTGEM L1, (FHMIBAESHE, WEDNIESESZRA . P EMESDNE IbE

HREFSESRERREEEE = ANTEIBE.
MiFEBELE, MEEERER

Tertiary business plan may not KIS has been identified as the key growth driver and will remain as such in the near future.

be implemented successfully We are currently rationalising our strategic priorities for Kingsley Tertiary which could also

RN T SR include expanding into online education, given the intense competition in the higher education
space.

KISEERERREIERE, EHNSETTE . BINSSHERIAGRFHR, HFIBRESKIngsleyeF
BHBERBIRERSEN, HPritaRERER LHE.

Future Prospects

We have made good progress in the last 12 months. Some of these have been augmented by the strong economic growth in Malaysia,
supported by continuous infrastructure development and economic activities. Recognising the importance of education in driving
human capital development, attracting foreign direct investment and fuelling economic growth, the Malaysian government is expected
to increase its annual expenditure in this segment continuously between 2017 and 2021 at a CAGR of 1.2%’ reaching RM61.6 billion in
2021. In light of this, we believe that student enrolment at international schools may reach approximately 108,792 by 2021 from only
27,804 in 20122
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Taking advantage of the uptrend in the private education services segment,
we believe it presents a wide breadth of opportunities for us to fortify our
position as a leading private education service provider in the region. As
KIS has been identified as one of the key growth drivers for the Group, we
will focus on increasing our student enrolment and target to have at least
300 boarders at our dormitories located in the new KIS Annex Building in
the next two to three years, where the majority will consist of international
students. We believe that the new facilities which include accommodation,
sporting amenities and activity rooms at the KIS Annex Building will not
only be a strong key attraction for both local and international students,
but also add new revenue growth streams for the Group.

BT

KRMEBX12ERRERIFER. . EFENERREEEIIGCIEE ST T, SRR
IR RIEAS SRR, EREIHEEEBANERERE. RSN EERREMNRERE
BEHEMNEEE, BRATBAFFERTE2017E2021 FRFEIEINE I EENFER,
LIEEFIERF1 2% EE2021F/I616[ES T . BRI, HPMEEERSEREAYSE
H20128°/927,804 NEZE2021543108,792 A

FERIHERFEXEN LTES, RMBEEARMREEZINE, 2EXRMEREN
FARPHERBEEHAMY . BRKISCEREAAEBRBIERENZ—, HfIEE
ERRSREAY, WatBIERR - E=FRIKISHBAENEEERDI002FEE,

REHASBERSZLE ., RIBEKISHEBEIFRE (BEEE. EFRELEFHE )
TMERHAMESSENERRS S, TFAREEIE NI EIRRAR.

To achieve increased international student enrolment, we will continue
to work with overseas partners to attract students from East Asia and
other countries in Southeast Asia. By 2021, we hope to have more than
500 of international students from the current 232 as we believe that our
new boarding facilities will enhance our competitiveness in attracting
international students. Currently, only 35% of the international schools
in Malaysia offer boarding facilities while research has shown that
international students generally prefer international schools with boarding
facilities as it is more secure and convenient.

We will also optimise our efforts to increase the number of quality teachers
at KIS as they have a key role in maintaining our high-quality educational
programmes and services.

RIENNBEIRSERRAR, HPSEERBINBHESIE, WSIREMREEAEEZRIE
4o HPMEEREERESEA MRS IBEBESEERNGRSEN, F202153MEILERER
2327 EFEEIREBIBO00E . AR, B RB30%NERSRIRESFERIE, Mt
RER, HESEREERZENENREMEDERESERBIEERER,

HAREA T S EXMEEINIRFE D EEERIRIER, HKPITMSE—SSDBINNRKIS
RIEFHENHE .

Cognisant that we need to create an ecosystem that prepares our students
at Kingsley Tertiary for the working world, we are currently rationalising the
strategic future of this core business segment. Through our collaborative

Note BfizE:

1
2
! 2017 ERESONNERACERSRAE . S AEREEHETIBHRENE.
7 2017 FHEIE IR ERAEEEREE . 5B REEHETIBMRE25H,
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efforts, we are looking into new growth avenues that
will strengthen the overall education framework at
Kingsley and drive performance.

In short, we have done an exceptional job in the last 12
months. Despite the constantly evolving landscape, we
continued our efforts in redefining the education sector
by designing new development programmes that will
empower future learners to challenge conventional
thinking and solve real-world problems. We put in
place a capable team that is focused on delivering
results based on the strategic priorities set out. Backed
by the growing demand for quality private education
services and our ability to design holistic education
environments, we believe we are well-placed to achieve
our goal of becoming an established private education
service provider in Asia.

Moving forward, we remain confident in our ability to
pursue our aspirations from a position of strength, drive
performance and deliver on long-term shareholder
value.

AT EE—EAERRABEKIngsleyB SR BERIBRERTFHR
HEFEER, RPIEREM I OEFERSIEN . BREME
F37, HAEESHINEBRIEE, LNEKingsleylIEEEHE
EESI e

BmE, ZMEBR12EEIFLE. BERBTEHEWN, K
PIEIRRET I R B R LRSI B E R BRI AR IRE RS
R, BESNEMERHEEE. AMETL T —EEHNER, &
ERRBATIENBIRERIESHR . BREHESRIERBET
BT EAROBRUR IR EUBE RSN, BMEEGED
BRMARNNE BB IRBUESNER,

RERK, HPNABEORES. EEXENERRPREEE
HIBEEREMIES.

Thank you
EiE]

DR. CHUA PING YONG
President & Executive Director
gEkBEL eamnTES

Page 11, Malaysia International School Education, Tertiary and Professional Education Market Study, Frost & Sullivan 2017.
Page 25, Malaysia International School Education, Tertiary and Professional Education Market Study, Frost & Sullivan 2017.
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Tan Sri Barry Goh, aged 54, is an executive
Director and the chairman of our Board.
Heis primarily responsible for formulating
the overall development strategies
and business plans and overseeing the
management and strategic development
of our Group. Tan Sri Barry Goh is the
brother of Dato’ Danny Goh.

Tan Sri Barry Goh has over 20 years of experience
as an entrepreneur in various businesses including
education, property development and construction.
Tan Sri Barry Goh established our Group by setting
up our principal operating subsidiary, Kingsley
International in 2010, together with, among others,
Dato” Danny Goh, our executive Director. Tan Sri
Barry Goh subsequently expanded our Group
through establishing Kingsley International School
(through Kingsley International), Kingsley College
(through Kingsley Graduate), Kingsley Professional
Centre (through Kingsley Professional) and Kingsley
Skills College (through Kingsley Skills).

Tan Sri Barry Goh has been the executive advisor
to the TARcian Alumni Association of Tunku Abdul
Rahman University College (now known as Tunku
Abdul Rahman University College, “TAR University
College”) since May 2016. From September 2013
to September 2017, he has been a member of the
Board of Governors of TAR University College, where
he was responsible for the governing and policy-
making of the university. He, as a member of the
Board of Governors, has also undertaken key roles
in providing strategic planning-oversight of the
educational character and mission of the university,
promoting efficient management of the university,
fostering global linkages and internationalization in
relation to higher education and research, as well
as developing links with the community, corporate
sector and industry. He has also assisted with the
implementation of the university’s constitution, laws
and policies.

Tan Sri Barry Goh has been a director of MCT
Berhad since April 2015, and Odenza Corp., a mining
company quoted on the over-the-counter markets
in the United States with the symbol ODZA since
February 2013. He has also been and an executive
director of BGMC International Limited (stock code:
1693], a construction services company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since November
2016.

Tan Sri Barry Goh graduated from TAR University
College with a Diploma in Technology (Electronic
Engineering] in July 1990. He furthered his studies to
pursue a master’s degree in business administration
at Tsinghua University’'s PBC School of Finance in
September 2017, a part time course which is due to
be completed in July 2019.

www.kingsley.edu.my @é

FHRERAE, 545, YTESEREFSIR,

EEENEAEEERERRIBNERE,
IWEEAEBNSIENRIRER., RATERRR
AIRE5E .

FREFRERPBEATESR, GE20FHE. ¥
EFBENERSTELR. 2010F, B8
BRPEENTEEEZERBEESEEAT
ELEMBAT  Kingsley International
BIEAEE. BENINERBESBMIZ
Kingsley International School (&
Kingsley International ) . Kingsley College
(B8 Kingsley Graduate) . Kingsley
Professional Centre (i&8 Kingsley
Professional ) &% Kingsley Skills College
(iBEiBKingsley Skills ) HERAER .

RETERBEF2016F5 B RIS ANES
( THEXBBkR | ) REESHNITER . &
B2013F9RE2017F98 , FHESXBEM5RE
FERE, BEABNEERREK. HIER
PREERIEEENE, A2 HEEEREEER,
PINERSHEFERIH L ERHEBIRREE
R, REXBESHER. BAENSEHE NN
RESRPEER BRI KB ER ST
BEEBE ., FINBEREMASNERE. X2
R,

BERESEEB2015F4BRIEFEMCT
BerhadM#ITEERB2013F 2B RIEE
OdenzaCorp. ( RERIZIINHSRETEN
7, E#AODZA) HITES, H20165E
M BEREEERNERERERAE (B3 E
R EBHERERBAE, BHMKIR: 1693) 19
HITESE,

PR RAERI1990F7BEERUS KA
e, EERA (BFIR) &, BR2017F
OBEBEXRBAENTMBRRIE, KEIF
AV IBEEBELSMUER, 81020195
7TB5Ek.
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DR. CHUA
PING YONG
gZkEBEEL

President &
Executive Director

BREFERTES

AGE<F i#

53

DATO’
DANNY GOH
EERBE
Executive Director
HITESR

AGEf i#

50

Dr. Chua Ping Yong, aged 53, is our
President & executive Director. He is
primarily responsible for the overall
growth and development of our Group.

Dr. Chua Ping Yong has more than 27 years of
experience in the education field. Prior to joining
our Group as senior vice president in May 2015,
Dr. Chua Ping Yong had been employed at TAR
University College from July 1990 to September
2013, where he has undertaken positions of
instructor, lecturer, senior lecturer, head of division
and head of school. Since October 2013, Dr. Chua
Ping Yong had been the dean of the Faculty of
Engineering and Built Environment at the TAR
University College, where he was responsible for
the management of staff and resources. Dr. Chua
Ping Yong was also responsible for overseeing
administration and providing academic leadership,
such as strategic planning, developing policy and
providing overall leadership, vision and direction for
the faculty. These include strategic issues related to
the challenges and opportunities of new academic
structures, students’ expectations and performance,
widening participation and recruitment. He has
also undertaken key roles in academic planning
and decision-making. He was also responsible for
strategic management where he took the lead in
driving the faculty’s strategic response to internal
and external challenges, staff management, where
he evaluated and determined the training needs of
the staff, management of resources and research
initiatives.

Dr. Chua Ping Yong's educational background
expands across the fields of science and
engineering. Dr. Chua Ping Yong was awarded the

Dato’ Danny Goh, aged 50, is our executive

Director. He is primarily responsible for

overseeing the corporate development

and strategic planning of our Group. Dato’

8arr]my Goh is the brother of Tan Sri Barry
oh.

Dato’ Danny Goh has over seven years of
experience in the education industry strategic
planning. In December 2010, Dato’ Danny Goh was
appointed as the director of Kingsley International
and was involved in the establishment of Kingsley
International School. In October 2013, Dato” Danny
Goh was appointed as directors of Kingsley Skills
and Kingsley Professional Centre and was involved
in the establishment of Kingsley Skills College and
Kingsley Professional Centre.

Dato” Danny Goh is also a strong advocate for
Chinese education. He was involved in the fund
raising for the construction of the new SJK(C) Union
in Cyberjaya, Malaysia, a union that caters to the
Chinese education needs of students from different
racial backgrounds, in May 2016.

Directors’ Profiles
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Diploma in Technology (Electronic Engineering)
from TAR University College in May 1990. He
later obtained a Master of Science degree in
Industrial Control Systems from the University
of Salford in the United Kingdom in July 1993,
prior to completing the Engineering Council
Examination organised by the Engineering
Council in March 1996. He then continued his
education in the University of Salford, United
Kingdom, obtaining the degree of Doctor of
Philosophy in April 2007.

ZKEEL, 535k, BHFNITES, TEAELEH
REEEIERNER.

FKEBTEE27TEHBEZR . K2015F58MA
REBEISHERHE, FKEBETE1990F7/AE
2013F RN ESRESRIEEEES . HhD. SHE
B, REERBREEAEHEN ., ZKEHTE20135F
10AREFNSAEERTRRERRESRRRE, &
BEEETRER. ZAERTTEERBETHEREL
EESHIIF, PIIIRBIRBRTIETEER. EE2EH
FiaEiREMGII RSN E, BEEMHMENERE
AR EI RS . AR RERRUNERSERRA
FHRIBEE . RITRSHRERE S EREETEER
e. HkEFTTEERKREE, ESREMTAR
BRAEEI NS PLEL . RITEEETERE, [HMEIREET
PRGE, EEBERENATIEE .

FKEBTEEERTESS, 1990558, ZkEHE
TENEXB2RESEN (BFIRE) &R, #R0
199638 BB TI2EZE = (Engineering Council 484
MIREEZE(Engineering Council Examination)
B, HHM993F7 B EAERAREASELST #iE
RFEEETEN, JEEENEHRERELER
&, 2007 FAPEEE LT,

Dato’ Danny Goh graduated from TAR University
College in May 1992 with a diploma in technology
(building).

SERPE, 505k, WTES, TECERELEEN
TEBENRERE . RAFRERPEES.

EERPEEE CERETERBRBIER . 2010612
B, 2BIEEERTA Kingsley International AIZE
=, 2837 Kingsley International School, 20135
108, EERBEEEZ(TAKIngsley SkillskKingsley
Professional Centre fVE&=s, 28p%1zKingsley Skills
CollegeKKingsley Professional Centre,

FERPRITADESENLE, R2016FE5B8RFEXR
P HMTRHSHEREE NS (BEIRERS S
BEBEVHBERTENDR) &4,

SERPRNI1092FBRENNS KRGS, ESH
# (85) R
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SALLEH

Independent
Non-Executive Director

B IFITES

AGEF #

68

TAN SRI
KARIM
iR 8
KARIM

Independent
Non-Executive Director

BIITES

AGESE ¢

68

Tan Sri Salleh, aged 68, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Tan Sri Salleh has over 38 years of experience in
the education industry. In 1980, he was appointed
as a lecturer in the Department of Medical
Microbiology and Immunology, Faculty of Medicine,
National University of Malaysia ("UKM"), where he
was promoted as head of department and served
as deputy Dean until 1992. In 1992, he became the
founding Dean of Faculty of Allied Health Sciences
at UKM and was also appointed as the professor
in medical mycology. From 1995 to 2002, Tan Sri
Salleh served as the deputy vice chancellor for
development affairs and student affairs. From
2003, he served as UKM’s vice chancellor until
he retired in 2006. In 2006, Tan Sri Salleh was
appointed as the Founding Director of United
Nations University's International Institute for
Global Health until his retirement in 2013. Tan Sri
Salleh was also appointed as a board member of
SIRIM Berhad since 2004. In March 2014, Tan Sri
Salleh was appointed as the vice chancellor of
Manipal International University.

Tan Sri Karim, aged 68, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Tan Sri Karim has over 44 years of experiences in
both the government and the corporate sectors.
From 1974 to 1986, he had held positions in various
governmental departments. In 1987, Tan Sri Karim
had been the Chief Assistant State Secretary of
Selangor (Local Authority Division). From 1992
to 1998, he was the president of Ampang Jaya
Municipal Council. He had served as the District
Officer and the Acting President of Sepang District
Council from 1998 to 2003. In 2003 and 2004, he
had been the President of Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council.

Tan Sri Karim has also made various contributions
in the corporate sector. He has previously been
the group president of Kumpulan Darul Ehsan
Berhad (KDEB), a Government Link Company(GLC)
that is an investment arm of the Selangor State
Government. He had also been the chairman of
two companies listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad, namely Kumpulan
Perangsang Selangor Berhad (stock code: 5843,
and Taliworks Corporation Berhad (stock code:
8524), between 2004 to 2011.

Tan Sri Karim obtained a Bachelor in Economics
from University Malaya in Malaysia in June 1974
and a Master in Business Administration from

www.kingsley.edu.my @é

Tan Sri Salleh was awarded a Doctorate in
Science (Honoris Causa) from the University of
Bath, United Kingdom in July 2012. In October
2015, he was awarded an Honorary Doctorate
in Health Sciences from Univesiti Sultan Zainal
Abidin in Malaysia.

FHrESalleh, 685%, BIAFNITES, TEEEHE
FRRUBUSR.

FHRE Salleh BEIBSFHEFLCH. 1980F, HE
ZEAERAZERKE ( [EX] ) B2RESMY
EYERBEEREN, HESHARETWIETR
RRE19925F, 19925F, HEREKGEEHERZS
REERE, RRETABEERZHRIE. 1995FF
2002%F, PEFESalehigFaicE, BEEENELES
H, 2003FREERAREE20065FE1E., 20065,
FETESallehBIA S A2 2 R E RIS
IR, 2013FEME. AEESalleh7rB2004F 2%
Z{TA SIRIM Berhad EEEHE., 2014538, £
ESalleh¥{E4A Manipal International University&#5
.

20125 7R, BEESallehEERBEE AR RERE
B, 20165108, HIEREBRARHFABMILL
TREFHERSREF LR,

University of Edinburgh in the United Kingdom in
May 1989. In July 1980, he obtained an advance
diploma in Economic Developmentin the Victoria
University of Manchester (with distinction] in the
United Kingdom. Tan Sri Karim also completed
a course in urban development organised by
Japan International Cooperation Agency in
Tokyo, Japan in March 1986.

FErEKarim, 685%, WIZIFHITES, TBEHEOE
FZRMBEUSR.

FHEEKarimBB44FEEER . 1974FE19865F, #
FEEEATERPI S . 19874, FEEKarimBES
BIE N E MBI P I BT E REFENIE . 19926%
19985, HBEL HEHAEEER . 19985FF2003
F, WEASHEREENRSHBHEEZNER. 2003FK
20045, WEBE/ FIEBEHHRELRE.

FREEKarimIFREEEL S IEER, BE—BEEKR
FFEE# .~ EKumpulan Darul Ehsan Berhad (KDEB)
NEBLE, 2 ATATEHBENBFNREKE. 2004
FE20ME, B EEEIMRERALESZZA
Firhis EH AT Kumpulan Perangsang Selangor
Berhad ( B2fp1tS%: 5843 ) KTaliworks Corporation
Berhad (B&#HX8R: 8524 ) MUERE.

FHEREEKarimi 197456 B ¥ B AR P0 50 B 2R KA
SB5TEM, R080FoAEREET ERETHEE
L2, 1$1980F7 BLMBR pliEEE 2 fUET4E
ZNDRELHBREELESHRUE . FEEKarimIFie
198653 A i H AR R5ehl B AN 7 D iiEimmEE e
ESER
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PROFESSOR
DR.
ROZAINUN
%
ROZAINUN
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Independent
Non-Executive Director

BIIETES

AGESE 8

58

Professor Dr. Rozainun, aged 58, is an
independent non-executive Director. She
is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

Prof. Dr. Rozainun has over 31 years of experiences
in the education industry. Since 1986, Prof.
Dr. Rozainun has held various positions at the
Universiti Teknologi MARA in Malaysia where
she was mainly involved in the teaching of
risk management for the Masters in Forensic
Accounting and Financial Criminology, Master of
Accountancy, Cost and Management Accounting,
Master in Business Administration and Master
of Sport Science. She is currently the dean of the
Faculty of Accountancy in Universiti Teknologi
MARA, where she is responsible for managing
and promoting accounting education towards
the development of the accounting profession
and human capital through various academic
programs, such as CIMA and ACCA, as well as
postgraduate programs, Master of Accountancy,
Master in Forensic Accounting and Financial
Criminology. Prof. Dr. Rozainun has also received
various external appointments. She participated in
the ASEAN Accounting Educator Forum organised
by the ASEAN Accounting Educators Workgroup
in 2015 and has been the chairperson of the
examination body for the Malaysia Institute of
Accountants Qualifying Examination since 2012. In
2015, Prof. Dr. Rozainun was awarded the royalty
award Paduka Mahkota Kelantan by the Sultan of
Kelantan.

Prof. Dr. Rozainun obtained a diploma in
accountancy from the Institute Teknologi MARA

Directors’ Profiles
BEEGN

in September 1981. She became a fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
qualifications in June 2013. In September 1996,
she obtained a Master of Economic and Social
Studies in Accounting and Finance from the
University of Wales, Aberystwyth in the United
Kingdom. In January 2005, she obtained a Doctor
of Philosophy from the University of Salford in
the United Kingdom. She was also qualified as a
chartered accountant of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants in March 2013.

HERozainunf@t, 585k, BUFNITESR, T2E
BONEFZRMBUER.

HIERozainuNBETEEATFEHBITELR . 19865F
=24, NEIERARBN T EARSERN, 88
EREBESHREMICTERELT. St AREESZET
BT, THEEETRESRSETEERENEARE
#, #ERozainunE T BRI BB T B2AERZHER
i, BEEENENZFHE, WBBTRENRRE
WCIMA, ACCA, W5, Estiat, EZ2HS
BUCTEBTSRHE T ES . Z¥RozainuntE IR
BIEEZIENE . BIN2015FE2NEESHE TIFE
BHNERTHHERE, B2012EE5AERKALE
FTEPERERBIZREE . HI¥RozainunfE+52015
FRESHANEGEEEEE SR TERERNES.

HERozainunELH1981F 9B BRI T ES2 a5t
BX&, R2013F6AMARESTEESHMAE
ZE. 19965F98, RERBEHBLRBITBES
B D IR G EMBRBE R EHRELSU., 2005
F10, WEXARMBRASESE RN, 20135
38, IR BRI R R AR TS AT,
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Environmental, Social and Governance ese swtement

RiE. HENRER(ESG)RE

KINGSLEY IS PRINCIPALLY ENGAGED
IN THE PROVISION OF EDUCATION
SERVICES. GUIDED BY OUR SHARED
VISION OF RAISING A NEW GENERATION
OF ENTREPRENEURIAL ACHIEVERS,
WE BELIEVE IN THE IMPORTANCE
OF PROVIDING A STRONG ACADEMIC
FOUNDATION COMBINED  WITH
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING AS WE HOPE
TO INSPIRE ENTERPRISING MINDSETS
IN LEARNERS.

KingsleyE=ZER2EHBE R . FMEYERFE
ShAEEHR—AEtER, EIIESIT, &ME
EIRHAANBHEREERABERESHE
IR REENAIERE

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF ESG REPORT

We are pleased to present our inaugural Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG]) report which has been prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “"ESG
Guide”) published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
set out in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As this is our first
ESG report, it would present mainly on the environment and social
performance of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 (“FY2018").

Kingsley is principally engaged in the provision of education
services. Guided by our shared vision of raising a new generation of
entrepreneurial achievers, we believe in the importance of providing
a strong academic foundation combined with experiential learning as
we hope to inspire enterprising mindsets in learners. Given our focus
on providing a holistic education ecosystem for students, we have an
important role in laying a strong foundation in developing the nation’s
future source of human capital. We want our students to achieve above
and beyond, regardless of the careers they chose. In this context, we
wantto nurture enterprising mindsets that are also socially responsible
- who understand the issues of sustainability as well as are equipped
with the right knowledge, skills and characteristics to respond to real-
world challenges in the future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement

We believe that it is important for us to also address
the environmental, social and governance risks in
a manner that is aligned with our values and vision.
With the ESG best practices well-embedded into our
business and policies, this demonstrates the high
level of importance we put in driving our sustainability
agenda that encompasses respect for the environment
and the community.

To achieve this, a structured ESG governance process
that drives our sustainability strategy from the top
management right across all operational levels within
Kingsley was established. The good governance
framework applied was to ensure environmentally
responsible practices and the creation of sound social
policies. This would enable sustainable growth and
long-term value for our shareholders.

In the preparation of this Report, we engaged with
various employees across the different business
functions at Kingsley to identify the relevant ESG
issues and its impact on our business. The information
gathered for the purposes of this ESG Report does not
only serve as the summary of the environmental and
social stewardship of the Group for FY2018, but also
forms the basis for the Group to map out our short-
term and long-term sustainability strategies.

ESG &GN REE

BARAREANTENIRE. HEREA(ESC)HRE, ZRERIEGEM
EHRA IR TR E SIS ZTERATAMEH (IRE. HE8R
EinikEEs]) ( [ESGHS! ] ) MiRE . HRITIFHANE—HESGR
5, BHEE2IAEERE2018F6F30HLFE ( [ 2018MEFE |
) ERER SRR .

Kingsley=ZRMMHBERS . HANHEERSREEN—HNEER, At
51T, RPMEERARRISHERREERSPERES B 2LNE
EAIZEER .. RPAENRA2EREEENHELRRS, RERESRK
RANEREEREER . ERIMNSEBFAERZE, HMAMHER
FHEIBMER . EHESSRT, HMAFEREEBHSEIRIENA)
¥ig — REERUSERERNE, WERREHRIIREIERIERD
i IREER A

KRR, UHERMANEERRESNSRRRE. tERE R
KIPGRINEEE , IEEESCRIEBRRNIIFMIZESRERS, RBHK
MEEEREEISERERE (QEYRERENDSE)

RiE. HENRERB(ESG)RSE

ABRE—BEZ, HMEELZESCEARENGEE, %
ML ESHREEEEKIngsleyPiE B EmEmits
KBS RS .. ERRTEAERUBREIRE
EERFIEESIHEECR . EiSARMPNRERT AR
BISERRBEE.

REANRER, HADEKIngsley FRIEIASNE T
Bia, UEEHEENESCREREHRMEBNTE,
ARESCIREWENENNMEESREE2018HEFELR
BRASEENGE, BEAERTERIERRARISE
EEBIRAER,

The good governance framework
applied was to ensure environmentally

responsible practices and the creation
of sound social policies. This would
enable sustainable growth and long-
term value for our shareholders.

ERRFESERUERREREEENFIERES
AL EIER SRR FIRAIHEIR R
MREEE.

) We believe in the importance of
providing a strong academic foundation
combined with experiential learning as
we hope to inspire enterprising mindsets
in learners.
KMRERAERNSHER BB SPEEESHE
HEEREERERRIZESH .
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement

BiE. #tE2hkE€R(ESG)H®RE

ITISOURPREROGATIVE THAT EVERYONE
REGARDLESS OF THEIR AGE AND
BELIEF SYSTEM SHOULD BE GIVEN THE
OPPORTUNITY TO LIVE, LEARN, WORK
AND PLAY IN A CONDUCIVE WORKING
ENVIRONMENT. TO THIS EFFECT, WE
ARE CONTINUOUSLY WORKING TO
REDUCE OUR CARBON FOOTPRINT AND
PRESERVE NATURAL RESOURCES FOR
THE FUTURE GENERATIONS.

ERFRRED, SEAGEERIFNIER
BREE. 28 TERRE, QLt, EMAF

ESNRIOKREN, SFREENFEBRE
o

l'ﬂi‘hjdfl‘

Emissions

As an education service provider, we do not generate hazardous or toxic
waste in the course of our business. We did not have significant air emissions
or discharge, aside from the use of non-hazardous chemicals in our school's
science lessons. The usage and disposal of these chemicals were conducted
in compliance with the guidelines provided by Malaysia's Department of
Environment.

HER

FRHBERBIREE, RIEERBETISELETNESEY. MERMISRRSEFES
ERIEERHERSS, RMBRSNTEAN. ZENERNERREIETZRERTSERRE
BRRIHAOTES ST,

Consumption Volume (Group) for financial year ended 30 June 2018
#ZE2018F6 300 LI BEEREER (A5£E )

Solid Chemicals
(g/cm)

EIBE L2 T (F2/[EXK)
2,870

2018

usage and disposal

of chemicals
ZENBRN

(EFRARERE

Liquid Chemicals (ml)
REELER(ZT)
68,930
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During the year under review, we complied with all
applicable environmental laws and regulations, and
was not subject to any fine, penalty, investigation or
prosecution for non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations relating to emissions.

REEEER, HAETHEEBNREEENER, LEFEER
ERBERHIAERE RN SRR, B, FEsinz.

Use of Resources

During the year under review, the Group measured
and monitored the usage of resources such as water,
electricity and paper. Electricity consumption and
usage of papers represented our carbon footprint,
attributed mainly to Kingsley’s office premises where
we conduct our business. We are also cognisant on
the importance of water conservation and constantly
remind everyone to minimise the usage of this
resource in our premises.

Our electricity consumption during the year under
review was 1,441,883kWh while water consumption
stood at 14,480m3. In terms of paper usage, we
monitored and controlled the use of paper to avoid
wastage. A total of 7,98%9kgs of paper was used for
day-to-day operation purposes during the year.

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement
RE. HENREARESG)®RE

EiRtEA

REREFEN, AEBEREREEK. BRARSEESROERBER. ENHEERERER
BAERRKMOREN, EZMERKingsleyAR:, FPITSHTESLNRKNESE, T
EiREEEE AN ESERREERK.

KMREEFENNFEEER1,441,883FEE, MIEKERR14,480325K, FARE
RBE, EMEEIEHRRIERLIERIRE . REREERN, SXHEE7,9890FH
SRAREZEER.

We constantly work to identify new avenues to minimise our
impact on the environment. Our Group implemented energy-saving
measures and environmentally-friendly initiatives in the workplace.
This includes putting up signages, electrical devices with energy-
efficient devices such as replacing LED light tubes, inverter-based
air-conditioners and electrical equipment. Employees and students
were also encouraged to switch off electrical items that were not in
use.

Besides focusing on building environmental awareness, we also
encouraged employees and students to reduce paper consumption
through the following initiatives:

HARERSS HSHIBRE, LESROHRENTE . AEBA LIFISMERHREREE
NizfRENE . BERLLIZN . BEEREEREIRE, PINERLEDEE
18 . HPITFEIS T REAERIeAREEIERS.

PREERIRREMIL, HIRSEE T RSEBBLAT R RRIEE:

e Use of double-sided printing;

e Recycle and reuse printed paper; and

e Encouraged the use of software-based systems to
minimise printing. All printing machines used were
monitored to ensure sustainable use.

o (EFIEEMEIIED;

o [BIKIR BB FIFRENRIAR; K

o SRENMEFEEFRGLURIIED, BIEETETTEDHLAE RIS EER .

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations for FY2018.
IR2018FE, WEEMERREFERERNZET.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement

RiE. HENREB(ESG)RSE

AT KINGSLEY, OUR PEOPLE ARE OUR
MOST VALUABLE ASSET AND A CORE
COMPONENT OF OUR CONTINUED
SUCCESS. OUR ABILITY TO FOSTER
THE SPIRIT OF EXCELLENCE AMONGST
OUR STUDENTS AND CREATE POSITIVE
STUDENT EXPERIENCES IS A RESULT
OF STRONG TEAM SPIRIT AT THE
WORKPLACE AND THIS IN TURN, HAS
STRENGTHENED OUR POSITION IN THE
INDUSTRY.

#ZKingsley, BEfINNETERRPREENE
E, LERMFERINZOTR. EMES
EARE S, RMmiEFHEMeEOLIEER
SR E IR EISTERAIZEEER, ERFNE
HMETEPAMAL,

Nevertheless, we are cognisant that our future success also depends on
our ability to attract, develop and retain quality employees. Towards this
cause, we strived to create a healthy workplace environment that not only
rewards and helps our employees develop their careers, but also supports
their overall wellbeing.

BEWLL, FPIREEIFLPIRIRAIBLIIIIEURIR MRS BHENICEEFETAIREN. REIR
E—ER, ZMSHAE—ERRNIFRE, MERBREPHKMNETERBCHEE,
BESHHRERIEREREAL .

Employment: Labour Standards

Throughout the Group, we are guided by our Human Resource Policy, as
documented in the Governance and Internal Control Policy (GICP) and
Employee Handbook that governs the recruitment, promotion, discipline,
working hours, compensation, benefits and other matters, in accordance
and compliance with the Malaysian Labour Act.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total of 173 employees and the
breakdown can be found below:

{Bfe: 55 TH%R

ERELER, REEBTHRADSE TER, RMEBADERBEE (MEERAEBEHIEE
(GICP) LIRETFM At ) 1551, LISIBIRIE, S /. TIFSR. Hl. BfRE
ftb==1E,

EHZE20185F6830H, AEBEHA173EET, #BUT:
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Number of Employees (Group) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018
HE2018F6A30HIEAKFENEST (FE£EE ) AH

Sales & Marketing $&& R 11

Total
“as

173

Administrative 17 32

Management &1 7

Teaching Staff #ET 123

Turnover Rate in % (Group) for financial
year ended 30 June 2018
HZE20185F6H30H LB EERREAEADLL (AER)

Management &12 0.34

Teaching Staff #ET 1.42

Sales & Marketing $E&R &4 0.22

Administrative 17 0.32

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement
RE. HENREARESG)®RE

Health and Safety

At Kingsley, we promote a healthy and safe environment for all our
employees and students. Health and safety standards are given prime
consideration in our operations and regulatory compliance is strongly
upheld. Employees at every level must be accountable in the delivery of
the safety initiatives as highlighted in the Employee Handbook.

Guided by our security policy, some of the initiatives carried out to
ensure a safe working environment includes the availability of 24-hour
security guards and closed-circuit televisions ("CCTV”] throughout our
offices. We also conducted various campaigns to promote awareness
and additional safety trainings which included Fire Drill/ Fire Evacuation
Practice, Basic Life Support, covering Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation
("CPR") and Automated External Defibrillator ("AED") as well as First
Aid training.

We continuously encouraged our employees to lead a balanced lifestyle
as we recognise health as an important component in employee
development. As part of our efforts, we took steps to ensure our canteens
only served balanced meals as well as conducted talks on health as part
the Personal, Social, Health and Education ("PSHE”) lessons.

During the year under review, there were no non-compliance cases
noted in relation to laws on health, safety and regulations.

EERED
EKingsley, HfIBRAEEINRSELE—ARRLEVRER. BENZSIEERKFIZERD
BEEERER, TARESEESRER. SERE IIEENTE T FMeRNZLElE.

AEHMANZEBERIES T, REARZE2N TIFREMRNE TEELEDRIAENRM
24NREREIRER ( [BRER | ) . RPIEHRSEIHLIESREEMNEINIL
=i, EhaEEnEEEnmAER R ERESF OREUESR ( [CPR] ) kB
FEIMREERE ( [ AED | ) IRSHIEN) o

MR ARREELERNEZEMNS, FRIHMTEEES TS FENEES. F
REMBLNN—ED, KMRIVEREREZERHEDGNER, WEREA. LS. BF
R¥E ( [PSHE | ) FETIHEES.

REEERN, MEERRLSEFRETERIERRM.

Development and Training

In order to succeed in both personal and professional capacities,
employees need to have the opportunity to upskill themselves as this
will enable them to remain relevant. At Kingsley, we provided regular
training opportunities and workshops to help them improve their
careerplans and achieve their full potential.

EERAE
ETREHERABC, RTBRRKEX, BFREBARBEED LRER. &
Kingsley, HPHRHEREIRERMNE, BURSLERERILTOFEES.
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As an education service provider, our ability to foster excellence | 80 75%

among students is key to strengthening our track record. Our

students play an important role in shaping the future of the world | 7q,

we live in and as such, we need to have teachers or mentors who wn _

are equipped with the latest in teaching and learning approaches. In 60(%) //% No. of Staff RTAM
this regard, we paid close attention to our teaching faculty to ensure O %&Estk

they have access to the right training programmes, both internal %

and external as this will result in better learning outcomes. Some 500%) \

of the training programmes held include: §\

e Orientation/ onboarding programmes for new employees; 40(%) Q\

e Teacher observation sessions; §\

e Professional development; and 30(%) §\

e Understanding new policies and procedures. §\

FA—EZHERBIRME, FESREENRENREINATMIZEECIRRERE . HFINEE 206 §

FEERFER RO MBREER(ER, Fit, RMIFEEERERITIETERHED \ -

WG, Wlth, BETIRETRMOREAS, RRESaSERI NN | 10%) §\ N 3%
A, fEmMAEREFISEEMR . ETIEIIFEIERE: §\ §\ N .
o FETHNEEIEE) N\ N N =
° YENEBRSEERD, Teaching Administrative Management Sales &
o HEEE N Staff 7 =18 Marketing
o ERRETBEERIER . BT SHERER

During the year under review, we completed approximately 758 hours of training for 73 employees throughout Kingsley, with a
large majority of them from our teaching faculty.

REEEFERN, BfIRKingsleyfI73E 8T 580 7 ALI758/ NS, BEP@ASEERERMIBENE.

Total & Average Training Hours Completed for Total and Average Number of Trained Staff (Group) for

the financial year ended 30 June 2018 the financial year ended 30 June 2018

#Z201856 A 30H LM FE E =R AISHI ST EHIE #HE2018F6830H LM BEFEESTHESLZIIET (F5EE) AH
4.3

Average
Number of
Trained staff in %
FEFYSIIET
(AEE) St

42.2%

523 24

Total Number
of Trained Staff
FESIET

(AEBE) AZ

73

Total
Training Hours
HarEdInERe

758

Average
Training Hours

12

EHIEHIRERE

163 55

48

M Sales & Marketing $HEER =84 M Administrative 17E B Management &1 W Teaching Staff #E§ T

Supply Chain Management HEEEETE

Due to the nature of our business, we relied on various suppliers to provide quality B EEHER RN E TN AERIEEN
products and services to our employees and students. During the year under review, EmRRE. REEFEN, HACEREERERTE
we built strong collaborative partnerships with our suppliers, strictly observing BONEERERE, BREEFAEEEGICPIR
the guidelines and related procedures highlighted in the Group’'s Purchasing BBECRTPTERRIES IRIBRRER, HRIREEER
Policy in our GICP, especially in the selection and evaluation of new suppliers, AHMEHTHES R BRRAHESNRR, BRESS
monitoring the performance of our existing suppliers, ensuring several quotations EERE, BEMEBMLR . RMEREHERRIRE
were obtained for comparison with necessary approvals from the authorities. MERFETEERIRER N FEHRFAME .
Essentially, we adhered to high ethical standards and fair competition practices
during the selection of suppliers and procurement process.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement

For FY2018, we worked with 142 suppliers, with 98.6% of being local suppliers and
95% of overall suppliers obtaining three points and above.

IR2018EABEFE, HPIENA2RMIERS1F, HP98.6% R4 ER), 95%ESE3HRILL.

Geographical Number of suppliers (Group)

bz for financial year ended

30 June 2018

#HZE20185F6 5308 LLEABIE

EfitrErs (A%H ) 88
Malaysia FE3Epaas 140 98.6
Oversea g4t 2 1.4
Total 423t 142 100

Ranking Number of suppliers (Group)

HES for financial year ended

30 June 2018

#HZE20185F6 8308 LLEABILE

EfitrErs (A5%E ) 8
5 - Always Good ER® 2 1.4
4 - Mostly Good B4F 80 56.3
3 - Sometimes Good % 53 37.3
2 - Mostly Poor = 6 4.2
1 - Always Poor Rz 1 0.7
Total 4zt 142 100

During the year under review, we did not receive any report in the implementation of
group procedure policies.

RAFE, BRKENHIEREEEFEERERAYRS .

Product Responsibility

To ensure the educational programmes at KIS and Kingsley Tertiary adhered to
the various requirements, we worked hard to obtain the necessary accreditations,
namely International General Certificate of Secondary Education (ICGSE), Malaysian
Qualifications Agency (MQA), Code of Practice for Programme Accreditation (COPPA)
and Kod Amalan Pentaulihan Program Kemahiran ([KAPPK).

We understand that each student, be it international or local, have different needs
and preferences, given their educational and cultural backgrounds. In this regard,
we employed experienced and well-trained teachers and counsellors who are able
to assist our students.

EREE

AR KIS & Kingsley Tertiary KM EEIERSIEHRE, RFESHESVLERE, MEEEENEHE
#Z (ICGSE) | FERAnSMERIEES (MQA) | FFEREERRE (COPPA) LIKKod Amalan
Pentaulihan Program Kemahiran ( KAPPK) o

HRA, ERRESSESEEYRAE R U ERMERTEIHER N RT . GEiLt, FHfI=ISaesai78
SEBKRIE. ERIBETNIHES .

=

RiR.

HERER(ESC)HkRE

Privacy Protection Policy

We are

committed towards

preserving the personal information
of those whom we are in contact with,
including the collection, processing

a

nd using of students and parents’

personal data, whereby:

we only collect personal data that
is relevant and required for our
business operations;

we will not transfer or disclose
personal data to any entity unless
with the consent, or unless
previously notified or unless
required by the law;

we maintain appropriate security
systems and measures designed
to prevent unauthorised access to
personal data; and

we prohibit unauthorised
disclosure of any classified
information such as confidential

information pertaining to
legislative, academic, financial
and various other factors.

Systems have been established
to protect classified information
such as restricting access to only
authorised employees, records
of recipients of confidential
documents are well-kept and use
of strong passwords to protect
computer data.

FAPSIEpRAEIIR
PO RFRERMBENATOEASR, &
B RIERFEREERFRIOEAER, &

I

t.
BFENERERSEEEANBNEAE
£
MRS ABASARRE, BAEREE
ENER TSR OEEEEIEEE
NEHRL
EAFEENRLZ RS RIBNE,
CITREVSIEBEALR,; R
B2 IR BT AEEER, mE
BEiES. B, UEREHMBRNREES
o RMERURRRERZER, RS
BRI RFERERETN. ZERGFRE
WS R4S SR R ] e B (RE BN
&Hl,

LABLESR
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We also complied strictly to the Personal Data Protection Act 2010,
Kingsley's Privacy Policy and Intellectual Property Rights. We have also
put in place open channels of communication that allowed employees,
students, parents and the community to provide feedback or comments
as this will only help us improve further.

There were no cases of non-compliance reported in relation to our data
protection privacy for FY2018.

HARISETEAERHREL2010. KingsleyAIFAIBREEER AR AR, T5
REMMEUBERE, FRE. 24 . RENMESIRMRENERS, It
TEASEF P EES

2018F F I EEHERMREERII T S RBIRE M .

Whistle-blowing Policy

At Kingsley, we encourage all employees, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders who have concerns about any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the Group to voice out their concerns.
Nevertheless, these concerns must be genuine in nature, relating to
crime, criminal offence, miscarriage of justice, dangers to health and
safety and of the environment, including the covering up of any of those
mentioned.

The Whistle-blowing Policy at Kingsley ensures that employees can
raise their concerns about any wrongdoing or malpractice across
the Group, without fear of victimisation, subsequent discrimination,
disadvantage or dismissal. We do this to encourage and enable
employees to raise serious concerns within the company, instead of
simply ignoring a problem as this could impact the company negatively.
We will endeavour to respond to employee concerns, fairly and properly
based on the established Standard Operating Procedures.

SRR

fEKingsley, BMEEIFFERE. 5. HERNKEMFTZE
BRI HAEENE ORI E TR T AR 2R .
A, ZERBEABE, FHFILE. IFLRE. BETFA.
BERR. ZeMREEFTR, BEIANET—I8TA.

KingsleyA9Ze R BRI (R (B SR LI AL BN E DR ETR
SRITRIR AR, MEBAERORE . BRERE. TFH
kR . PP ERRERSESEIES, ERS5E5I
RABNREREE, MIFRREE, RREESEER
SiERaHsE . HiSeNhkERESRE, REREAE
R PR R AT E EREE .

Integrity Policy

Across the Group, we adhere to the high standards of
ethical, personal and professional conduct, guided by
our Integrity Policy and the Kingsley Code of Conduct
("Code of Conduct”). The Code of Conduct provides
clear guidelines on positive workplace practices.

At Kingsley, we have zero-tolerance towards any
behaviour that impact the integrity and reputation of
the Group. We also do not tolerate corruption, bribery,
extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of our business
operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Statement
BB, t2kEAR(ESG)®RE

FSIBER
EAREEN, FHMIRIEHEEERRKIngsley7RFR ( [ 7R | ) BESEENERE. EARSZETRER, TRTRIHIEM LIRSS
EBRHERES |

fEKingsley, IS EAEEHRENBENTRIFNERDENR . HPITIBRHUEBBAES. BB R, HEREMHEREE.

All employees have to comply with the Code of Conduct, all of which have been defined in the Employee Handbook. All related parties
including employees and senior management shall remain committed to a good governance and ethical practices as stipulated in
Code of Conduct and Discipline in the Employee Handbook which is given to all employees at the point of employment. We continue to
update and remind our employees to abide by the Code through several awareness sessions, with the assistance of external experts
such as the Malaysia Anti-Corruption Commission (MACC), when necessary. The HR Department is assigned to handle enquiries
about the Code of Conduct.

PrEREN/RETTATE, £MFREREEFMNRE. BERENSHEEBENNIIEERSHANNETREFMATHRTRIRCEMN
SBNRTE é.‘& BREE, REFMERABBERT RS BMSFEENLEBRNSEEERERSETTE, ©EFRIRIMEER, W0
BRALRRESEES (MACC) 12EtHE . ADERIBESEIERRITATRIANZER.

Anti-corruption

All employees across all levels are prohibited from
accepting advantages from persons with whom they
have official dealings, including theirs colleagues and
subordinates. The term “advantage” includes gifts,
hampers, loans, fees, rewards, office employment,
contract, services and/ or favours.

REB

BEMNEBESHZINEZHEFEEEHEROAL (BERERT
B) R#taRlaE. [ Flak | —IEIEEE. Bm. Bk B, 2@,
RNEZRTIF. 54, RER / B,

Abuse of Official Position

All employees, including managers are reminded to avoid
using their official position or power to benefit themselves,
their relatives or personal friends.

ik PGS
%‘é‘&&ﬁ (AR ) Jabtoe (RIS DARENAAR!, SAEIRRIEIFA
NBRAZEER o

Conflict of Interest

All employees are required to avoid and declare any
actual or perceived Conflict of Interest including the
actions to be taken to mitigate the conflicts via Letter of
Consent signed. Examples of Conflict of Interest in work
situations shall include relationship with a supplier when
making procurement, or with a candidate when handling
staff recruitment.

FlasiEse

ERESIAERPTRERTEER, RERREREERINEES
89178 . EITFEERIFEERENIERERBIEARRAIERE,
TRESRSELRIERIRIR

Permission for Outside Employment

Employees who decide to take up outside employment
shall seek approval from the management. Permission
will only be granted if it does not give rise to any Conflict
of Interest. The application procedure shall comply with
Employee Handbook.

SMETIERFR
REREINELIFRE/ARFEEEE, EEFEEEHINSER
ER THE SR .. FEEFENGREFMRNZRE.
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Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, we believe that it is important to reach out to the communities in the areas in which we
operate in, to address the sustainability challenges that they face. We place strong emphasis on cultivating social responsibility
awareness among our students and employees as these activities encourage them to better serve our community. This, we
believe, forms the basis of encouraging good characteristics, both in their personal and professional life.

teseE
FREEANEEAR, RMREERAEEMTHRIGHERES, LRI EImIRI T ERRIE . RIPSa2ERREESHSEEEH, PEZEE
RSB S R R EIFAIIRTS . HPIR AR RSB RS EFARI N B2 AT TERIERE

During the year in review, we organised several outreach programmes, as follows:

REREFE, FMEMSIRINERTEINT:

Event & Date HHA Partner ${# Details %15
Cancer Awareness October 2017 National Cancer Collaborated with NCSM to raise funds.
x Campaign - January 2018 Society Malaysia EANCSMEEERIRETEE -
s 20175108 e B EE R st
2018518 2 (NCSM)
Visit to Beautiful 22 November Beautiful Gate Organised by Kingsley International School, we
@ Gardens Foundation 2017 Foundation for donated 30 cartons of food items. More than 110
for the Disabled and 2017118228 the Disabled and volunteers, consisting of employees and students
Montfort Boys Town Montfort Boys conducted “Gotong Royong” activities at these
FFehEFIRIEREERE S Town venues.
SR=EVER EPIREERESS H Kingsley International School #&{EE#7, BifiHigeE30
PN ER =31 ey . BERERBESBAN0ZELESAE [ Gotong
Royong | i&&H.
80, Pet Care Programme 20 November  Society for the Organised by the Interact Club, students and
ESEYIRAEERT Sl 2017 - 28 Prevention employees donated animal food and volunteered to
January 2018 of Cruelty to help at the centre.
20174118208 Animals ZetEIFREENELESE (Interact Club ) B(EFHS, BERRES
ZE2018518 BrLEERsE S BEREE R B AR DR AR RN o
28H (SPCA)
Volunteers’ 24 March Society for the Organised by the secondary students of Kingsley
Awareness Day 2018 2018 Prevention International School's Scouts Brigade, these
2018&F*ETH 201853F24H of Cruelty to volunteers helped out in various activities at SPCA.
Animals HKingsley International SchoolfIEFE 224 EilZEE), &
DL ESEIn S T7ESPCAMSIEES) PR ALRAN o
(SPCA)
Reaching out to the 1 March - 27 Orang Asli Donated 28 boxes which consist of clothing and
Orang Asli in Ipoh, April 2018 community diapers.
Perak 20185FE3R1HE JR{EEALEE 1BEE28FE&Y, R B
ENEEMNERNERE 48278
EitEs
i 8-Hour Kidz Famine 19 May 2018 World Vision More than 52 students from Kingsley International
2018 201855819H Malaysia School took part in World Vision Malaysia’s 8-Hour
2018 F 5= ikt 1TEN FEERAaE it RS RS Kidz Famine to raise funds to improve the well-being
8/M\iF of children, families and communities in need.

1885232k EKingsley International SchoolF9E4E 2 INFE2RFhEE
HR SR NI RS TEICNG, SENESHERNEESEE
& . REEMRATBHERT.
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Corporate Governance R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to achieving
high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the "GEM Listing Rules”).

As the shares of the Company (the “Shares”] were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 16 May 2018 (“the Listing Date”), the Company has since then adopted
and complied with, where applicable, the CG Code from the Listing Date up to the
date of this report (the "Relevant Period”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 t0 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code regarding securities transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”).

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Relevant
Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is spending
sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Tan Sri Barry Goh
Dato” Danny Goh

Dr. Chua Ping Yong

[=SRVAN

B /A
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TEELRHRS

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tan Sri Salleh

Tan Sri Karim

Prof. Dr. Rozainun

The biographical information of the Directors and relationships between the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profiles” on pages 30 to 33
of the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective Director’s
biography under the section “Directors’ Profiles” on page 30.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors.

Since the Share were listed on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 16 May
2018, the Board did not hold meeting during the year ended 30 June 2018 and the
Directors are well aware on the requirements of meeting as stipulated in the Listing
Rule. The Directors will adhere to the requirements in the coming financial year.

Chairman and President

The positions of Chairman and President are held by Tan Sri Barry Goh and
Dr. Chua Ping Yong respectively. The Chairman provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The President
focuses on the Company's business development and daily management and
operations generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Relevant Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company hasreceivedwrittenannualconfirmationfromeach ofthe Independent
Non-executive Directors in respect of his/ her independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current
term.

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.

www.kingsley.edu.my @@

BUIFHTEE
FERE Salleh
FHERE Karim
#HFERozainuntE+

EENEEEHRESEBNBERHEINEZE20185F
68308 LFEMNFIRFI0E33E [ EHHN | —
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Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three of a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company;
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have fulland timely access toall the information of the Company and may,
upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests], financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.
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Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the first occasion of
his/ her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Priorto the Listing Date, the Company organised a training session for all Directors.
Such training session covered a wide range of relevant topics including directors’
duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and update on GEM Listing Rules
amendments, etc. In addition, relevant reading materials including memorandum
on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors have been provided to the
directors for their reference and studying.

The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties
and regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors
for the period from the Listing Date and up to date of this report are summarised
as follows:

Directors

€

Executive Directors #{7E%
Tan Sri Barry Goh i 2=
Dato’ Danny Goh £& 28
Dr. Chua Ping Yong k&L

Independent Non-Executive Directors S IEH7EF
Tan Sri Salleh fHE Salleh
Tan Sri Karim AErE Karim

Prof. Dr. Rozainun #i#ZRozainunt&=+
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’'s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 8.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Prof. Dr. Rozainun, Tan Sri Salleh and Tan Sri Karim. Prof. Dr. Rozainun is the chairlady
of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
shall hold at least two meetings a year. Since the Shares were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018, the Audit Committee did not hold meeting during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Audit Committee will hold at least two meetings in the forthcoming year and
meet the external auditors in accordance with the CG Code and terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Tan Sri Salleh,
Independent Non-executive Director, Tan Sri Barry Goh, Executive Director,
Dr. Chua Ping Yong, Executive Director, Tan Sri Karim, Independent Non-executive
Director and Prof. Dr. Rozainun, Independent Non-executive Director. Tan Sri Salleh
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set outin the CG Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and making recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/ her associates will participate in
deciding his/ her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every year. Since the
Shares were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018, the Remuneration
Committee did not hold meeting during the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Remuneration Committee will hold at least one meeting in the forthcoming
year in accordance with the CG Code.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in note
33 in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2018.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Tan Sri Karim,
Independent Non-executive Director, Tan Sri Barry Goh, Executive Director, Dr.
Chua Ping Yong, Executive Director, Tan Sri Salleh, Independent Non-executive
Director, and Prof. Dr. Rozainun, Independent Non-executive Director. Tan Sri Karim
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination
and appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointmentand succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board diversity policy and Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director of the Company, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate
strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year. Since the Shares
were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018, the Nomination
Committee did not meet during the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Nomination Committee will hold at least one meeting in the forthcoming year
in accordance with the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing
their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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The Company has an internal audit function from the Risk Management & Internal
Control (RMIC] Department to carry out periodic independent reviews of the
adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems.
The RMIC Department reported to the management and reviewed by the Board
on an on-going basis. The Company also appoint external professional firm to
conduct a thorough review of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries on annual basis.

Crowe Governance Sdn Bhd, the external professional firm has been engaged for
providing the internal audit function and performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended 30 June 2018, and considered the internal control
system effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern which might affect
Shareholders were identified considered that such systems are effective and
adequate.

Whistle-blowing policy is in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about a crime, criminal offence, miscarriage of justice,
dangers to health, safety and of the environment and the cover up of any of these.

The Company has developed its Continuous Disclosure and Communication
Policy which provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Governance and Internal Control Policies have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 45 to 48.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June 2018
amounted to RM417,427 and nil respectively.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company, BDO
Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
30 June 2018 is set out below:

Service Category
BRF54ER!

AUDIT SERVICES #Z##z7#
NON-AUDIT SERVICES 3Fiz#k#s
TOTAL #2%1

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited, external service provider
and Lee Mei Yi of Tricor Services Limited has been appointed as the Company’'s
company secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Chee Sock Kion,
the secretary of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary on
corporate governance and board practices and matters.

Lee Mei Yi, the Company Secretary, has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rule by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to be put
forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong marked with the attention of the Company Secretary. The requisitionists must
state in their request(s) the objects of the extraordinary general meeting to be convened,
and such request must be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon receipt, the Company
will verify the requisitionists’ particulars and if the request is in order, the Company will
convene the extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the following:

Address:
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (For the attention
of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be] to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as
required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the Shareholders, the
Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy (the “Policy”) on 19
April 2018. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall be communicated
to the Shareholders mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications on the Company’s website for
corporate communications and other corporate publications.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’'s share registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such information
is publicly available. Any such questions, requests, comments and suggestions
can be addressed to the Company by post to its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there have
been no significant changes to the constitutional documents of the Company. An
up to date version of the Company’s Articles is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The board of directors (“Directors”] of Kingsley Edugroup Limited present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND HONG KONG PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
on 12 January 2017 with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The Company completed the corporate reorganisation on 30 August 2017
in preparation for the Listing, pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising our Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed “History
Development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The Shares were listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018 by way of Global Offering.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year, including an analysis of the
Group’s financial performance, an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business and Group’s key relationship with its stakeholders who have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success depends, is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report. These discussions form part of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group’s financial position, results of operations and business prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly and indirectly pertaining to
our Group’s business. The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group.
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Risk =&

Inability to enrol and retain
a sufficient number of
students

LB ENRE

Inability to recruit and retain
quality and committed
teachers and other
personnel
EEIEARKBESRE
REMES

3 R AIZED

How Kingsley Manages Risks Kingsleyn@&EmEi%

Taking note of market changes, Kingsley will be enhancing as well as developing new programmes and
curriculum that will appeal to both students and parents, locally and abroad. With the KIS Annex Building
operational in the first quarter of 2019, we will also be offering new facilities and activities which will be a main
attraction for students. ZEIHIBEK, Kingsley i§iilHEDAERIERIEINERRRIFETEINZER . BEEKISHEIE
R2019FE—FRRIEE, HFIIEREMREINER, mARENEZRSID.

To keep pace with the growth of student programmes and maintain teaching quality of KIS, we will ensure our
teachers and other personnel gain access to more training as well as Continuous Professional Development
programmes. We have also improved our human capital development initiatives to create a more balanced
work-life environment at Kingsley with the introduction of well-rounded benefits for our employees. AZa24ER
BBRWESKISHARER, RASREAMIEGCREESESEIILRSEEREITE . RITKEANERERERE, ARER
HEmEN, UEKIngsleyBIEEMFEHEN TIEEFERE.
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Highly competitive private
education market
R E TS5 F A
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We have established plans to increase brand awareness across Asia, given our quality teachers and workforce who
have delivered quality programmes. Backed by our team of passionate individuals, new and unique facilities as well
as quality programme delivery, we believe we are well-placed to complete effectively in the private education market

space. EMHNEFHBESRERFIIHE, Hit, ZMEHEABESREMO@ENEE . BERBHIHAOERK. RBEHR

iR EEAREER, RAEEERNIERMABEDETERUL—FEL.

Exposed to concentration
risks as our institutions
are located in Subang Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia

FRS B PIRIEAE T (RS FE SR P R
SWEMNRIBBEE, WEERSE
HER

Tertiary business plan

may not be implemented
successfully
RUBERINBEITR SR EERE

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are set put in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

The above is not an exhaustive list. Investor are advised to make their own judgement
or consult their own investment advisors before making any investment in the Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental, social
and governance ("ESG”) strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for the
Group’s ESG risk management and internal control systems to ensure that the ESG
strategies and reporting requirements are met. In particular, the Group implemented
energy-saving measures and environment friendly initiatives in the workplace. This
includes putting up signage, replacing electrical devices with energy-efficient devices
such as LED light tubes, inverter-based air-conditioners and electrical equipment.
Employees and students were also encouraged to switch off electrical items that
were not in use. The Group also encouraged employees and students to reduce paper
consumption through the use of double-sided printing, recycle and reuse printed paper
and encouraged the use of software-based systems to minimise printing. All printing
machines used were monitored to ensure sustainable use. The Group is committed
to improving environmental sustainability and will closely monitor the performance.
There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to environmental laws and
regulations for FY2018. For details, please refer to section headed “Governance and
Sustainability” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. To the best of the
Directors” knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
our Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of our Group during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The listing of Kingsley in the GEM of Hong Kong Stock Exchange has enabled us to widen our footprint and gain
higher recognition across Asia. We are also making strong inroads into other parts of Asia as well as the Middle
East. KingsleyiRR &Sz LT, FRMBEAERHEE, TETSHNESESRY . RMAFEEESHMNEMIEERIURFEIBE.

KIS has been identified as the key growth driver and will remain as such in the near future. We are currently
rationalising our strategic priorities for Kingsley Tertiary which could also include expanding into online
education, given the intense competition in the higher education space. KISEEREABERIERED, HEHHREST
B, BNSSHEEENHRFEE, RMEFEREKIngsleySSHERBIFARKENSEN, BEP ke EErEs 45,
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees, and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided with competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training. The Group
also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers, without whom
success in the Group's production and operation would be at risk.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 69 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the most recent
three years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on page 6 of this
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movement of the Group’s reserves during the year ended 30 June 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 72 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year end and up to the date of this annual report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Barry Goh (Chairman)

Dato’ Danny Goh

Dr. Chua Ping Yong (appointed on 13 September 2017)

HES. EFRMESHESHERF
FEBHRERERIFRIFHBEILERE FIER, #
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Independent non-executive Directors

Tan Sri Salleh (appointed on 19 April 2018)
Tan Sri Karim (appointed on 19 April 2018)
Prof. Dr. Rozainun (appointed on 19 April 2018)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section headed “Board of
Directors’ Profile” on pages 30 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contracts or an appointment letter
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date up to the annual general meeting 2018 and continue thereafter until terminated
in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other that statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the contracts relation to the reorganisation of our Group in relation to
the Listing and save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to our Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or an entity connected to
the Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the year ended 30 June 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreement were entered into by our Group, or existed during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of the associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which,
once the Shares are listed on the GEM on the Stock Exchange, will have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including any interest or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO) or will be required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or will be required, pursuant
to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
the directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, will be as follows:

B IERITES

FERE Salleh (FR2018F4B19REZ(T)

FERE Karim ( RR2018F4B19REET)
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LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES migi3rytze

Dato’ Danny Goh & 2##

Dato’ Law Boon Hee &%=

NAME OF DIRECTORS/
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

EE/ BSTBAERE
Tan Sri Barry Goh FHi 2 %1%

CAPACITY/ NATURE OF INTEREST
Bin/ EmttE

Interests of controlled corporation and concert party @
FitEEREER—STBAL O
Interests of controlled corporation and concert party @
SZREEEESR—HTEAL O

Interests of controlled corporation ¥ &k @ Eas 4

Notes:

1

2]

3]

14)

All interest stated are long positions.

The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2018.

On 14 September 2017, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Danny Goh entered into the Confirmation Deed to
acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they have been and will be actively cooperating,
communicating, and acting in concert with each other with respect to their interest in or the business of
the relevant members of our Group since they became shareholders of Kingsley International and will
continue to act in concert after the signing of the Confirmation Deed. For further details, please refer to
the section headed “History, Development and Reorganisation - Confirmation Deed” in the prospectus.
The aggregate of 552,000,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consist of (i 496,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Star Shine Finance Limited ("Star Shine”], which in turn in beneficially wholly-
owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and [ii] 56,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by DGMK Investment Limited
("DGMK”), which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato’ Danny Goh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and
Dato’ Danny Goh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or deemed to be held by them by virtue
of the disclosure requirements of the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Eduking Investment Limited (“Eduking Investment "] is owned by Dato’
Law. Therefore, Dato’ Law is deemed to be interested in 48,000,000 Shares held by Eduking Investment by

virtue of the disclosure requirements of the SFO.

NUMBEROF PERCENTAGE OF
SHARES " SHAREHOLDING ?
BRfpgE" FRES?

552,000,000 69%

552,000,000 69%
48,000,000 6%

P &E :

n
2]

3]

(4]

IR BRI BIFE .

2018565 30HE#800,000,000 EZ 1T/
=

K2017F9814H, AHERIHEHEZERIET

MR, RRUHER (BFEIE), REGMS
Kingsley  Internationali@&E#2, RIFSAEEE IR

BRIz RERESE—EISEEBIEES. 18
S@&/xf:r—fﬂ?ﬁé/j, B EHREIRESEER
—H1TE . FIGEDEERERE [ FL. FRER
Eé@’ HRIR | —B. BESRBEEREBIISH
552,000,00088825 €% (i)) Star Shine Finance
Limited ( [ Star Shine | ) E#z#&E496,000,000
BRRE, MStar  ShineH/ BT ERIFIE B = EHE
&, K(i) DGMK Investment Limited ( [ DGMK |
) Bat#EE56,000,000881%, MDGMKHZESL
EEm 2 EHE . IRIFESRYEIEOINREE
K, FHERHERZESIHES BHRERNIRERT
BRI BRI R D F G R .
Eduking  Investment  Limited ([ Eduk/ng
Investment | ) HIZEEEHTRAHZEZ).
HEE. B, RIFRESRYEEOH K E 57‘?

LONG POSITION IN THE ORDINARY SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS mtasizE EEsaze

NAME OF ASSOCIATED CAPACITY/
NAME OF DIRECTORS CORPORATIONS NATURE OF INTEREST
ERaE HEZERE Bin/ EmttE
Tan Sri Barry Goh fHi2K8%E Star Shine Beneficial owner E###EB A
Dato’ Danny Goh s 2 7## DGMK Beneficial owner BB A

Dato’ Law Boon Hee 282Ix=

Eduking Investment Beneficial owner

BEEAA

2ERXERERBIEAuking  InvestmentiFEHI
48,000,000/ 0 FHEE e
NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE OF
ORDINARYSHARES SHAREHOLDING
EiElzipEBE FiREItL
1 share of US$1.00 100%
1881.00 5T A8 R
1 share of US$1.00 100%
1881.00=E iR n
1 share of US$1.00 100%

18%1.00= 5T ER %
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors and the Chief
Executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provision of the
SFO) or which would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which would be required pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERS’
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interest or short position in
Shares or underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS AND SHORT

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS CAPACITY/ NATURE OF INTEREST

BREAE B3/ EmtE

Star Shine Beneficial owner and concert party " Z##E AR —5i7E AL 1
Puan Sri Toh Siew Choo #&#i®2 %% Interest of spouse @ E(@ias @

DGMK Beneficial owner and concert party ) @8 AR—5TE8AL

Datin See Choon Keok £iT#&% Interest of spouse © Ee{@HEzs ¥

Eduking Investment Beneficial owner Eax&iEE A

Notes:

m On 14 September 2017, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Danny Goh entered into the Confirmation Deed to
acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they have been and will be actively cooperating,
communicating, and acting in concert with each other with respect to their interest in or the business of
the relevant members of our Group since they became shareholders of Kingsley International and will
continue to act in concert after the signing of the Confirmation Deed. For further details, please refer to
the section headed “History, Development and Reorganisation - Confirmation Deed” in the prospectus.
The aggregate of 552,000,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consist of [i] 496,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Star Shine, which in turn in beneficially wholly-owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and [ii]
56,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by DGMK, which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato” Danny
Goh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Danny Goh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or
deemed to be held by them by virtue of the disclosure requirements of the SFO.

2 Puan Sri Toh Siew Choo is the spouse of Tan Sri Barry Goh and is deemed to be interested in the
shareholding interests of Tan Sri Barry Goh by virtue of the disclosure requirement of the SFO.

5 Datin See Choon Keok is the spouse of Dato” Danny Goh and is deemed to be interested in the shareholding
interests of Dato’ Danny Goh by virtue of the disclosure requirement of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 30 June
2018 and up to the date of this report, have the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM listing rules)
had any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised any rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company and/ or its
associated corporations [within the meaning of SFOJ.

bR B EEE SN, 120186 830H, AN
BEENESTRABRAR T HEETHE
(EERBHFRIBERGEXVE) BN . 18
BRI (DSl EREE T A RIZE S NBERAIEXV
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B ( BRERRERES RIERIIEBIE S RIR B
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RSNV B ESE A=
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FRNAEFRESTHAL ) BHRD AR
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IBRLRIRIR RS R EIRGIZE 33615 B ER AT
PRz ERERCA ¢
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552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
48,000,000 6%
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries from the Listing Date to 30 June 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted. The Company has maintained liability insurance
to provide appropriate cover for the Directors during the year ended 30 June 2018.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
China Everbright Capital Limited ("CECL’) to be the compliance adviser. CECL, being
the sponsor to the listing, has declared its independence pursuant to Rule 6A.07 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Save as the above, neither CECL nor any of its associates and
none of the directors or employees of CECL who have been involved in providing advice
to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a result of the share offer, have any
interest in any securities of the Company or any other companies of the Group. The
compliance adviser agreement entered between the Company and our compliance
adviser dated 8 September 2017.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Detail of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of our
Group are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee will review and determine the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors” regarding their responsibilities, workload,
time devoted to our Group and the performance of our Group. Up to the date of this
annual report, no share option scheme has been adopted.

COMPETING INTEREST

The Directors confirm that none of the Controlling Shareholders or the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules] is interested
in any business apart from the business operated by our Group which competes or is
like to compete, directly or indirectly, with our Group’s business during the year ended
30 June 2018 and up to the date of this annual report.

BBHE. HLESkEE LhES
B LR REREE20185F68308, ARESEHTH
MEARWERE . HEERANT EHES.
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DEED OF NON COMPETITION
On 19 April 2018, the Company entered into the Deed of Non-competition with each of
the controlling shareholders (“Controlling Shareholders”) of the Company.

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company that they would not, and would procure
their respective close associates and/ or companies controlled by the respective
Controlling Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on their own account or
in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other things,
carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any business or activity which
is or may be in competition with the business of the Group. Details of Non-competition
are disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders”
of the Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/ it had complied with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-competition. The
INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the Deed of Non-
competition and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been complied
with since the date of the execution of the same and up to 30 June 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2018
are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group. None
of these related party transactions constituted a connected transactions as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our customers primarily consist of our students and their parents. We did not have any
single customer who accounted for more than 10% of our revenue for the year ended
30 June 2018.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, our five largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 22.02% (2017 : 17.4%) of our cost of revenue and our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.64% (2017 : 9.17%) of our cost of revenue.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any shareholder of the
Company who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owns more than 10% of our issued
capital, has any interest in any of our five largest suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Save as the above, the Board is not aware of any significant event subsequent to
30 June 2018 and up to the date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’'s articles of
association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would be oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
There were no charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 30 June
2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company complies with the
minimum of public float of 25%.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 have
been audited by BDO Limited, which would retire at the forming AGM and being
eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as
the Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed to the Shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising
of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their professional
advisers.

On behalf of the Board

Tan Sri Barry Goh
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 12 September 2018

[BseEsnaiE
ARBEGERMA SNBSS X0 WEELH
RIEMNFEX S A ANBEZLAIDIRE REBEEHN

R

BEER
#HZE2018F6B30HILFE, AEBUWEFLHZ
E18R.

BHATSIRE
RIERNBSRRER MM ESIIRMN, EFE
BARBDETRIBARITRE25% .

B ERT

KREB#HE2018F6B30H L FELREHHRE
DREBIUERERIMEZMERATEZ, &
BREGEITHRRBEFRE LIBE, EFGE
1, BEEEHNEE. $REERTHRIBEFAS
FRERENEENZEE L ERFATANMES
PRERAS BB ZEE NI EESREEEFH

RER

nEiR%
RABWAMBRERGEROMIESHEAR
BRR. HRETHEERE. 58, HE. B&ER
1 AT EERR 1D B RAYE @RS RAREEE
BE, BiEdansEEmEnER.

REEFS

BFEEERPE
LEFRNITEF

i, 2018F9812H



AT A GLANCE
&N

ABOUT KINGSLEY

S

MANAGEMENT PERSPECTIVE
EIERA

o TR 3 @

SUSTAINABILITY

HEERE

9 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
priEd

ollD

Independent Auditor’'s Reportmeoirecors o

Kingsley Edugroup Limited (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
BUBRYMBRENECERHNEEXEEEGRATINNES (RHEHESEMAZINERAT )

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingsley Edugroup Limited
(the “Company”] and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages 69 to 118,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"] and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “"Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Refer to Note 4[e] and 7 to the consolidated financial statements

We focused on this area because revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Group which increases the risk that revenue could be manipulated to meet financial
expectations or targets. In addition, there is inherent risk on the occurrence and
completeness of the Group’s revenue because the academic year is not the same
as the Group’s financial year. Tuition fees for students are invoiced at the beginning
of each academic term/ year before the Group’s education services take place. With
revenue deferred until the services take place, there is potential for error on revenue
recognition that revenue may be recorded in the incorrect period of the financial year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Directors of Kingsley Edugroup Limited

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BUGHMBENELEEAEEEETERATINVESE (RHSHBEMAZNERAT )

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAUBERERERS (&)

(CONTINUED)

OUR RESPONSE:

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

e assessing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over the admission of students, collection of tuition fees and timing of
revenue recognition;

e evaluating the reasonableness on the revenue recognised during the year by
analysing the tuition fees charged to and the number of students enrolled on
each school class levels;

e on a sample basis, inspecting payment records regarding tuition fees from the
students; and

e reconciling the total number of students at the end of the year to the records
submitted to Malaysian education authorities.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’
STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility
in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Directors of Kingsley Edugroup Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BUGHMBENECEGEHUEEEEHEGRATINVES (RHASHEEMAZANBRAT)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAUBERERERS (&)

(CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Directors of Kingsley Edugroup Limited

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BUGHMBENELEBEHUEEEETEGRATINNVES (RHES

HEEMRZOBRAS)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SAUBEREEES (&)

(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Pak Tak Lun

Practising Certificate no. P06170

Hong Kong, 12 September 2018
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C O n S O l. I d a t e d S t a t e m e n tof Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income For The Year Ended 30 June 2018 5 iEm N EME2EIAEZREHE2018F6 300 ELFE

2018 £ 2017 &
Notes RM RM
[} °5 °E
Revenue & 7 30,007,241 29,794,992
Cost of revenue Wzs A (14,493,570) (12,336,340)
Gross profit £/ 15,513,671 17,458,652
Other revenue and gains EAI A\ K iz 7 6,284,399 5,995,609
Selling and distribution expenses #4& R 7> #46Is2 (350,088) (275,381)
Administrative expenses {7552 (16,805,108) (7,181,335)
Operating profit & & a5 4,642,874 15,997,545
Finance costs & A 13 (3,354,767) (4,635,592)
Profit before income tax i:FriSi 8 1,288,107 11,361,953
Income tax expense A% 14 (107,881) (70,384)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year &£RisF R £Em KA @2 1,180,226 11,291,569
Attributable to LA F A L /Efd:
Owners of the Company A2 E1##ES A 1,510,013 11,021,974
Non-controlling interests 3z Rtz (329,787) 269,595

1,180,226 11,291,569

Earnings per share S&2#
- Basic and diluted EA R #E 15 0.24 1.84
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As At 30 June 2018 &5 & BF B KR ER 20186 H30H

2018 & 2017 £
Notes RM RM
[ Fi <& S5
Non-current assets RN & E
Property, plant and equipment #% . BE k& 16 136,297,771 119,807,276
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment #2. @5 R&EZFEGRIE 120,000 -
Total non-current assets IR &S ERE 136,417,771 119,807,276
Current assets iigh&&E
Accounts receivable FEIERR 18 39,313 871,418
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables F&J5I8. &< R EBHEKGIE 19 1,769,141 636,992
Amount due from a shareholder fE¥ R ERIE 20 - 2,209
Amounts due from related companies FElEE A E)F01E 20 3,639,545 5,130,456
Tax recoverable ATz [EliR1E 168,307 76,662
Pledged bank deposits EfiFRITFR 17 533,032 518,245
Cash and cash equivalents & RIBEEEEY 35,211,376 6,705,098
Total current assets REHEELE 41,360,714 13,941,080
Current liabilities R& & &
Accounts payable &S &R 21 663,961 581,959
Other payables and accruals Efh S sIE K& 2 22 6,284,054 5,906,907
Amount due to a related company BB A ST 23 735 66,000
Bank borrowings, secured BHEFRITE 24 23,169,450 1,704,950
Obligations under finance leases Bl & &iFiE 25 - 35,425
Total current liabilities & & {&4%8 30,118,200 8,295,241
Net current assets REI&EEZE 11,242,514 5,645,839
Total assets less current liabilities @& &/ G & & 147,660,285 125,453,115
Non-current liabilities IExE & &
Amount due to a related company B EE A BF1E 23 14,792,113 25,592,113
Bank borrowings, secured B#EFRITE 24 64,338,888 67,878,338
Deferred tax liabilities IFFERIE& (& 26 10,196 8,209
Obligations under finance leases @& E%iE 25 - 84,642
Total non-current liabilities kg & &4R%E 79,141,197 93,563,302

Net assets F&&E 68,519,088 31,889,813
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As At 30 June 2018
GEMBKRRER2018FE6H30H

2018 £ 2017 &
Notes RM RM
P EE °5 °H

Equity #z
Share capital B4 27 4,039,181 45
Share premium &5z fE 31,409,986 -
Reserves f#f& 27 33,160,932 31,650,992
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 TS A iz 68,610,099 31,651,037
Non-controlling interests k=L 31 (91,011) 238,776
Total equity #Ez4458 68,519,088 31,889,813

On behalf of the directors ft&&=g

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon Dr. Chua Ping Yong
BEfESEERPE ZkEEL
Director &= Director =%



72 KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED £ EEAESEERERAS www.kingsley.edu.my @a

Consolidated Statementof Changes In Equity

For The Year Ended 30 June 2018 I R EREFHEH E2018F6 300 L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company & 2 8 # 85 A E (&

Share Merger Retained

Non-
Share capital premium reserve earnings controlling Total
BA BB R E A (Note B#E 27)  Sub-total interests equity
(Note iz 27) (Note Pz 27) (Note PiHEE 27) FERH et EEEBRED fEsi@em
RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H
At 1 July 2016 20167818 - - 18,300,002 2,329,016 20,629,018 (45,819) 20,583,199
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year ENiaHI R EmUNEEE - - - 11,021,974 11,021,974 269,595 11,291,569
Issuance of new shares (Note 27)
BATHRRY (FFE 27) 45 - - - 45 - 45
Issuance of new shares to a
non-controlling shareholder by
Kingsley Language House Sdn. Bhd.
(“Kingsley Language House”)
Kingsley Language House Sdn. Bhd.
( [ Kingsley Language House | )
EE AR AR B B 1T HTAR - - - - - 15,000 15,000
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017
201746 830HKX2017%781H 45 - 18,300,002 13,350,990 31,651,037 238,776 31,889,813
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year S REFIR 2 EKR N B8 - - - 1,510,013 1,510,013 (329,787) 1,180,226
Issue of ordinary share for share offer
(Note 27) siie (s EZTLER (ME 27) 1,009,795 39,382,005 - - 40,391,800 - 40,391,800
Transaction costs attributable to issue of
new shares 17D BEIEZ S RLA - (4,942,644) - - (4,942,644) - (4,942,644)
Capitalisation issue (Note 27)
BARMLET (i 27) 3,029,375 (3,029,375) - - - - -
Issuance of new shares (Note 27)
BATHRRR (FFE 27) 53 - - - 53 - 53
Shares repurchased and cancelled
(Note 27) sEIR s8R (MEE 27) (87) - - - (87) - (87)
Effect of Reorganisation E#/95/# - - (73) - (73) - (73)

At 30 June 2018 201846 5308 4,039,181 31,409,986 18,299,929 14,861,003 68,610,099 (91,011) 68,519,088
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 30 June 2018 &2 S IREREXHE E2018F6A30HIEFEE

2018 £F 2017 £
Notes RM RM
P aE °E A

Cash flows from operating activities & =;ZBFiiSREHE
Profit before income tax k&FriSiEIRF] 1,288,107 11,361,953

Adjustments for FLA T SIEE L FHEE:

Interest income FIEUA 7 (31,090) (83,202)
Liquidated and ascertained damages ;2SI ER EE 7 (5,475,000) (5,475,000)
Finance costs Bi& A 13 3,309,717 4,601,804
Amortisation of debt issuance cost &7 3517 R A #H 45,050 33,788
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1%. BEREETE 8 2,317,585 2,373,280
Listing expenses £z 8 7,399,013 491,273
Written off of property, plant and equipment fifi$g#2 . Bghs R &M 8 - 41,734
Written off of accounts receivable fifi#8 KBRS 8 19,514 -
Operating profit before working capital changes Zi&& & £ &)aiRy & &5 8,872,896 13,345,630
Decrease/ (increase) in accounts receivable FEUEESURZ> / (1200) 812,591 (608,074)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables Fa{I5RIE. &Rk E B EKGRIEE N (995,688) (127,767
Decrease/ (increase) in amount due from a shareholder FEl R s 2R1E jF>/ (1540) 2,209 (2,209)
Increase in accounts payable E{FERFRIZ N 82,002 185,286
(Decreasel/ increase in other payables and accruals Eft R sAER MR (Rl ) /1210 (465,517) 1,522,476
Cash generated from operations & &fi5RE 8,308,493 14,315,342
Income taxes paid EfIFiSH (321,015) (18,837)
Income taxes refunded iREIFFER 123,476 21,250
Net cash from operating activities & &EaFrSIREF4E 8,110,954 14,317,755

Cash flows from investing activities 12 &E#FISREHE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BE41% . FiE k21 (1,403,258) (894,673)
Increase in prepayments for property, plant and equipment #2%. s R& 2 A TRIEEM (120,000) =
Considerations paid upon Reorganisation Sz HFHILE (73) S
(Increase)/ decrease in pledged bank deposits & RRITER (H#00) /i (14,787) 724,573
Interest received EKFIE 31,090 83,202

Net cash used in investing activities 12 & FR AR S B4 (1,507,028) (86,898)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended 30 June 2018
HEERSREXEHE2018F6830HLEEE

2018 £F 2017 &
Notes RM RM
P s 5 £

Cash flows from financing activities Bt & E&FrSRERE
Proceeds from issuance of new shares & {T# i1 PRSFIE 42 15,045
Proceeds from bank borrowings $R{7 & Fr151E 27,000,000 69,549,500
Repayment of bank borrowings &g 847 &3k (9,120,000) (65,538,550)
Repayments to related companies ;& F B A S (20,099,354) (5,539,859)
Repayments to a director @ &% - (3,222,163)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases &&R&EHEERE (120,067) (33,611)
Interest paid EfF & (4,118,490) (4,264,078)
Payment of listing expenses % f¢ EiBIsz (7,088,859) (181,119)
Issue of shares on global offering, net of share issue expenses £EREEEr5IE TR, HBRARHIEITHI 35,449,080 =
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities B&:E8FrS ~ (Fif ) BEiE 21,902,352 (9,214,835)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B£ RIE £ S EIEINFE 28,506,278 5,016,022
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ RE&RRESEY 6,705,098 1,689,076

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year £XE&REELEEY 35,211,376 6,705,098
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 January 2017 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Its shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
16 May 2018. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.0. Box 31119 Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is LG5, Kingsley International School, Persiaran
Kingsley, Kingsley Hills, Putra Heights, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of education and related services.

Inthe opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Star Shine Finance Limited, which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) carried out by
the Group in preparation for the listing of shares of the Company on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group on 30 August 2017. Details of the Group Reorganisation are
as set out in the section headed “History, Development and Reorganisation” to the
prospectus issued by the Company dated 30 April 2018.

Immediately prior to and after the Group Reorganisation, the Company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of education and related
services (the “Listing Business”). Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the
completion of the Reorganisation, the Listing Business was carried on by companies
now comprising the Group.

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the Listing Business is held by
the companies now comprising the Group together with the Listing Business are
transferred to and held by the Company. By inserting those companies over the
companies now comprising the Group, have no substance and do not form a business
combination, and accordingly, the financial statements of the Company was combined
with that of the operating subsidiaries using the predecessor carrying amounts.
The Reorganisation is therefore merely a reorganisation of the Listing Business
and does not constitute a business combination, as if the group structure under the
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the year ended 30 June 2018, or
since the respective dates of incorporation of the entities now comprising the Group,
whichever is the shorter period.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018 included the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of the companies now comprising the Group from the earliest
date presented or since their respective dates of incorporation, whichever was
shorter, as if the current group structure had been in existence through the year. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2018 have
been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in existence at those dates. No
adjustment is made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities as
a result of the Reorganisation.

—EREH
ANBR2017E1B12 AR SR ERER
SEHEBRNAETMAIAEEREBRASE.
HEHR2018F5816HEEBHEaRXS
FrBRAEGem L. ARBIEMMPSIE
#itAP.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, Ky1-1205 Cayman
Islands R EFBE&EHELA | G5, Kingsley
International School, Persiaran Kingsley,
Kingsley Hills, Putra Heights, 47650
Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.
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2. REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)
Allintra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

The financial statements has been prepared in accordance

include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the financial statements includes applicable
disclosures required by the GEM Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. All HKFRSs effective for the accounting period commencing from 1 July
2017, together with the relevant transitional provisions, have been early adopted by
the Group in the preparation of the Historical Financial Information throughout the

year ended 30 June 2018.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”).
The principal activities of the Group are expressed in Malaysian Ringgit ("RM”).

Accordingly, the Group uses RM as its reporting currency.

EARENEE (F)
PREEENATBRZS MiGEGRES L,

A RERTDRBE B GRS EMIEEY
BIREER (BEREEBHBREE. &
BERER ( [ Z8TETER ] ) KB ) &
B, Mo, BBIRFEEGEMEMRAIRE
BRERGIMRECERNEEIR. HEBE
BB ERE, REEREE2018F6830H
IEFERERMB2017F7 B1HBBRNES
HBEMAPTE TR Y BRE ER R ERRE
153

with HKFRSs (which

BATEMRRTIIZE LR AN EAREL o

BEBEERNB UM BIREUEREEREE
EERENER ([ REE ] ) 29, &

EENEEEBUBKARSE ([SF])

290, BEit, AEBUSHER2REE.

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS [ER & B IR SR
The following new/ revised HKFRSs, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’'s current intention is to apply these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 40 &8 @5t #8I554058 (18574 )
Amendments to HKFRS 2 &8 B3R E#RI5258 (18374 )
Amendments to HKFRS 4 S8 78RS #RIE45E (18574 )

HKFRS 9 &80 #mE#ERI5E95R
Amendments to HKFRS 9 &8 53R &S #RIZE99% (15T A )

HKFRS 15 &80 75iR S #8155155%
Amendments to HKFRS 15 &7 RS #AIE1558 (1854 )

HKFRS 16 &Fi88 75k &SR 1658
Amendments to HKFRS 9 &8 78RS #BIE05E (18574 )

HKFRS 17 &85 E #RI51758

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
EBVBREENE10REEBZHERNFE285R (B85TA)
HKIIFRIC) - Interpretation 22

55 (ARMFEHREREZET ) — HEF22R
HKIIFRIC) - Interpretation 23

5 (ARMBEERELEZES ) — REF23R
Amendments to HKFRSs &8 84753k &8 (12374 )

Amendments to HKFRSs &8 8175k %8I (18574 )

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

oW N

Transfers of Investment Property’ §#iig &2’

Share-Based Payment' @3z

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts' ER&E B RS LR BEOR SR T BB BRE ERIZE45E
RREL

Financial Instruments' £zt T &'

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?
BEEE8MEZIRINEFTISER

Revenue from Contracts with Customers' &5 &4IK A
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
EBUBRESENE10REFSNORAREBE

Leases? fH&?

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?
BEESMEZRIETIEE?

Insurance contracts* {®g& %0

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture® 8 B & BEBMEN TN SE L EZRANEELERNHE®
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
IMER S RGB!

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments? EF{S ERIEAIFHEE M2

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle'
EBBREE2014FE2016F BHRFEE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 cycle?
BB HBREER2015F E 2017 FB PN FESUE?

! 12201851 B1 B Z & BRI FERARILERL
? 12201951 B1H 32 &R FERRBIEXN
IRAFRE BB 2 Z Rt A0 F E BRI A 3L

N 18202151 B1 B &R RAIFEHRBEXN
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payment

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics test] are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect
the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are
not held for trading at fair value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

HKFRS ¢ includes a new expected credit loss model for all financial assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss replacing the incurred loss model
in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies as at
30June 2018, the directors of the Company preliminarily assess that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The
directors of the Company have performed a preliminary assessment and expect
that the application of the expected credit loss model will not have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The core
principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
forthose goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:
e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to
revenue.

The directors of the Company have performed a preliminary assessment
and expect that the implementation of the HKFRS 15 would not result in any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
Meanwhile, there will be additional disclosure requirement under HKFRS 15
upon its adoption. HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 and earlier application is permitted.

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on identification of
performance obligations; application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “ Leases “ and
related interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting modeland requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of RM431,401 as disclosed in note 28. These arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS
16. In the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, lease will be recognised in the future as depreciation and will no longer
be recorded as rental expenses. Interest expense on the lease liability will be
presented separately from depreciation under finance costs. The combination of
a straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective interest
rate method applied to the lease liability will result in a higher total charge to
profit or loss in the initial year of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the
latter part of the lease term on a lease by lease basis. Nevertheless, it is expected
that there will be no material impact on the total expenses to be recognised by
the Group over the entire lease period and the total net profit over the lease
period is not expected to be materially affected. The adoption of HKFRS 16 would
not affect the total cash flows in respect of the leases. The Group is continuing
to assess the specific magnitude of the adoption of HKFRS 16 to the relevant
financial statement areas and will conduct a more detailed assessment on the
impact as information become available closer to the planned initial date of the
adoption of 1 July 2019.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised when
an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business the gain
or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
joint venture or associate.

Except for those stated as above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
the future.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidation statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant equity
impairment, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributable to owners of the Company.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Merger accounting for common control combination

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined using
the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No
amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control, where there is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control combination.
The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined at the previous
financial position date or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and
the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off their cost
or valuation net of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Freehold land N/A
Buildings 50 years
Motor vehicles 5years
Leasehold improvement 5years
Computer 5years

Furniture, fixture and equipment 5 years
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery under
construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Cost includes the costs of construction and
acquisition and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to the respective categories
of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets at their
fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments
are analysed between capital and interest. The interest element is charged
to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Leasing (Continued)

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integrated part of the total rental expense,
over the term of the lease.

(d)

Financial Instruments

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or
sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation
or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

They arise principally through the provision of goods and services

to customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of

contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether there

is any objective evidence that financial asset is impaired. Financial

asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result

of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of

the asset and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of

impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s financial
difficulty;

e it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Financial Instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including accounts and
other payables, amounts due to related companies, amount due to
shareholders, bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

liv) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, shares of
the Company do not have a nominal value. Consideration received
or receivable for the issue of shares is credited to share capital.
Commissions and expenses are allowed to be deducted from share
capital under s.148 and s.149 of the Ordinance.
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(e) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, after deducting discounts and refunds.

Tuition fees received from colleges are recognised after a service contract is
signed, the price is fixed or determinable, and services are provided.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

Tuition fees received from international school are generally paid in advance
prior to the beginning of each academic term, and are initially recorded
as deferred revenue. Tuition fees are recognised proportionately over the
relevant period of the academic terms. The portion of tuition payments
received from students but not earned is recorded as deferred revenue and
is reflected as a current liability as such amounts represent revenue that
the Group expects to earn within one year.

Other ancillary fees, including (i) the goods and services provided at the
on-campus canteens; (i) other miscellaneous sales of goods and services
provided for students; and [iii) other training related services, are recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed or the services have
been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on accruals basis using the effective interest
method.

Income tax
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

(i

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(ii)

The employees in the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme, the Employees Provident
Fund (the "EPF Scheme”) operated by the Malaysia government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll
costs to the EPF Scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make specified contributions.
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of property, plantand equipment to determine whether there is anyindication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount [i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j)

(k)

()]

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment information
based on the regular internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance of those
components.

Related parties
(a] A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:
(il has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:
(il The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related

to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is

an associate of the third entity.

(v] The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the

employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii] A person identified in (a](i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of

the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

(i

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group regularly reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment based on factors such as business plan and strategies, expected
level of usage and future technological developments. Future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in
the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase
the recorded depreciation and decrease the value of property, plant and
equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset.
This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/ or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision previously made.

(iii) Impairment of loans and receivables

(iv)

The policy for the impairment of receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on the
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
Income taxes

Judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

The Company recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Business segment

The Group’s operating segments are determined based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the Group (the directors
of the Company who are also directors of all operating subsidiaries)
(the "CODM”), for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment and focus on type of services performed. The CODM considers
the business from the service perspective. When the Group companies have
similar economic characteristics and the segments are similar in each of
the following respects: (i] the nature of the services; (i) the type or class
of students for their services; and [iii] the methods used to provide their
services, the Group’s operating segments are aggregated. In the view of
CODM, the Group is principally engaged in two different segments which are
subject to different business risks and different economic characteristics
and the Group’s operating and reportable segments for segment reporting
purpose are International school and Tertiary education respectively.

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments
for the year are as follows:

International Tertiary

school education

BB 8 =EHE

RMS&H RM$&H

For the year ended 30 June 2018
HE2018F6830HLEE

Revenue iz 29,864,791 142,450
Cost of revenue Wzspi 4 (13,771,243) (722,327)
Gross profit/ (loss) £,/ (Ei&) 16,093,548 (579,877)
Selling and distribution expenses #4& &k 534585z (317,864) (32,224)
Administrative expenses 175 (6,6493,163) (1,625,048)
Other revenue and gains AR Kz 5,968,040 316,359
Operating profit/ (loss) &&iF) ~ (#5#E) 15,250,561 (1,920,790)
Finance costs @& A (3,354,767) -

Profit/ (loss) before income tax pFR{SiRET=H,~ (#58) 11,895,794 (1,920,790)

6. EIBEH

(a) #3
REBNEEDHERALEBFELE
RiRE (RIFEEEMNBARERNA
NEEE) ([ FBLEERKRE | ) 2R
MERES, UMESRERITHERER,
jI%EEAﬁE&TﬁEEﬁ%E’J*E*” TERER
RERIRBIEEFLER . EXEEET
NENEESEIEM, momE ()RS
RME; (INETRBEEERIEMRE;
RN HERBSEAREESHEEM
B, REEKEDBEGENR, TEL
EARERSB, AEEEZEZREMERRE
#7, SBEABNEBRBREARBNKE
B, TEBERSE, FAEENKER

AIZ2REBSFIBBERERRSELNS .

FRAOEBRERKFERENT2RD A
AR

Inter-segment

Unallocated elimination Total
8 E D f@st
RM$&H RM$&H RM$&H

- - 30,007,241
- - (14,493,570)

- - 15,513,671
- - (350,088)
(8,686,897) - (16,805,108)
- - 6,284,399
(8,686,897) - 4,642,874
- - (3,354,767)
(8,686,897) - 1,288,107

As at 30 June 2018 201856 830H
Segment assets S EFEE 175,238,700 1,002,399
Segment liabilities HEF&E 132,001,191 2,105,344

Other segment information HEfta5>&&#}

Additions to non-current assets (Note16) 18,695,908 98,710
RBEIEREEE (M 16)

Depreciation (Note 16) #7E (Hf3£16) 2,275,382 41,306

27,163,065 (25,625,679) 177,778,485
1,115,123 (25,962,261) 109,259,397

13,462 - 18,808,080

897 - 2,317,585
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) &5gia$l (&)
(a) Business segment (Continued) 5 (%)

International Tertiary Inter-segment
school education Unallocated elimination
Eilide 154 BRSNS FRE EF Lk Total 48 &t
RM&H RM&H RMEH RMEE RM&H
For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE2017F6H30HLEE
Revenue ¥z 26,802,388 2,992,604 = - 29,794,992
Cost of revenue Wrzspi 7 (11,773,772) (562,568) - = (12,336,340)
Gross profit/ (loss) £/ (&) 15,028,616 2,430,036 - - 17,458,652
Selling and distribution expenses #4554 #5535z (160,810) (114,571) - - (275,381)
Administrative expenses 17EEIZ (5,175,205) (1,358,695) (647,435) - (7,181,335)
Other revenue and gains EfEK A\ K Iz 5,995,609 - - - 5,995,609
Operating profit/ (loss) &&F./ (#5iE) 15,688,210 956,770 (647,435) = 15,997,545
Finance costs @&z (4,635,592) - - - (4,635,592)
Profit/ (loss) before income tax i#FriSiansFl,~ (#E5iE) 11,052,618 956,770 (647,435) = 11,361,953
As at 30 June 2017 201746 H30H
Segment assets EBEE 133,066,904 1,005,439 536,346 (860,333) 133,748,356
Segment liabilities £#%&1& 101,248,474 190,928 1,244,468 (825,327) 101,858,543
Other segment information HEft: 35 & %t
Additions to non-current assets (Note16)
NEIEREEE (M 16) 2,142,063 7,091 - - 2,149,154
Depreciation (Note 16) #7# (BfaE 16) 2,307,033 66,247 - - 2,373,280
(b) Geographic information (b) tEE&EH
For the geographical information, revenue from external customers hEERSE, KEHIREFIWERR
are based on the location of operations. Since the Group solely operates BEMEED . ARAERERBRAR
business in Malaysia and all of the non-current assets of the Group are RExs, MAKERGIFREEEIN
located in Malaysia, no geographical segment information is presented in REHRAS, MIERBEEEHBREE
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments. B8RS EXEE 2R ERER
(c) Information about major customers (c) xEXEFEH
No revenue from a single customer contributes 10% or more of total revenue Fr, WES—=FAIRE(SAREE B

of the Group during the year. #m10%3kAE .
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Wis. HEibigA R
Wak (BNASEBE R ) ERMURBOEE,
EHIRFE AT RIBR .

7. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 7.
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the value of services
rendered, after deducting discounts and refunds during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: B BRI T -

2018 & 2017 &
RME$& RM&&E
Revenue Kz

Tuition fees 2& 21,201,271 21,850,083
Ancillary services &R 8,805,970 7,944,909
30,007,241 29,794,992

Other revenue and gains Eft A\ R iz
Interest income FISWA 31,090 83,202
Liquidated and ascertained damages " ;z#piE E10EmsEe Y 5,475,000 5,475,000
Others Hfth 778,309 437,407
6,284,399 5,995,609

Note: BgE :

m The Group is entitled to the liquidated and ascertained damages as a result of the delay in completion
of the construction of the annex building under a contractual contract with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.,

- iR#FEIKIngsley Hills San. Bhd. (1=RREE

BRGNS A E] ) RIEE RN

Fika) AL

HIEH], NEBERYERRINT A IEZRA = T
EERRISENERET . AR EANTESRT
#Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. It LR S 14 £8
RETUEREEY], MALNTERCHESIT
YWrHKingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. AI:RAFIE E4IE

a related company controlled by Dato” Goh Meng Keong, one of the Controlling Shareholders, under
normal commercial terms. Judgement has been made by the directors of the Company to recognise
the liquidated and ascertained damages received from Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. as other revenue as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. entered into the construction

contract with the Group was not in its capacity as a shareholder.

FEIEZ MR BRI .

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX [&Fri5#aiiiFl
2018 £E 2017 £
RM$& RM$&
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ (crediting) B FriSiBIEFIEME./ (3t ) FIISIE:
Auditor’s remuneration #ZEEmENE 417,427 62,110
Employee costs (Note10) {& & pAs (KizE10) 10,977,330 8,348,217
Impairment of accounts receivable (Note 18) FEKZERFRRE (Ki3E18) - 32,900
Written off of accounts receivable fifi# @WK ERTR 19,514 16,200
Written off of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) #fss4% . 5 R &4 ((HiEE16) - 41,734
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note16) #1%. 55 K& 378 (F3E16):
- Owned BB 2,308,868 2,330,392
- Held under finance leases Riggt&REFE 8,717 42,888
Minimum lease payments received under operating leases from leasing of properties less outgoings (21,121) (26,900)
in the year FWIRIRE ST ST S EW NN RRIESRSH
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as expense in the year 409,392 387,806
FRERAAXNEEEEREESIN
Listing expenses (including professional fees and other expenses) EHifs (@ fES % AR EERHY ) 7,399,013 491,273
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9. DIVIDENDS 9. R
No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company during the year, nor has RABRFNLEIR SRERGETRE,
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period. ERESPERURTEZZRGETRE.
10. EMPLOYEE COSTS 10. BERE*
2018 £ 2017 £F
RM$H RM&H
Employee costs (including directors) comprise #&&5i4 (G#EEE ) @iFE:
Wages and salaries T&#i & 9,750,922 7,481,401
Short-term non-monetary benefits f@Hf3FE @A 178,200 120,796
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes B k@RI aT 2R 1,048,208 746,020
10,977,330 8,348,217
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. E5ES
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong Kong EEMEDRBETBAERM) (56225 ) 8
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure 3831& (1&6)) RAT) (HHEEENZER)
of Information about Benefits of Directors)] Regulation (Cap.622G) (the 1A ($622G% ) (RE) HWEUT ¢
Regulation] is as follows:
Year ended 30 June 2018
#1E2018F6 B30 LLFE:

Contributions
to retirement

Salaries and Penefit schemes

Fees  other benefits BIkER Total

e HERHEHMHER A EIHER st

RM$& RM$& RM$& RM$&

Executive directors #ii7&%

Tan Sri Dato® Sri Goh Ming Choon FHf 25 RBEE 2,501 - - 2,501
Dato’Goh Meng Keong =& R5i# 2,501 - - 2,501
Dr. Chua Ping Yong (Note) ZikEi#(piz) 2,501 219,000 27,181 248,682

Independent Non-Executive directors #8:73F#hi7E S
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin %
BHUIFAHREEEMohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasinféi+ 7,500 - - 7,500
Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
B =EH] Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz #i%Rozainun Binti Abdul Azizf#+ 7,500 - - 7,500

7,500 - - 7,500

30,003 219,000 27,181 276,184
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) &= (&)

Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefit schemes

other benefits BkER
Fees#l® #HEREMER RHEIHER Total &t
RM&$&H RM&&H RM$H RM$&H

Executive directors #1{7&=% - - - -
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon 2= & RHE - - - -

Dato’Goh Meng Keong & 25## - - - -

Notes: Dr. Chua Ping Yong was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 13 September 2017.
PHEE: ZohB 02017 F9F 13ABEFBELTHITEE.

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. ABREHHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one (2017:none) %52018565305&55’: rEFELERS
of them were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the FHMALR, —& (20174 : ) BARF

disclosures in Note 11 above for the year ended 30 June 2018. The emoluments BH, AWM R EXME1RE. BFAL

of the remaining individuals are as follows: L
2018 £ 2017 £F
RM$H RM&&
Salaries and other benefits & & EihEF) 690,500 749,359
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes B{Af@FIaTRIHFR 70,122 88,650
760,622 838,009
Their emoluments were within the following bands:
HENNENFLUTEE:
2018 £E 2017 £
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
Ag AE
Nil to RM520,000 (approximately nil to HK$1,000,000)
FE520,0009F (KFE1,000,000/7T) 4 5
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were
within the following bands:
ENSECSREEASHMEN FLUTEE:
2018 £F 2017 £
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A® A

Nil to RM520,000 (approximately nil to HK$1,000,000)
FZE520,0004F (HZZE1,000,00087T ) 3 2
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors nor
the five highest paid individuals have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

13. FINANCE COSTS mi&Em#+

14.

Interest on bank borrowings $R4T &5 FE
Amortised debt issuance cost E# 435 Epk A
Interest on finance leases AEHREFE

Revolving loan interest &R &5 F &

Less: interest capitalised on qualifying assets
i BEREENEAMFIS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FriS#F%

12. AgREHMAL (&)
FN, AEEREORALNDESHhERSH
A2 AEAEE, (FRIRSIEIMASLEIN
AREERRREERRHE. R, EFRR
LEESHMA T EEL R BRSO

2018 £F 2017 £
RM$&H RM$&
4,133,092 4,595,000
45,050 33,788
1,418 6,804
380,029 -
4,559,589 4,635,592
(1,204,822) S
3,354,767 4,635,592

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

GEEDmNAEMEERANERIA SR SN T:

Current tax - Malaysian profits tax BMHA#RIE - BERAEEFIS
- charge for the year #FRx

- under provision in respect of prior years {EFEETE

Deferred tax (Note 26) iEfER IS (1 526)

Income tax expense Fr{S#iBix

Malaysian profits tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%) of
the estimated taxable profit for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company located in Malaysia were recognised as
small and medium scale companies by the Malaysia tax authority and entitled
a preferential tax rate of 18% (2017: 18%) for the year ended 30 June 2018 and
2017. For estimated taxable profit in excess of RM500,000, statutory tax rate of
24% is still applicable.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no taxable
profits arising in Hong Kong for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries
is similarly charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant jurisdictions.

2018 %F 2017 £
RM&& RM$&H
85,084 52,314
20,810 9,861
105,894 62,175
1,987 8,209
107,881 70,384

BE2018E6H30 R ILEE, BRETAIEHIE
(BRI ETI24% (20174 : 24% ) IEER
=

RABETWERBTHUNBRAE, RERAE
MBEERERT/NERE, BE20185FR2017
FO6H30BLEFEZE18% (20174 : 18% )
REERE. f¢fhstEERETER500,000<
=, AUBIRA24%REERE,

HRERN, AEETEERESEBIEQUREER G
7, EAEEWEREBRESRHRIETER
BN B A BRIRIR R RIEEE SR EERER
RN
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) Fri8#B% (%)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
FRATERE 0] BAR S B R M S RIS ENER EIRIN T

2018 £F 2017 £
RM$& RM$&
Profit before income tax BRFrSiz Al 1,288,107 11,361,953
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate #ZE NIRRT ERIRIE 424,873 2,728,870
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR FHIRFH 5 & 2,344,474 382,940
Tax losses and unutilised capital allowance not recognised during the year
FRAERNRIEEIERAEBEARBIRNGE 340,491 22,726
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses and unutilised capital allowance
(EFBERERORIAR AR RS A EARRE - (550,201)
Under provision for income tax in prior years &S & #H 2 20,810 9,861
Deferred tax recognised in respect of previously unrecognised tax losses and unutilised capital allowance
RBERERRIEGER A B AEARRERDETRIA - (658,739)
Deferred tax recognised in respect of investment tax allowance %% & iR EEHERIELR 18 (2,977,690) (1,985,758)
Others Eft (45,077) 120,685
Income tax expense FriS#:5isz 107,881 70,384

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 8@
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based
on the following data:
ARBEBRESAEARGZERERREERF DREL T EIRTE:

Earnings Z#)

2018 £ 2017 &

RM$&H RM$&H

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company A~ S#HE A E(GF P iEF] 1,510,013 11,021,974
Number of share BH&E

2018 §F 2017 £

RMSH RMESH

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year FEE& /T BRINEFIIE 625,205,479 600,000,000

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity | SREABTZARTRERB AEIEENERLL
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in SEFEEHTEERINEFIHEE . ARZE
issue during the respective years. The weighted average number of ordinary I B IR IR B 5201 7E8 B30 5
shares used for such purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects TENRH BTN ERR2018F4B190ET
of the issue of shares in connection with the Reorganisation completed on 30 (9599,008, 000 R B2 14 U AL BT TO(E 18
August 2017 and the capitalisation issue of 599,998,000 shares which took place Mg

on 19 April 2018.

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per share as SRBRNESREARNER, TﬁEEE@ESZi
the Group had no dilutive potential shares during the year ended 30 June 2018 201.85%)%305&201756)%3OE¢EEE%E
and 30 June 2017. TEEEERD .
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT #%. BRERk:&RE

Furniture,
fixture and
Construction Land and Motor Leasehold equipment
in progress buildings vehicles improvements Computer EL N Total
ERBIE IThRES RE HEYWEERE Bl RENR st
RMSE  RMOE  RMOE  RMOE  RMOE  RMOE  RMOE
Cost piA:
At 1July 2016

®20165E7818 26,209,312 94,576,687 214,440 1,605,024 1,060,307 1,828,770 125,494,540
Additions i&& 1,254,471 10 - - 530,386 364,287 2,149,154
Written off #fi# - - - (1,528,014) (10,567) (157,055) (1,695,636)
At 30 June 2017 and

1 July 2017

R2017%6 308 K%

2017%7818 27,463,783 94,576,697 214,440 77,010 1,580,126 2,036,002 125,948,058
Additions iF& 17,404,822 336,930 - 517,280 184,163 364,885 18,808,080
At 30 June 2018

#2018%6H30H 44,868,605 94,913,627 214,440 594,290 1,764,289 2,400,887 144,756,138
Accumulated

depreciation

REHRE:

At 1 July 2016

®2016&E7818 - 1,576,279 42,888 1,589,621 710,041 1,502,575 5,421,404
Charge for the year

FETH - 1,891,534 42,888 15,402 225,770 197,686 2,373,280
Written off #ifi## - - - (1,528,013) (10,124) (115,765) (1,653,902)
At 30 June 2017 and

1 July 2017

1201756 B30HR

2017%7818 - 3,467,813 85,776 77,010 925,687 1,584,496 6,140,782
Charge for the year

FELZH - 1,892,658 42,888 9,621 231,408 141,010 2,317,585
At 30 June 2018

#201856 8308 - 5,360,471 128,664 86,631 1,157,095 1,725,506 8,458,367
Net carrying amount

RIREE:

At 30 June 2018

#201846 8308 44,868,605 89,553,156 85,776 507,659 607,194 675,381 136,297,771

At 30 June 2017

122017468308 27,463,783 91,108,884 128,664 - 654,439 451,506 119,807,276
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16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Construction in progress as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 comprises
buildings being constructed in Malaysia.

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of construction in progress without
legal title was RM44,868,605 (2017: RM27,463,783). The Group has entered into
a 50 years lease with respect to the land of construction in progress starting
from the handover date of the building. The Group are also entitled to the right
of first refusal and option to purchase the land. On 19 April 2018, the Group has
entered a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the land of construction
in progress with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd., a related company. The land will be
transferred to the Group at a nominal consideration of RM10 upon completion of
the construction in progress, the initial lease arrangement with respect to the
land was then ceased to apply.

The Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RM1,204,822 (2017:
Nil] on qualifying assets (Note 13), and the borrowing costs were capitalised at
the weighted average rate of its specific borrowings of 30% (2017: Nil] for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

Land included in property, plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of
RM10 (2017: 10) as at 30 June 2018, is situated in Malaysia and is held freehold.

As at 1 July 2016, the carrying amount of buildings without legal title were
RM93,000,408. In accordance with the Malaysian Land Law, the legal title of
the buildings is not separable from the land title. On 30 June 2017, the Group
has obtained the legal title of the buildings upon acquisition of the land from
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd., a related company. Before the acquisition of the land,
the Group has utilised the land with no rental charged for the period from
1 September 2015 to 29 June 2017.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
to secure for general banking facilities granted to Kingsley International Sdn. Bhd.
("Kingsley International”) (Note 32).

As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s motor vehicles includes
an amount of RM128,664 respectively in respect of assets acquired under finance
leases (Note 25).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has pledged bank deposits of RM533,032 (2017:
RM518,245) to secure a banking facility granted to the Group (Note 32). The
pledged deposits were matured on or before 19 July 2018 and (2017: 4 August
2017).

16.

17.

M. MERRE (§)
2018F6H30HKR2017HF6 30BN EET
REIER BRAEAIEEETF

2018%6830R, Eas¥E2ERTRE
REEmEEDBIA44,868,6054F (2017
91 27,463,783%F ) . AEECHMERT
EMIREITS0FEL, BIEFRIW AR
E . REBIEZIMIRNELBEE RIS
., R2018F4819H, AEBHEBHAT
Kingsley Hills Sdn .Bhd.Zh7EE T2 LB
HEEHE. TETIRETE, TiiglR
HMREI0SEHEFAER, MELMNLH
HETHTABER.

REECHGEREENEERAL1,204,822
SF (20175 - &) EXK (MEE13) . &
E201856H30BIEFE, EEMAREE
EERNINEFIORNZEI0% (2017F &) &
M,

ETAMIZE . S MR BRI LA AR F sl
B AZERE, R2018F6B308 2 FEREE
A109F (2017F 1 1095

201657818, E&EE£BZIEFNIRAE
493,000,40845 . {RIEHBRFA THX,
BFEZELERETERERT SR, 2017
F6H30H, AEEREBREEAEKingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.W 8T ismESIEFIEE
HRE., BT ET, AEBR20159F981H
FE2017FE6 8290 B ERZ B AS T
.

R2018%F6B30HK2017&F6H30H, &
SEECEEFE L RIESF, LIESKingsley
International Sdn. Bhd. ( [Kingsley
International | ) F9—AERITRLE (FEE32)

2017568300, AEESEZEREERR
RIERMEREFTWBEEZERZER, P35
128,664<%5 (MfaE25)

CMRITER

20185 6H30R, AEEMBMIRTEN
533,032<%F (20174 : 518,245%%F ) 1
RAEBFTPERRTHENER (KE32) .
ERMERDBIR2018F78198 (2017
F: 201798848 ) SZriFIEA.
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE mEugERs%

2018 & 2017 &

RM&$&H RMS&H

Accounts receivable FEIEETR 39,313 904,318
Less: impairment of accounts receivable i&: FEKERFRE - (32,900)
39,313 871,418

The invoices issued by the Group to its customers are due on presentation and FEEAQEFHAENBEERZNN, WEREEH]
no credit term is granted. MR

Included in accounts receivable are trade debtors (net of impairment losses) 2018&65—'305&\207756%305’ TR
with the following aging analysis, based on invoice dates, as at 30 June 2018 and SRR EREBRUTIREEI D HRIEEIE (B0

30 June 2017: BRmERE) -

2018 £F 2017 £

RM$&H RMES&H

Within 1 month 11E8® 6,253 24,281

1 to 2 months 1Z2{@H 7,476 368,218

2 to 3 months 2ZE3fEH 16,934 87,854
Over 3 months #Bi@31E 53 8,650 391,065
39,313 871,418

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews accounts receivable | FRE®REHR, AEEIZER KRS EERITEIL
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective basis. Based IRNBDRERR . REBEME S, 2018568
on the impairment assessment, impairment loss has been recognised as at 30 CEZRERE ., AEBENEEKESS
30 June 2018. The Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit BT R R o B b= R FHE .

enhancement over the accounts receivable.

i ) i i ) RIBEZAE, SEBERBENRERRIRE
The aging of accounts receivable which are past due but not impaired, based on

. . . W -
invoice dates, is as follows:
2018 £&F 2017 £
RMEH RME$H
Neither past due nor impaired 7@ #R kiR {E - -
Past due but not impaired E&H#IEFRRI(E:
Less than 1 month 2i1{ER 6,253 24,281
1 to 3 months 1Z3{@H 24,410 456,072
More than 3 months but less than 12 months #BiB3E BB 121E 5 8,650 391,065

39,313 871,418
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) FEuitegss (%)
The below table reconciled the impairment loss of trade debtors for the year:
TRAFNEKERKRERIBRIEIER:

2018 £F 2017 £
RM$E RM&&
Balance at the beginning of the year F#l#&8k 32,900 -
Impairment loss recognised E#:Zir{EREE - 32,900
Bad debts written off Siiisizas (32,900) -
Balance at the end of the year &6k - 32,900

Accounts receivable was past due but not impaired related to a number of | EEHERBERBEEE RS EERKEETE
independent students who are in temporary financial difficulties. Based on the R#REGIZE . ERERE, FARTEERS
individual assessment, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that wEELEZESNEESS, RItBESHERE
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these student’s various HE(E

efforts over fund raising.
) ) ) ) ) . RERRBWEAMA S BERIERIRERE .
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 7af#5518. &R E Mt EINRIE

2018 £F 2017 £
RM&H RM$&
Prepayments 83518 1,582,073 197,591
Deposits #Z& 153,700 174,329
Other receivables Efh g zRIE 33,368 265,072
1,769,141 636,992
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER/ RELATED COMPANIES fEitBasE / Bk ASKIE
(a) The amount due from a shareholder is as follow:
EW G SR ARIEAN T -
2018 £F 2017 &
The Group &£ E RM&&H RM$&
DGMK Investment Limited - 2,209

Maximum outstanding amount during the year FR&E&HRTE5E:

DGMK Investment Limited 2,209 2,209
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20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER/ RELATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED) ket / BB ASIZRIE (&)
(b) The amounts due from related companies are as follow:

FEW BB A BRI T :

Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. (note a) (kfizta)

BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. [note b) (FzEb)

Modular Construction Technology Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (¥fzb)
One City Properties Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (Fstb)

Sky Park Properties Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (¥i£b)

Maximum outstanding amount during the year:
FRRSRYEHE:

B & G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. (note a) (Fiita)

BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. [note b) (Fzb)

Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. (note a) (Kizta)

Modular Construction Technology Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (Ffitb)
One City Properties Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (Fizb)

Sky Park Properties Sdn. Bhd. [note b) (Fzb)

Except for the amounts due from BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and Kingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd., the amounts due from above related companies are trade
related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amounts due from BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and Kingsley Hills Sdn.
Bhd. are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

note a:
Dato’ Goh Meng Keong, a director of Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. and B&G Global Property Sdn. Bhd, is
a director and shareholder of the Company.

note b:
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon, a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd., Modular Construction
Technology Sdn. Bhd., One City Properties Sdn. Bhd. and Sky Park Properties Sdn. Bhd., is also a

director and shareholder of the Company.

2018 £ 2017 £
RM&& RM&&
3,630,010 5,114,447
9,375 4,500

- 2,558

160 3,836

- 5115
3,639,545 5,130,456
2018 £F 2017 £F
RM<$EH RMSEH

- 1,015,925

23,850 26,300
8,916,310 5,114,447
2,558 2,558
4,091 3,836
5,115 5115

IRFEWKBGMC  Corporation Sdn. Bhd.k&
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.zxI84%, MW LiARES
BNTENIEEBS S, |IKH. RERERERK

&S

EWBGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd.&Kingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.FRIEEBIEESZ L. EIKE. %

BRAREREEE.

fista:
2EEHEAKINgsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. & B&G Global
Property Sdn. Bhd. IEE, INEFRELNTEFFKKE.

fgaEb:

FHFEZERAEABGMC  Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
. Modular Construction Technology Sdn. Bhd.
. One City Properties Sdn. Bhd.RSky Park
Properties Sdn. Bhd. HIERE, INEAXLNGEFEFRKE.
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21. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FE{38RsX

2018 £ 2017 £F
RM$H RM&&
Accounts payable FEEEFR 663,961 581,959
The aging analysis of the Group’s accounts payable based on invoice date, is as follows:
REBFENREZHPRBMIRMRIRE S TINT:
2018 £F 2017 £
RM$H RM$H
Within 1 month @8 7 106,161 574,794
1to 2 months 1Z2{@8 538,842 6,733
2 to 3 months 2Z3(E 8 12,526 -
Over 3 months #2i@31E 2 6,432 432
663,961 581,959

The normal credit terms granted to the Group range from 0 to 30 days (2017: 0 to 30 days) for the year ended 30 June 2018.
BHZE2018F6H30HILFE, AEEEENEREEHRR0E30R (20174 : 0£30H )

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS EfthfE{IsRIER st &R

2018 £F 2017 &

RM&$H RM$&H

Accruals fEstER 1,063,370 1,009,914
Deposit refundable to students FlEIEZ4EZ iZE 3,519,126 3,400,012
Other payables EftbfE(F118 1,100,079 368,665
Receipt in advance FalGRIE 601,479 1,128,316
6,284,054 5,906,907

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount of other payables and accruals approximate their fair value.
RTRABEERREMBIRIEN Bt SR RmERADERE .

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES FE{tRBEBARRIE

2018 &£ 2017 &£
RM$& RM&H

Current BI#A
- Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd. (note a) (ffzta) 735 66,000

Amount due to Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd. is trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
fEfJEcity Hotel Sdn. Bhd SUIEEBEZMHE . K, RENRERERIFEER.
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23. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED) pEfmasA =518 (&)

2018 £&F 2017 £
RM$&H RME&H

Non-current EEHA
- Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. (note b) (Bt b) 14,792,113 25,592,113

Amount represented unpaid construction expenses of the buildings being FIBIEBERABERIEFZ RGERER (i
constructed in Malaysia (Note 16). The amount is unsecured, interest-free and 16) « ZREREFTWABR=FNSER

repayable within three years after the handover date of the building. |, REMA RERFEE,
note a: fizEa:
Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, a controlling shareholder of the holding company of Ecity Hotel Sdn. FHFEZERIEAECly Hotel San. Bhd #5882 G891
Bhd., is also a director and shareholder of the Company. RIRE, TEALNGFTEFFKE.
note b: EEEEH: — ; WEE, 2L
Dato’ Goh Meng Keong,  director of Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd, is also a director and shareholder of the | = 2 x2tssKingsley Hills Sdn. Bho BIESH. 7
REEFHRE.
Company.
24. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED HigimRFE5x
2018 £ 2017 £
RM&&H RM&EH
Current BN
Secured B

- Term loan | due for repayment within one year —& N 2IEH{EENEHER 3,584,500 1,750,000

- Bank loan Il due for repayment on demand #2Zk{EERIRITERII 19,630,000 -

- Less: unamortised debt issuance cost Ji: Stz B ERA (45,050) (45,050)
Total current EPE42%E 23,169,450 1,704,950
Non-current JEBPEA

Secured &

Term loan | EEAEI 64,665,500 68,250,000

- Less: unamortised debt issuance cost i : SR> B EMA (326,612) (371,662)
Total non-current IEENHA4EEE 64,338,888 67,878,338
Total &5t 87,508,338 69,583,288

Note: P &E

il Details of the securities provided to banks on the borrowings are disclosed in Note 32. v Efﬁffff#?ﬂ?(gﬁfgﬁﬁf;%ﬁ? et 3205 o

il Term loan | is repayable in 108 monthly instalments, commencing in December 2017. ” E‘?;gfﬂﬁégg ; ﬁ—fégﬁfggg‘iﬁiﬁz ;F/ j;tgggjgry

lil— Term loan | is interest-bearing at the bank’s monthly cost of fund rate plus 2.00% per annum w &R SR S5 - gy
on monthly rests. The average interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 30 June 2018 ZHiE. 2018F6/550H, FEBRERITH

BT IR T I8 50 AI FIIFFIF586.06% (2017
granted under banking facilities is 6.06% [2017: 5.36 %) per annum. 'Zﬁﬁg 3%[5;75 THFRERES 6 (

Bank loan Il is repayable in 24 months from the date of first disbursement and contains repayable W) RITEZN EEEREZ HAE24EA RS, ItE

on demand clause. BRERIEENE

¥ Bank loan Il is interest-bearing at the bank’s cost of fund rate plus 1.00% per annum for the period ) IRITE IR TE 2 A FIERF.00% FH 5t
equal to the applicable tenure. B, FEHIRESIEHBIIEF .

liv)
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24. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED (CONTINUED) &ififRiFiEax (&)
The bank borrowings were scheduled to repay as follows:

FIHAEERSRITIEFINT

2018 € 2017 £
RME&H RM$&
Within one year —& % 23,214,500 1,750,000
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 28 —&{EFBiRmE 5,167,500 3,584,500
More than two years, but not exceeding five years B BmFEFBIBRF 24,336,500 19,919,500
After five years AFE 35,161,500 44,746,000

87,880,000 70,000,000

The amount only includes the actual drawdown from the credit facility.
TEERECEEEMEBIRIRIIIE,

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25. REHAE IR
The Group leased certain motor vehicles in the prior year. Such assets were FEBRETFEAETRE. Z5E8E—RE
generally classified as finance leases as the rental period amounts to the HAMENRS, BRERSNEREENME
estimated useful economic life of the assets concerned and often the Group has AIEREEFE, MEAEBBEBERENEE
the right to purchase the assets outright at the end of the minimum lease term HEEREERNSREX S HERBEZS
by paying a nominal amount. BE.
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group has fully settled the obligations REZE2018F6B30HLILEEE, AEEBEE
under finance leases. HECHEESER.
Future lease payments are due as follows: REEENFREEBERNT
Minimum lease Finance lease Present
payments charges value
REESEMN HNEHSEHEA RE
RM$H RM$H RM&H

At 30 June 2017 512201746 B30H

Not later than one year ~igia—F 40,416 4,991 35,425
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —& LA E{B/DRHF 40,416 3,176 37,240
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years #BBMHERBBRF 48,840 1,438 47,402

129,672 9,605 120,067
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25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED) 25. iEHERE (8)
The present value of future lease payments is analysed as: REHEEMFRBABERNT
2018 £ 2017 £
RM&ZH RM&&
Current liabilities m#h& & - 35,425
Non-current liabilities FER#& & - 84,642
- 120,067
The effective interest rates of the Group’s obligations under finance leases as at AREER2017F6 8308 ZRMEHEFIERN
30 June 2017 were 4.96% per annum. ERERER4.96%,
26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ (ASSETS) ;&ZEIEaE/ (&%)
Details of the deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) recognised and movements during the year:
FNERIORERIEEE / (BE) REFE:
Accelerated tax
Investmenttax  depreciation
allowance ntRirE K Others Total
rEReRE RIFR% Hit M5t
RME&& RME&&E RMEEH RME&E
At 1 July 2016 201657818 - 1,707,407 (1,707,407 -
(Credited)/ charged to profit or loss 183 (A ) /#kx (1,985,758) 1,773,353 220,614 8,209
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 742017568308 %2017%781H (1,985,758) 3,480,760 (1,486,793 8,209
(Credited)/ charged to profit or loss i#Ez (5N ) /30 (2,977,690) 1,492,884 1,486,793 1,987
At 30 June 2018 #2018%6 830H (4,963,448) 4,973,644 - 10,196
Others represents deferred tax recognised for unused tax losses and unutilised EAER A RS SIEERIR mA RO AR
capital allowances available for offset against future taxable profits. iR R A BB E AR BANETIRE .

R2018F68308, AEEEREARIERL

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of RM2,038,173 (2017: 182,038 17342 (20174 : 3.674,611%

RM3,674,611) available for offset against future profits. No (2017: RM850,527) =) BTERIESRAR S . S e ERIEEE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of unused tax losses of =T (20174 : 3,543,864 F ) HRIRIER
nil (2017: RM3,543,864). No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of HEET (20174 : 850,5279%F) - MRS
the remaining unused tax losses of RM2,038,173 (2017: RM130,747), due to MARAARRER, BAMAE TREARE

j5182,038,173<F (20174 130,747

unpred|c.tab|l|.ty. of future profit streams. The unused tax losses can be carried =) RIS . i BRI A IR
forward indefinitely. G

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has unutilised capital allowances of RM129,953 12018568300, AEEERBBEAR
(2017: RM2,753,781) available for offset against future profits. No (2017: MER129,953<F (20175 : 2,753,781%

=) JARRHEARER . AARBRERRR
BE (20175 : 2,651,1099 5 ) #ERIEL
MIBEES (20174 : 636,2669F ) »

RM636,266) deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of unutilised
capital allowances of nil (2017: RM2,651,109). No deferred tax has
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26.

27.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ (ASSETS) (CONTINUED)

Details of the deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) recognised and movements during
the year (Continued):

been recognised in respect of the remaining unutilised capital allowances of
RM129,953 (2017: RM102,672), due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unutilised capital allowances can be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has unused investment tax allowance of
RM82,993,278 (2017: RM85,995,896]) available for offset against future profits.
As at 30 June 2018, a deferred tax asset RM4,963,448 (2017: RM1,985,758) has
been recognised in respect of investment tax allowance of RM20,681,033 (2017:
RM8,273,992]). No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining
investment tax allowance of RM62,312,245 (2017: RM77,721,904), due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused investment tax allowance
can be carried forward indefinitely.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 12 January 2017 with authorised share capital
of US50,000 divided into 5,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each (equivalent
to RMO0.045], 1,000 new ordinary shares were issued and fully paid-up. Star Shine
Finance Limited, DGMK Investment Limited and Eduking Investment Limited
subscribed for 800,120 and 80 shares at par respectively.

Share capital information sets out below represents the movement on the
amount of authorised and issued capital of the Company during the year:

Par value HE{E
Authorised %% E:
Upon incorporation itz US$0.01 £t
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 52201746 B30H K% 201747818 US$0.01 E 5%
Increase in authorised share capital (Note(b) and Note(c)) HK$0.01 i& 5T

ERERRAIENN (FEE(D) and BIEE(c))

Cancellation (Note(b)) zH:8(FiEE (b)) US$0.01 E5%

At 30 June 2018 12201856 830H HK$0.01 i& 5%

26. EERERE/ (EE) (&)

5 (E|)

AR EETRER RGN, MAWEARERT
REBEARRIRE129,953<F (2017
F:102,672<%F ) ERRLERIE. RBBE
KA ER AT HEREGEE

K2018F 68308, A&EEBREHHA
RERBNEEE2,993,2784F (2017
% :82,993,278<F ) ATAREHERNRE
. 201868300, EMKRERRR
%820,681,033% & (20174 : 8,273,992
CF ) BRELRIEEES,063,448<F
(20174 :1,985,758<%% ) . HIREXE
BIRIGER, HMIEFE TRIRER RN
62,312,24543F (20174 : 77,721,904
) ERIRERIE, REBRERRRIETE
IREpEE,

. BARRGHE

[i:ZN

ARRNBR2017F1B12HEZF M, EERA
£50,000%7T, 545,000,000 =K HEHE
0.0127t (HBERR 0.0459F ) EEER, I
BT RHE,0008FZEBR . Star Shine
Finance Limited. DGMK Investment
Limited ®Eduking Investment Limited7>
BIREERIES00A . 12082 R 80D -

UTRAENBRNBNRFREEREET
RASEEOEEER

Number of
shares Nominal amount

i = =% 34
US$ =35t HK$ &7
5,000,000 50,000 -
5,000,000 50,000 -
1,000,000,000 - 10,000,000
(5,000,000) (50,000) -
1,000,000,000 - 10,000,000
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) E# R (&)

Number of
shares
Par value E{E BRipE B
Issued and fully paid EZ{TREZ:
Issuance of shares upon incorporation )& zisEs{Tis US$0.01 =7T 1,000
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017

12017965308 R201747818 US$0.01 =5% 1,000
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note(a)) &7 @88 (¥ (a)) US$0.01 = 5% 1,000
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note(b)) 2577 @88 (FfEE (b)) HK$0.01 &% 2,000
Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note(b))

HBEIREERS (MED)) US$0.01 =35% (2,000)
Capitalisation issue (Note(d)) &7t 3547 (MizE(d)) HK$0.01&5% 599,998,000
Issuance of ordinance shares upon listing (Note(e))

R EmBSEETEER (Miae)) HK$0.01 & 5T 200,000,000
At 30 June 2018 12201856 830H HK$0.01 &7 800,000,000

Notes:
(a]  On 13 September 2017, another 1,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of par value US$0.01

(b]

(c]

(d]

(e]

each were issued and fully paid-up to the then existing shareholders.

Pursuant to respective written resolution of all the directors of the Company and all the shareholders
of the Company on 13 September 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
to the aggregate of US$50,000 and HK$380,000 by the creation of an additional 38,000,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, 2,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each (the
"HKD Shares "] were issued to the then existing shareholders in proportion to their existing number
of shares with a par value of US$0.01 each [the “USD Shares”] owned. Subsequent to the issue of the
HKD Shares, the USD Shares were repurchased by the Company and cancelled immediately. Upon
completion of the repurchase, 5,000,000 unissued USD Shares of the Company were cancelled so
that the authorised share capital of the Company be reduced to HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 April 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation of additional
962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders passed on 19 April 2018, the directors were
authorised to capitalise the amount of HK$5,999,980 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company and to appropriate such amount as to capital to pay up in full at par
599,998,000 shares for allotment and issue to the then existing shareholders of the Company,
each ranking pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares. On 16 May 2018, the
Company allotted and issued such shares as aforesaid and gave effect to the capitalisation issue.
On 16 April 2018, the Company issued a total of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a
price of HK$0.4 per share as a result of the completion of the Global Offering. The gross proceeds
from Global Offering of HK$80,000,000 representing the par value of HK$2,000,000 credited to the
Company’s share capital, and share premium of HK$78,000,000, which can be used for deduction
of share issuance expenses. After the share premium account of the Company being credited as
a result of the Global Offering, HK$5,999,9680 was capitalised from the share premium account
and applied in paying up in full 599,998,000 shares which was allotted and issued to the then
shareholders. The Company’s total number of issued shares was increased to 800,000,000 shares
upon completion of Global Offering.

Nominal

amount

equivalent

Nominal amount BREEH

=134 HER

US$ =35t HKS$ #& RM$&

10 - 45

10 - 45

10 - 42

- 20 1

(20) - (87)

- 5,999,980 3,029,375

- 2,000,000 1,009,795

- 8,000,000 4,039,181

PigE :

(a) BR2017F9F13H, SEALEG, 000K ZHK EE

(®)

~

(c

(@)

(e)

0.01ZETTAIN BRIV E B AT B AR 1T 7 B IR -
RIFA LB ZRREFRREI2017FIF13AEEH
EBREERER, KL EBIER38,000,000
RERENEO.O1BTHIRG /5 XERKIEEZERS
50,000%7T1380,000/87T. [EH, FLERER
REFIFEREEO. 01 TRE ( [ ETK] ) I
IR EE{72,000REREE0.01E TR G ( [ &
TR | ) o BAREIETBITREAFETTRIEEIILRIZ
ity BOITRE, AL EZE#H5,000,000 K%
TR, HEERFHBMEIL0,000/T, 54
38,000,000 &R ETE0. 0178 TTHIR LS o
BR2018F4 8194, AL E#Ei81E:£962,000,000
REREEO.01BTTHIR DA ZER A A1 380,000/
TTEINET0,000,000/87T, 5431,000,000,0004
B EEO.01ETHIR R -
RIFI2018F4F19HIEBRIRBZEA#HE, EF
JEFEH#EA55,999,980/8 7T ( AL EIR 1D ERATER
B ) ZAEEAM, WA EREXELL
REEERETERRET T AN EFEERERN
599,998,000 1%, ZE/R 15 FEHT B EITEEHF
BRECETREEE SR . K20185F5516H,
KLEFEHERFET LIAR P W EIEE R ET .
K2018F4816H, (EREBEETHAIER, &
REIUER0.4/ETHIEEZETEH 200,000,000
BREREEO.O1ETHZIER. 2EKEEHIFTEZH
IE48580,000,000;87T ( BIA L ERAAINBREIE
2,000,000/ 7T R R 17 #1878,000,000/87T ) &I/
ARG EITEI o JEAR LR 15 5 (B AR 2 IR
EEIEANIRE, 5,999,980 8T EH R G E 1B THE
FEX, WHEREHEXNEEERETFEIFRER
599,998,0008 817 . IREBEETLE, KLEHI
EETRRHAEZUEINZES00,000,00042 .



AT A GLANCE
&N

ABOUT KINGSLEY

S

MANAGEMENT PERSPECTIVE
EIERA

9 GOVERNANCE & SUSTAINABILITY

BiaNATRE

9 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
priEd

Notes To The Financial Statements 30 June 2018

MBEwREMZE2018F6H30H

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Reserves

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the subsidiary of the Company entered
into sales and purchase agreements to acquire the issued shares of the
subsidiaries. The merger reserve represents the transfer of the difference
between the consideration paid by the Company and the original investment
costs of the issued share capital of Kingsley International, Kingsley Skills
Sdn. Bhd. ("Kingsley Skills”]), Kingsley Professional Centre Sdn. Bhd.
(“Kingsley Professional Centre”), and Kingsley Graduate School Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ("Kingsley Graduate School”]) to the merger reserve when the
Company became the ultimate holding company of these companies upon
the completion of reorganisation on 30 August 2017.

As at 30 June 2017, an amount of RM18,300,002, being the original
investment costs made into the subsidiaries, was recorded in the merger
reserve account.

As at30June 2018, anamount of RM18,299,929, being the difference between
the considerations paid by the Company and the original investment costs
of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, was recorded in the merger
reserve account.

At 1 July 2016 58201657818
Profit for the year & puiEF!

At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 2017568308 %2017%781H
Profit for the year & puizF!

Effect of Reorganisation E4EHI5 &

At 30 June 2018 £2018%6 8 30H

The movement of merger reserve during the year ended 30 June 2018 was
arisen from the Reorganisation, which represents the consideration paid
for the acquisition of Kingsley International, Kingsley Graduate School,
Kingsley Skills and Kingsley Professional Centre.

27.

BEBFRRGHE (4)

s

RIBEH, ARNBNMBAR IEERZEK
BB D ZSETRMD . aHHEHEIE2017
F8H30HAEMREZERERANEIME Kingsley
International, Kingsley Skills Sdn. Bhd. (
[ Kingsley Skills | ) . Kingsley Professional
Centre Sdn. Bhd ( [ Kingsley Professional
Centre | ) KKingsley Graduate School
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. ( [ Kingsley Graduate
School | ) MREEBRATMEALATEN
REHE FIAMBER BB ETRANRIRERA
ZERERESHEE.

hR201786830H, GHH##ERE18,300,002
CH, BRAWBLASNERENA.

R2018F6 8300, ARTSMHEEITEL
BEHTRANFRREMAZ Z5118,299,929
SEIINGHHEEER.

Merger Retained
Reserve earnings Total
atEEE REERA a5t
RM&&H RM&&H RM$&
18,300,002 2,329,016 20,629,018
- 11,021,974 11,021,974
18,300,002 13,350,990 31,650,992
- 1,510,013 1,510,013
(73) - (73)
18,299,929 14,861,003 33,160,932

REZE2018F6H30HIEFE, E4
SIMNEHREEESHAKEKIngsley
International. Kingsley Graduate School.
Kingsley Skills & Kingsley Professional
Centrefr{IRIRE.
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28. OPERATING LEASES 28. [gEEsE
As lessor ERHEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had total future minimum REWER, AEREFA R RERRERTHA

lease receivables in respect of leased properties under non-cancellable EBIRIARRITEZBERAT -

lease as follows:

2018 £ 2017 £

RM$&H RM$&

Not later than one year —F® 29,000 18,000
Later than one year and not later than five years —F#&BRAFER 32,500 1,500
61,500 19,500

R2018F6H30H, AEBERBEEHER

At 30 June 2018, the Group leases its properties (Note 16) under operating
HEFEEME (MIRH16) , MERB=F.

lease arrangements which run for an initial period of three years.

TEREBEA
As lessee _ REZE201846830RLEFRE, EEHEN
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain Srie A R R S YR (S R
of its lease properties. Leases are negotiated for terms between 1 year to IS FERNFAEESE (20174 - 1565
5 years (2017: 1 year to 50 years) at fixed rentals as at year ended 30 June 504 ) , FHEEE.
2018.

REREPR, FEFRBEFATHERIKCEES
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had operating lease AR Z A SR AR R A R BRI
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable e

operating leases which fall due as follows:

2018 £ 2017 &£
RM$H RM$H
Not later than one year —% R 269,635 245,055
Later than one year and not later than five years —F&EBREFERN 161,766 384,047
Later than five years &% - 2,923,005
431,401 3,552,107
On 19 April 2018, the Group has entered a sale and purchase agreement in R2018F48100, AEEEEE AT
relation to land of construction in progress, which the Group has originally Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. 5t TiErI it
entered a 50 years lease, with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd., a related company. (1ATAEEARL0E ) ST EERE. 8T
The land will be transferred to the Group upon completion of the construction BRI TR hISEETARER, LitbiAREIN
in progress, the initial lease arrangement with respect to the land was then HEZHERSTBES.
ceased to apply.
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29. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION izBz AR kR %=

Non-current assets FEfENEE

Investment in a subsidiary &K B E

Current assets ifigh&E

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfJ5/IE. &Rk EMbEKIE

Amounts due from subsidiaries KBS ZRIE

Cash and cash equivalents RERIEEEEY
Total current assets & EERE

Current liabilities & &&

Other payables and accruals EftbfESFRIER ExT&E A

Amount due to a subsidiary &S B EFRIE

Total current liabilities ;g & {&42%E

Net current assets/ (liabilities) #&EE ./ (&) B4E

Net assets/ (liabilities) & (&f&) 24

Equity #z%
Share capital &7
Share premium & izE

Accumulated losses Rat#siE

On behalf of the directors ftx&=s

Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon
BHEEBRAE
Director =

2018 £E 2017 €€

Notes RM RM
B &E SE 4
30 4 4
630,697 136,461

23,196,135 -

2,977,051 351,195
26,803,883 487,656

405,290 446,615

- 607,704

405,290 1,054,319
26,398,593 (566,663)
26,398,597 (566,659)

27 4,039,181 45
31,409,986 -
(9,050,570) (566,704)
26,398,597 (566,659)

Dr. Chua Ping Yong
ZkEEL
Director =
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30. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

=1

Kingsley Malaysia
Limited

Kingsley Edugroup
Berhad

Kingsley International

Kingsley Graduate
School

Kingsley Skills

Kingsley Professional
Centre

Kingsley Language
House

Kingsley Catering
Sdn. Bhd.

Kingsley Advisory
and Strategic
Initiatives Sdn. Bhd.
(Formerly known as
#0f8 Kingsley Digital
Solutions Sdn. Bhd.)

Country and date of
incorporation
&E il Bt 32 B =% 7 2
BVI,
25 January 2017
REBRIES
2017518 25H

Malaysia,
14 December 2016
BEaRkAaE
20165128141

Malaysia,
2 December 2010
EARFEE
2010512828

Malaysia,
9 May 2012
2R
2012558 9H

Malaysia,
30 October 2013
2R
2013510830H

Malaysia,
31 October 2013
Bk
2013510831H

Malaysia,
8 November 2016
2R
201651188H

Malaysia,
7 January 2009
FEZRAEE
20091878

Malaysia,
21 November 2017
RS2k aE
20175118218

Place of operation and
principal activity

CEMEREEERS

BVI, Investment
holdings
RERIES, RERR

Malaysia, Investment
holdings
BokFTs, IRERR

Malaysia, international
school
BokFTn, EIRER

Malaysia, college for
higher education
FERRAE, EEHEL5R

Malaysia, provision
of skills training
programme
FEORPETE:, 1R ARtE
EllES =

Malaysia, provision of

education and related

services
FE2RTaEs, IR E RIE
BIRRFS

Malaysia, inactive
FBokFTn, EmETR

Malaysia, inactive
FBoRFTs, EER

Malaysia, inactive
FBokFTn, ERETS

30. K2 ERERE
MEABFENT

Particulars of issued
and fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

EETREBERE/

SRS

US$1 (equivalent to
RM4)

157 (HHERASE

RM2 &%

RM17,500,000 <=

RM1,000,000 <=

RM100,000 <&

RM2 <&

RM50,000 <&

RM100 <&

RM1 <%

Percentage of ownership
interests/ voting rights/
profit share

EREEL/ IRSE/ BRI RELE

Directly
HiE

100%

Indirectly
ik

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

70%

70%

100%
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31.

32.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 are
attributed to certain subsidiaries not wholly-owned by the Group. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, none of the non-controlling interests of these
subsidiaries are material to the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES

At 30 June 2018, the Group had banking facilities of in aggregate, approximately
RM97,500,000 (2017: RM70,500,000). Balance of RM87,880,000 (2017:
RM70,000,000) were outstanding as at 30 June 2018.

At 30 June 2018, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by the following:

(a) Facility agreement of RM70,000,000:
- opencharge on a piece of land PT36307 belonging to Kingsley Hills Sdn.
Bhd., a related company with a common director;
- guarantee by Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon and Dato” Goh Meng
Keong, directors of the Company;
- corporate guarantee by B&G Capital Resources Bhd., a related company
with a common director for RM70,000,000; and
- debenture incorporating fixed and floating charge over all the Kingsley
International’s assets and undertakings, both present and future.
(b) Facility agreement of RM500,000:
- upfront fixed deposit (Note 17).
(c) Facility agreement of RM27,000,000:

- personal guarantee by Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, a director of
the Company.

- The bank shall replace the personal guarantee of Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh
Ming Choon and replace by corporate guarantee of the Company upon
successful listing of the Group on the stock exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. As at 30 June 2018, the bank is in the progress of replacement
of personal guarantee by corporate guarantee of the Company.

At 30 June 2017, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by the following:

(a) FaC|l|ty agreement of RM70,000,000:
open charge on a piece of land PT36307 belonging to Kingsley Hills Sdn.
Bhd., a related company with a common director;
- guarantee by Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon and Dato” Goh Meng
Keong, directors of the Company;
- corporate guarantee by B&G Capital Resources Bhd., a related company
with a common director for RM70,000,000; and
- debenture incorporating fixed and floating charge over all the Kingsley
International’s assets and undertakings, both present and future.
(b) Facility agreement of RM500,000:

- upfront fixed deposit (Note 17).

31.

32.

JEEER S
2018568308 &2017546H30H, 3E}1ﬁx
RS HERRS %EEAZIS$IE¥3E%§MTE

ARBERDER, ZEWBER TEﬁﬂE}Iﬁx’fg
xj$’§lﬁ’ﬁ'£jf$§7co
RiTRE

20185%6H30H, AEBBEARITREGHL
97,500,000¢% (20174 : 70,500,000€
=) . 20185F6H30H, #%887,880,000<¢
= (20174 : 70,000,000¢ % ) BKEE,

2018%6830H, KREEARTHELITI
EISEiw

(a) 70,000,000 FRIEE R ¢

— EHEEZFMEBEASKingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.p9—fg it
PT36307{EANFIHRAE;

— ARBEZHHMEZERHEEREE
SEPEIEHREBR,;

— BHEFEZMEHAEB&G Capital
Resources Bhd.fE470,000,000

NRBER;, K&

— B&Kingsley Internationalf9£ &R
BENKENEER FEIFLCNERS
ERARIRERET -

500,000 FRIME R ¢

— JEfERERE (ME17) .

(c) 27,000,0004 IS 735 «

— AREIEFHFEZERBENEA
ER.

— REEBEFBHEXZMBIRA
BRI EHiE, iEﬁJE**}?&HHﬁEA‘X
SHENEALRRKR, KZURLSH
NEER. R2018E6H30H, iR
FTETEUARRTNAERREBEAN
BiR.

(b)

201768308, AEBERRITHMELUTS!
IHEHRE

(a) 70,000,000¢ MRS RS

— BHEEEMNEE A SKingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.p9—fg it
PT363071/EBARIIHES;

— ARDEEHHESBREERSE
SIRREEHIER;

— BHEFESEMNEBAZIB&G Capital
Resources Bhd.fE#70,000,000
LENRNEER; R

— B2&Kingsley Internationalfy2
BENMFKENEBER ZFHIFLCHRE
EBRIRIERES .

500,000 MR E % -

— faffERERsE (ME17) .

—
O
=
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) At 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon and
Dato” Goh Meng Keong provided personal guarantee to secure for the bank
borrowings (Note 24) and banking facilities (Note 32] grant to the Group.

33. FfHRER
(a) 2018468308 K%20174£68300,
PifEEBERPELRSE S HEEREEA
BR, UAKREFERENRTEIR (M
24 ) RIRTTELE (MIZE32) FER.

(b) The remuneration of members of key management during the year were as (b) FER, TESEASHFHMT

follows:
2018 € 2017 £
RM$& RM€&
Fees, salaries and staff welfare benefits (short term employee benefits)
) o _ 899,000 493,257
B, FERETHEN (RBHESREF)
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes (post employment benefits) 112,194 58,644
IRRREFRIGT BN (BEREER) )
1,011,194 551,901
(c) During the year, the Group entered into the following significant transactions (c) &R, REBEEHLZETUTERR

with related parties:

R

Transaction amount 32 3 £ 8

2018 £F 2017 £f
Name of related party Bl 5 &8 Type of transaction 32 53 5 B¢ RM$&H RM$&H
B & G Global Property Sdn. Bhd. Revenue ¥z - 23,925
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Revenue Wz 41,975 48,609
Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd. Cost of revenue Wit 24 6,735 116,140
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Other revenue and gains EABI A\ K iz 5,475,000 5,475,000
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Construction expenses &2 &M 16,200,000 1,254,471
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Acquisition of land Y&+t - 10

Balance owed/ (owing)
B/ (&R) &

2018 ££ 2017 £E
Name of related party BBk 5 &8 Type of transaction 3 53 7 82 RME&&H RME&H
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Revenue Wz 9,375 4,500
Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd. Cost of revenue WzsiA (735) (66,000)
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Other revenue and gains EABI A\ K iz 3,630,010 5,114,447
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Construction expenses &% (12,542,103) (1,254,471)
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. Acquisition of land i+ it - (10)
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33. B3RS (&)
Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (#IfEB&G
(formerly known as B&G Corporation Sdn. Bhd.), is also a director of the Corporation Sdn. Bhd. ) EHFHIESER
Company. BRI AR ATER.

Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd. 1=l AEIRIIZARARE

Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, a controlling shareholder of the holding e 1 S A A S AR
& =8 VAN AN 2R o

company of Ecity Hotel Sdn. Bhd., is also a director and shareholder of the
Company. BOES TS 3 3 1R BN S ER A S MRS R SRR I
HIRHEEBIBERET.

The related party transactions were carried out on negotiated terms and
conditions in the ordinary course of business between related party and the EIRE RN B B A B TRIE R FE(TBIEE
Group. BFIE,

Above balances are included in amounts due from related companies and

amounts due to related companies. 34. SRQE

REREPRR, FEERETOEAIALE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of each reporting period, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS &#FiE
2018 £ 2017 £F
RME&H RM&&
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment K842 . BE K& #HHEIE 10,649,557 26,025,887

36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 36. IEEERIEIN MR AER M A FERE

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities: TEREANEHMAERABIREE
2018 £ 2017 £F
RM&H RM&E

Financial assets €& &

Loans and receivables &% EWKIE

- Accounts receivable IR 39,313 871,418
- Deposits and other receivables & &k 2t RIE 187,068 439,401
- Amount due from a shareholder iSRS - 2,209
- Amounts due from related companies FEUEIE A SIS 3,639,545 5,130,456
- Pledged bank deposits EfE#fiRI TN 533,032 518,245
- Cash and cash equivalents & RIBEEEEY 35,211,376 6,705,098

39,610,334 13,666,827
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36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Z#HM A RHNEMEE
- Accounts payable E{JERFR
- Other payables and accruals EftfE(IRIEN T E B
- Amount due to a related company FEfSBE A E)FRIE
- Bank borrowings iR47f&5%

- Obligations under finance leases #&E&EHIE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the normal
course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts and other
receivables and bank deposits. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operate. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on
the financial condition of trade customers. Accounts receivable are due on
presentation of invoices. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent. At 30 June 2018, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 16% (2017: 14%) of the total accounts receivable was due from
the Group’s largest customer. At 30 June 2018, 66% (2017: 45%) of the total
accounts receivable was due from the Group’s five largest customers.

Substantial bank deposits are held in major financial institutions which
management believes are of high credit quality.

36. IHERESHERNEEREHMSENE (F)

2018 2017 £
RM$E RMSE
663,961 581,959
6,284,054 5,906,907

14,792,848 25,658,113
87,508,338 69,583,288
- 120,067

109,249,201 101,850,334

37. 2REREE
FEBSRTARAEREREBBRETEE
NEZRBRAEERR. REBESAMNT)E
R, ZERBRE T YTAREENSHER
BER N ABBUPRBRE o

(a) FERR
REENEERREZREHBIERTR
HEUSIEMIRT 7K. EEETBE
BEER, WEERRZSEERR.

HRBWIRA R BEBEKGRIE, SHME
EREEBHSESENE FETERNE
FRaTE . ZEHEAEREFBAESZGE
HIRIARAC IR L ERIAITRAE], WERE
BREFIFEERIUNEEREEME
RERFERNER . AEBTIFELHR
ZEFHNBBHNRETERTE . BIEER
MRHREZARRIBENY . AEE—R
TEEERERE M.

REE@BRNEERBREZEERERNZF
BRI AR . BEREMRETERER
HENRRTELEEERR, BEER
N 20185F6H30H, A&EBHETEE
EdER, BRAERRKAEFIORIERN
FEWBRFR4EERRI16% (20174 : 14% )
R2018F6830H, BWAEBAKRE
FRYFRIE(G U BR R4 RER66 % (2017
F45%) o

RERT AT NNEEERBEBSE
BEENIESAEE.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of each reporting period of the Group’s bank borrowings, based on
undiscounted cash flows [including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at each of the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Total
contractual  Within 1 year
undiscounted or repayable
Carrying cash flow on demand
amount HESES: 3 1FELIRE

IREE RRSGE MHEENRE

RM&&H RM$& RM&&H
30 June 2018 201856 830R
Other payables and accruals
H b FE(IFRIE M =T 2 6,284,054 6,284,054 6,284,054
Bank borrowings #R47 &5 87,508,338 107,760,424 27,673,637

93,792,392 114,044,478 33,957,691

37.:MEARKREE (F)

(b) mEBEZRER
RrEFEENEEERETEERSEE,
BIERERBIIEIIRENSESINEN
FREIREHK, EERBNBLETIRLE
ENRBKTR, /AR EEATESE
. AEBNBEREREHRERRBE
EHRNEBBTENLR, BRESR
WREHERESIZSMBEREES
HEEES, UECRBRREBIOR

BN OIEER, DRERBRERS
nE (BEERTONEFTENT BN
M, ERZEFE, BIRIESREBEAN
=) RAEBEESRNRERE.

More than 1 More than 2
year but less years but Less
than 2 years than 5 years

More than

1€ E 2P E(B 5years
B2 LHSEE 5 E
RM$& RM$& RM&$&H

8,763,370 32,700,231 38,623,186

8,763,370 32,700,231 38,623,186

30 June 2017 2017568308
Other payables and accruals

HAth RS TRIE R fEat 2 5,906,907 5,906,907 5,906,907
Bank borrowings $R47{&5% 69,583,288 93,286,260 5,768,939

Finance lease obligations
MERERIE 120,067 129,672 40,416

75,610,262 99,322,839 11,716,262

7,430,533 29,582,015 50,504,773

40,416 48,840 -

7,470,949 29,630,855 50,504,773
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from bank balances, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. Borrowings arranged at
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

All of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017,
bore interest at floating rates whereas its obligations under finance leases
bore interest at fixed rates. Details of bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases are disclosed in Notes 24 and 25, respectively.

The Group’s bank balances, including pledged bank deposits also expose it
to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The directors of the Company consider the
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk in respect of bank balances is not
significant due to low level of deposit interest rate.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

At 30 June 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/ decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/ increase the Group's profit for the year and retained earnings by
approximately RM576,000 (2017: RM532,000). The changes in interest rates
do not affect the Group’s other component of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
changeininterest rates had occurred at the end of each reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt to equity. Total
debts include bank borrowings and finance lease obligation. Equity represents
total equity of the Group.

37. :MEAKREE (&)

(c) F=mmR
MERRSEEMIEPNAERIRSR
ERMHBAEEUMIRENER . AEH
NRXREREZRBIRITE. RITER
REERERE . RFBFEREER =
ZHRERD RIS AEEmERSRET
ERERR R ERERR .

R2018F6830H K% 20174F6H830H,
REBFFARITERYRZEFIEGT L,

et BT ERIERIREIERFRAH R . ]RIT
BN B RS RIENFIBE D B
24 254355 .

REBTFRERTHES (BIECSTKPRTE
M) ZRTHBNERRBMERERER
EEg. HRERAERRE, AR8&ES
BRAEB IR TERRIERIR ZE R I
FEKX.

REE BRI E I ER RE IR, A
m, EREEERAEER, E6FE
HEEREPEAFEER.

2018568308, WF=EE LA/
TR100EER, MATBHMES RS
~E, AEIAEBNFENEBEIRRER
AR/ 18IN%9576,00095F (2017
F:532,0009%F) . MEEFHIIHE
REBRESEIIEMBEMRBS

ERSURE SRR R RS R
RREE, I ARERORERRR
B, FRI00EREASRENEE
FEEE RS ORI S R Ay
BEEL,

38.54EH
FEBEAEEZ BNRERAEBBIFER
Er8eS, LARRRERBEMTSHBS R
R, URESRESTER, MIRERRE
x,

REBEFEREABGIER (ARETEES
tb=) BmER ., BEBGERTEIRME
HERE, BB REERRSREA.
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38.

39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company actively and regularly reviews and manages
the Group’s capital structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, to ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares and raise new debts or sells assets to reduce debts.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Bank borrowings $847/&3% (note i3

Finance lease obligations @& &ExE

wAB%E

Total equity #z54@%8

Gearing ratio &4 & &t

Notes:
This amount only includes the actual drawdown from the credit facility.

The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio to be in line with the expected
changes in economic and financial conditions. The Group's overall strategy on
capital management remains unchanged throughout the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

For the years ended 30 June 2018, the liquidated and ascertained damages
of RM5,475,000 (2017: RM5,475,000) were debited to the current account with
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd..

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

38.

39.

BEXEE (&)

AREESEBH A EBERNGBETENE
ENEE, WEEFEBARKRERER, #
RIREFEGRERR . NEBREIHIKNTAE
HWRIEREENRRISHEEE A GBI EE
R . RESSRBERER, A5EEY
REEREEMRENRESHE. OREREE
K. BIOHRESEHEBRHEEERE.

EAREEIERNT ¢
2018 £F 2017 £
RM€& RM&&
87,880,000 70,000,000
- 120,067
87,880,000 70,120,067
68,519,088 31,889,813
128% 220%

PidEE -

ZzARECIRE RIS ERE .

REBER B ERERFREE NI TR E
WIEFFHERGEIR ., AEBNBRBELE
BRBRAFERISTE,

SSRERERMEE

BEXFRERZ
HE2018F6H30AIEEE, RBIEE
WEBEEEA5,475,0008%F (2017
& :5,475,000€% ) , scAKingsley Hills
Sdn. Bhd.RIFEZREES .

RAAE BN S R
TERHNAEERAEDAEEH (ERS
RIFFRSEH ) . WEFHABARSRER

FRBEERERAEBGEREREXRNIES
BMEEEAERERENEE,
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) saR&xERmst (&)

Amounts
due (from)
/ torelated
Obligations ] (e
Bank under finance (Notes 20
borrowings leases and 23)
(Note 24) (Note 25) (HEMX) / BB  Armounts due
Interest payable RiTER HMEBASRE RBEQIRE to a director Total
AR (FFax24) (F3£25) (PIEE20R%23) EFESRIA st
RM$&H RM$& RM$&H RM$&H RM$& RM$&
At 1 July 2016 72201657818 - 65,538,550 153,678 5,950,393 3,222,163 74,864,784
Financing cash flows (note)
RMERSRE () (4,257,274) 4,010,950 (40,415) (5,539,859) (3,222,163) (9,048,761)
Non-cash changes FR£ &)
Liquidated and ascertained damages
RPIEENEREES - - - (5,475,000) = (5,475,000)
Acquisition of land Wzfs 1t - - - 10 - 10
Interest accrued fEtF)E 4,595,000 - 6,804 - - 4,601,804
Amortised debt issuance cost
EEIHEERA - 33,788 - - - 33,788
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017
#201746 B30H%20174781H 337,726 69,583,288 120,067 (5,064,456) = 64,976,625
Financing cash flows (note)
BERERE (M) (4,454,798) 17,880,000 (121,485) 6,900,646 - 20,204,363
Non-cash changes FR & &)
Liquidated and ascertained damages
REPIBENTEHEES - - - (5,475,000) - (5,475,000)
Interest accrued WiE + it 4,513,121 - 1,418 - - 4,514,539
Amortised debt issuance cost EztFIE - 45,050 - - - 45,050
At 30 June 2018 12201846 830H 396,049 87,508,338 - (3,638,810) - 84,265,577
Note: BIRE -
The cash flows represent the proceeds from/ repayment of bank borrowings, advances from/ repayments BB EIEAEHRE T EZEPHIRITIEKPTIEA
to related companies, advances from/ repayments to a director; repayment of obligations under finance B ABERITEN B EATFHHNE. 250

e

leases and interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows. B BHFESR. EEMSHEFRERCHHE.
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